Public Document Pack

Agenda
Meeting

Pension Board

Venue:

Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams

Date:

Thursday, 13 January 2022

Time:

2.00 pm

Independent Chair: Mr David Portlock (Chairman - Independent
Member (Non-voting))

Scheme Member Representatives: Gordon Gresty, David Houlgate
Simon Purcell and Sam Thompson
Employer Representatives: County Councillor Robert Baker, Emma
Barbery, Councillor Ann Cross and David Hawkins
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of
the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote
live-broadcast committee meetings should continue, with any formal decisions required being
taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after
consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any
views of the relevant Committee Members. This approach was reviewed by full Council at its
November meeting and will be subject to a further review at the County Council Meeting in
February 2022.
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings
Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also available there.

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Stephen Loach Tel: 01609 532216
or e-mail stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk
OFFICIAL

Page 1

Business
1.

Exclusion of Public and Press
To consider the exclusion of the public and press from the meeting during consideration
of item 6(b), Confidential Minutes of the Pension Fund Committee held on 26th November
2021, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 as
amended by the Local Government (Access to information)(Variation) Order 2006

2.

Welcome, Introductions and Apologies

3(a)

Minutes of Previous Meeting - To agree as an accurate record the
Minutes of the meeting held on 7 October 2021

3(b)

Progress on Issues raised at Previous Meetings

4.

Declarations of Interest

5.

Public Questions and/or Statements

(Pages 5 - 16)

(Pages 17 - 22)

Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they
have given notice (including the text of the question/statement) to Steve Loach of
Democratic Services (contact details provided on the Agenda) by
midday on Monday 10th January 2022. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3
minutes on any item. Members of the public who have given notice will be invited to
speak:• at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which
are not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes);
• when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a
matter which is on the Agenda for this meeting.
6(a)

Minutes of Pension Fund Committee held on 26th November 2021

(Pages 23 - 32)

6(b)

Confidential Minutes of the Pension Fund Committee held on
26th November 2021

(Pages 33 - 38)

7.

Review of Terms of Reference - Report of Legal and Democratic
Services

(Pages 39 - 46)

8.

Pension Fund Administration

(Pages 47 - 78)

9.

Government Actuary Department - Section 13 report - Verbal
report

10.

North Yorkshire Pension Fund Annual Report and Statement of
Final Accounts - Report of the Treasurer

11.

Internal Audit Reports - Report of Internal Audit

12.

Review of Risk Register - Report of Legal & Democratic Services

13.

Budget and Accounts - Report of the Treasurer

Page 2
OFFICIAL

(Pages 79 144)
(Pages 145 158)
(Pages 159 176)
(Pages 177 182)

14.

Training (including feedback from any courses attended) - Report
of Legal and Democratic Services

(Pages 183 186)

15.

Work Plan - Annual Review and Plan for 2022 - Report of Legal &
Democratic Services

(Pages 187 190)

16.

Other business which the Chairman agrees should be considered
as a matter of urgency because of special circumstances

Barry Khan
Assistant Chief Executive
(Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
Wednesday, 5 January 2022

For all enquiries relating to this agenda or to register to speak at the meeting, please contact
Stephen Loach, Democratic Services Officer on Tel: 01609 532216 or by e-mail at:
stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 3
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3a
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
Minutes of the meeting of the Pension Board held on Thursday 7th October 2021 via Microsoft
Teams commencing at 10am.
Present:Members of the Board
David Portlock (Independent Chairman).
Employer Representatives:
County Councillor Bob Baker (NYCC), Councillor Ann Hook (City of York Council), Emma
Barbery (Askham Bryan College) and David Hawkins (York College).
Scheme Members:
David Houlgate (Unison), Simon Purcell (Unison), Gordon Gresty and Sam Thompson
(Hambleton District Council)
County Council Officers:
Qingzi Bu, Phillippa Cockerill, Steve Loach, Ian Morton, Tom Morrison and Jo Foster-Wade.

Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book
All decisions made by the Committee are subject to the procedure set out in Minute
303, below.

303

Chairman’s Welcome and Introductions
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the formal, live broadcast, virtual meeting of the
Pension Board. Members and officers introduced themselves for the benefit of the
broadcast.
He announced that under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’
Delegation Scheme in the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has
power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision which could be taken by the
Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of the Local
Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority
and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which
allowed for committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at
its meeting on 5 May 2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings would
continue, with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer
under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers

Page 5
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/1

and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant
Committee Members. This approach was reviewed by full Council at its July meeting
where it was agreed that it be continued with a further review at the November meeting
of the full County Council.
304

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence.

305

Appointment of Scheme Member and Employer Representatives
The Chairman stated that, following an interview, Sam Thompson (Hambleton DC)
was nominated to fill the vacant Scheme Member Representative position on the
Board. Reserve Employer Representative, David Hawkins, was nominated to fill the
vacant Employer representative position, following the resignation of Louise BranfordWhite.
The Chairman explained the process for the appointments with approval required by
the full County Council as the Administering Authority.
Resolved: - that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:That the following appointments be recommended to the next meeting of the full
County Council for a four year period:-

Scheme Member Representative – Sam Thompson (Hambleton DC)
Employer Representative – David Hawkins (York College)

306(a) Minutes
Resolved That the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 July 2021, having been printed and
circulated, be taken as read and confirmed as a correct record and the Chairman would
sign these at a convenient time.

306(b) Progress on Issues Raised by the Board
Details had been outlined in relation to the filling of the vacant positions on the Board
(above).
In respect of consideration given as to whether a breach should be reported to the
Pensions Regulator, regarding late issue of Pension Saving Statements, it was stated
that further details were yet to be received back from HMRC.
The reports on Cyber Security would be presented to the Pension Board as soon as
they were available with no indication, as yet, when this would be. It was stated that
the issue would be discussed with the Chairman outside of the meeting with a view to
progressing this matter.
The issue relating to having adequate resources to meet the demanding workload of
the Fund, highlighted during the Annual Discussion with the Treasurer of the Fund,
continued to be monitored and would be discussed with Members should there be a
significant shift in the position outlined.

Page 6
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/2

The other issues were included on the agenda and would be updated during
consideration of those items.
Resolved That the report be noted and any further action highlighted be undertaken accordingly.
307.

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

308.

Public Questions or Statements
There were no public questions or statements.

309.

Pension Fund Committee - update on Meeting held on 10 September 2021
The Chairman noted that the Minutes from the meeting were not yet available. He
provided highlights of the key items that had been considered at that meeting, as
follows:






Request for Broadacres Housing Association to join the North Yorkshire
Pension Fund (NYPF) and for their assets and liabilities to be covered by a
transfer agreement with Hambleton District Council. Broadacres are
currently members of the London Pension Fund Authority (LPFA.
This matter was discussed as a private item and, despite some
reservations, the Committee supported the recommendation to develop the
request further to determine whether it could be undertaken, delegating the
responsibility to the Treasurer to pursue that. It was expected that there
would be further reports on this matter, going forward.
The Death Grant reports were deferred for consideration at a subsequent
meeting to allow further information to be provided.
Performance of the Fund – It was reported that the Fund was 130% funded
at the the end of June 2021, with a surplus of £1bn. It was noted that no
updated figure was available, however, the current position was expected
to be about the same, which reflected to incredible investment performance
in recent years.
Asset Allocation – Details of changes to the asset allocation were outlined
in a move towards meeting the new Investment Strategy.

Resolved –
That the update be noted.
310.

Annual Report
Members considered the Annual Report of the Pension Board for 2020/21, following
the suggested amendments at the previous meeting and submission to the Pension
Fund Committee. A further amendment was suggested.

Page 7
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/3

Following the amendment, the Annual Report would be submitted to the November
Meeting of the County Council for approval. It was noted that, following approval by
County Council, the Annual Report would be published on the NYPF website.
Resolved: - that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:That the Annual Report of the Pension Board 2020/21 be approved, subject to the
amendment outlined, and be recommended to full County Council for approval and
publication.
311.

NYPF External Audit and Statement of Final Accounts
It was explained that the Audit was yet to be completed and a summary of the actions
to be completed were provided. As a result, the Audit Committee did not approve the
Audit and Statement of Final Accounts at its September meeting. It was still expected
that the External Auditor would publish an unqualified opinion at this stage.
A Member asked whether the final Report and Accounts would be provided to the
Board. In response it was stated that following approval by the Audit Committee , it
would be made available to the Board, which should be the next Meeting.
It was asked why the publication of the final report had been delayed. In response it
was stated that the External Auditor was allowed to delay the publication of the final
statement, under current legislation, provided appropriate reasons were given. A full
explanation note had been provided in respect of this which, in the main, related to
the External Auditor’s staff resourcing issues. It was noted that these issues have
created widespread difficulties throughout the auditing sector, mainly due to the
pandemic, so NYCC/NYPF were not alone on this matter.
It was expected that the final statements would be published towards the end of
October, with the Audit Committee meeting to consider these on 24th October 2021.
The details would be included in the NYPF Annual Report, which would be considered
at the Pension Fund Committee being held on 26 November 2021. The details would
then be available for the January 2022 meeting of the Board.
Resolved –
That the report and issues raised be noted.

312.

Internal Audit Reports
Ian Morton, who is the Assistant Director – Audit and Assurance provided the Pension
Board with an update on Internal Audit activity.
The report highlighted the Audit Plan for 2020/21, previously approved by the Pension
Board, as follows: Income and Expenditure Audits were now completed and had provided
substantial assurance.
 The Investments Audit had been issued in draft and it was expected that a copy
of the report would be available for the next meeting of the Board. It was
expected that this would also give substantial assurance.
 In respect of the Income Audit report, provided with the papers, the Chairman
had raised queries prior to the meeting in relation to the figure provided in
respect of income that would have been achieved had the charging policy being

Page 8
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/4

applied, which appeared to be overstated, and the work that had been
undertaken with employers to ensure that they were submitting appropriate
data, on time. He asked whether the work being undertaken with Craven DC
had been successful, following a number of incidences relating to untimely data
submission. In response it was noted that the figure provided within the report
would be updated prior to the next meeting. In terms of working with employers
rather than strictly implementing the charging policy, it was stated that this
approach had been undertaken to allow employers sufficient time to recover
from COVID related staff issues. In respect of the issues raised in relation to
Craven DC it was noted they had been addressed directly with them,
successfully. A Member noted that one authority had been charged in line with
the Policy, whereas others had not, and asked whether there was a consistent
approach to this, and whether those charged would feel aggrieved. In response
it was noted that the Charging Policy had been implemented on more than one
occasion and was used as a last resort when employers have previously
received assistance from NYPF but incidents have continued to occur. Going
forward it was anticipated that charging would be implemented on more
occasions now that employers are all aware of the system in place, and every
effort had been made to assist them, and the impact of the pandemic has
receded.
 It was asked whether the alterations to the Councils in the area brought about
by the Local Government Review (LGR) would affect the Charging Policy. In
response it was stated that it was not expected to be an issue.
 Meetings had taken place involving Internal Audit and NYPF Officers to discuss
the audit plans for next year. Details of the Expenditure and Investment Audits
were outlined. There would be no Income Report due to the changes to the
system for obtaining information from employers, which will be allowed to settle
down before auditing.
Resolved That the report be noted.
313.

Pension Administration
The Pension Administration Manager, Phillippa Cockerill, provided Members with an
update on key initiatives undertaken by the Administration Team of the NYPF. The
report included, as an Appendix, the report that was provided to the PFC at their
September 2021 meeting.
The following issues were highlighted:

PFC Report
The PFC report from their September 2021 meeting was provided as an
Appendix.



Breaches - Annual Benefits Statements (ABS)
A new breach had occurred as less than 100% ABS had been issued for both
active and deferred members. Action had been undertaken subsequently, with
over 99% of the deferred members now having received their Statement. 1185
Active members had not received their Statements and work was continuing to
discover why this was the case. Further reports would be brought back to future

Page 9
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/5

meetings of the Board to determine why this had happened. It was emphasised
that, despite the breach that had occurred, there had been improvements in
processing the ABS in recent years, with a great deal of work having been
undertaken by the Employer Relationship Team to address these issues. It was
clarified that the data issues had arisen from a cross-section of Employers and
could not be attributed to a small number. It was noted that, there are over 30k
active members in the NYPF, and although this was a breach of the regulations,
it was a relatively small proportion of the overall membership that were affected.
A Member stated that it would be useful to compare with other Pension Funds
to determine what level of their ABS were issued annually, to provide context
to the performance of the NYPF. In response it was stated that 100% of the
ABS could be published on every occasion, however the NYPF ensured that
all the data was correct before issuing the ABS, whereas some Pension Funds
issued the ABS irrespective of the data being correct.
The Chairman asked whether 100% of the deferred ABS had now been issued
and that was confirmed. It was suggested, therefore, that the Board should
recommend to the PFC that the matter should be not referred to the Regulator.
It was stated that the figures in relation to Active members, once checks had
been made to determine how many were outstanding and for what reason,
would be brought back to the Board. It was suggested, therefore, that until
those details were provided it be recommended to the PFC that no decision as
to whether to report the matter to the Regulator be made.


Major Projects
Data Reconciliation was nearly completed and the final position would be
reported to the Board.
The I-Connect project was progressing well but the rollout had been paused for
the year end process and the issuing of the ABS. It was hoped that NYCC
would be integrated into the system in November, which would be a major
progression for the project as the largest employer in the Fund. The aim was
to have all employers on board by the end of March 2022. It was stated that
despite LGR the District Councils would continue to be integrated into the
system, as these processes would be continuing when the new authority was
in place and in the interim it would be more useful to have a single process in
place.
The new integrated payroll system was beginning to settle in and would
continue to be fine-tuned to maximise the benefits of its introduction.
During a discussion of the report the following issues and points were raised:

A Member noted the move to enhance online access for pensioners of the
NYPF. He asked whether there had been a strong take up for this and if there
were figures available to determine the take up. In response it was stated that
no survey had been carried out as yet to determine who had switched to online
access but this would take place and be reported to the Board. The
Administration Team were aware of the difficulties faced by some people in
using online facilities, and, although the current process automatically
registered people for online access, there was an opt-out available to remain
with paper based communication. The Member asked whether there was any

Page 10
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/6

follow up when no communication had been received to ensure that members
knew that they had to opt out, and it was confirmed that this was undertaken
by letter. It was emphasised that the NYPF would continue to provide a choice
of how they wished to access the Fund, going forward, and historical data in
hard copy format would continue to be available.


It was noted that a number of strategies and policies, referred to in the report,
were approved at the PFC meeting.
Resolved -

314.

(i)

That the contents of the report be noted;

(ii)

That the contents of the Breaches Log be noted, and it be
recommended to the Pension Fund Committee that no further action be
taken in respect of the breach in relation to the issuing of ABS to
deferred members and further information be provided before a
decision is made as to whether to report the breach to the Pensions
Regulator in respect of the ABS issued to active members.

Budget and Accounts
Members considered details of the following:-

(a) 2020-21 Budget
(b) 2021-22 Budget
(c) 3-year Cashflow projections
(d) Pooling costs and savings analysis
(e) 2020-21 Accounts
The following issues were highlighted:





The outturn for 2020/21 showed an overspend of £1.4m which related, in the
main, to increased fees due to better than expected performance of Fund
Managers.
The current forecast for the 2021/22 budget was showing a £200k overspend
which related to additional costs from BCPP. It was also stated that there were
additional costs to be included of £500k, in respect of exploratory work to be
undertaken by BCPP relating to the development of their Property Sub-Funds,
although some costs could be incurred in 2022/23.
The cashflow reports had been amended to improve their accuracy and there
would be further refinements going forward. The cashflow positions for 2021/22
and 2022/23 were satisfactory.
Reviews were now taking place of costs pre and post pooling and details would
be provided to the Board going forward. Current forecasts suggested a break
even position by 2022/23 and savings of £4.4m for the NYPF by the end of
2023/24. It was acknowledged that cost savings were only one part of the
equation, and limited comparisons of the performance of investments were
expected to begin next year, when BCPP’s performance track record was
sufficiently long enough. A Member noted that the allocation with Baillie Gifford
had substantially outperformed the global equity investment with BCPP and he
asked whether this would continue to be the case. The Chairman suggested
that this matter be discussed during the next item on the agenda.

Page 11
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/7



It was explained that the Statement of Final Accounts had not been signed off
by the Audit Committee on 20 September as expected, due to the External
Auditor having resource issues, and they were now expected to be considered
at the Audit Committee scheduled for 25 October. Once approved the accounts
would be included in the NYPF’s Annual Report which would be considered at
the Pension Fund Committee meeting on 26 November and would be available
for the January meeting of the Board.

Resolved That the report, and updates, be noted.
315.

Border to Coast Update
Members considered a report providing updates on the following:





Governance of the Joint Committee (JC)
Governance of the Company
Working Groups and other arrangements
Investments with Border to Coast
Future investments with Border to Coast

The following issues were highlighted:








A link to the papers for the June meeting of the JC was provided. Private papers
on investments would be circulated to Board Members on a confidential basis.
A great deal of information was available on the BCPP website.
Details of the Governance of the Company were outlined, including the
appointment and re-appointment of non-executive directors for two year terms.
Over half of the NYPFs investments were now with BCPP. Details of the
investments were outlined in the report and it was noted that during the
September 2021 quarter an additional £800 million was transferred to Border
to Coast’s corporate bond and government bond funds taking the proportion of
the Fund invested with Border to Coast to 55%.
Cumulative private markets commitments of £320 million to Infrastructure and
£195 million to Private Credit had also been made. Going forward, there would
be the opportunity to make additional commitments to Border to Coast for these
asset classes in the first quarter of each calendar year. As expected with these
asset classes, it would take a number of years for these commitments to be
called by Border to Coast and for the money to be fully invested.
In terms of investment comparisons it was stated that it would take around 3 –
5 years for the comparisons to be meaningful, and even then it was not
straightforward as the various mandates had different objectives to previously,
with different benchmarks. Also the Investment Strategy had recently been
changed to de-risk investments in light of the high funding position, therefore,
comparisons would be undertaken but between different strategies, with
different aims.
Details of the proposed investment in the MAC Fund and the development of
the Property portfolio were also outlined.
A Member suggested that the details in the report were difficult for an ordinary
member of the public to understand, particularly in respect of Baillie Gifford,
when they are performing so well, into BCPP, who were not performing as well.
In response it was explained that the Government introduced legislation
requiring pooling for the LGPS investments therefore there was a legal
requirement for Funds to invest in a pool, unless there was a good reason not

Page 12
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/8







to, for example where a specific investment opportunity was not available within
the pool. As a result the investment with Baillie Gifford was retained by the
NYPF, as there was no similar alternative offered by BCPP. Should a similar
investment be provided by BCPP in future then the NYPF would consider it,
although, currently, no such alternative was available. The Chairman stated
that the Fund had reached 130% funded, and was now looking to reduce the
overall risk attached to investments by lowering its exposure to equities,
through the newly adopted Investment Strategy. The issue had been discussed
at length by the PFC, with a range of views, before the Strategy had been
agreed. It was also considered that where the Fund had siginficant exposure
with any one fund manager this was one of a number of risks assessed by the
Committee before making asset allocation decisions.
A Member, noting that the Fund was currently 130% funded, asked whether
the forthcoming Triennial Valuation (March 2022) would consider a reduction
in contributions from employers, and, if so, he urged officers of the NYPF to
engage with employers as soon as possible. In response it was stated that the
Triennial Valuation was currently in its early stages, and until the Actuary had
considered the figures, it was impossible to say with confidence what the new
contribution requirements might be. Details of the new rates would emerge in
late 2022. It was stated that although the current funding position was excellent
and boded well for contribution rates in general, there was still a period of time
before the Valuation date of 31 March 2022 and there could be a dramatic
change to the funding level between now and then.
A Member asked whether comparisons of the performance of the various pools
were being undertaken, and, if so, whether the details would be fed into the
Board. In response it was noted that it was likely that comparisons would be
undertaken but only after a period of settling in. It would also need to be
recognised that the different pools would be given different objectives by their
partner Funds, therefore, comparisons may have limited meaning. It would be
also be difficult to move between pools due to their different objectives and the
amount of work required in incorporating governance arrangements for pool
membership. Members considered the comparison would be beneficial as it
would provide details of how well the pool is performing. It was emphasised
that BCPP performed well in some areas, such as UK Equities, and were
generally performing well despite the some of the concerns expressed.
A discussion took place in respect of the potential property portfolio being
explored by BCPP. It was noted that the PFC had agreed to provide BCPP with
£500k to develop their property portfolio, and would consider their proposals
when in place next year. It was emphasised that any investment by NYPF
would be dependent on the appropriateness of the sub-funds and a satisfactory
business case.

Resolved –
That the report, and updates provided, be noted.
316.

Training
Members considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and
Democratic Services) providing an update on Pension Board Member training.
It was noted that the report providing details of training events attended, and activities
undertaken by Pension Board Members was not now published as part of the report
but did appear on the Meeting’s web page and this was up to date.

Page 13
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/9

It was noted that Hymans Robertson package (Aspire) of on-line training relevant to
the LGPS could now be utilised for both PFC and PB Members. Information of the
available training was provided, with these provided in “bite-size” sessions that could
be dipped in and out of at Members convenience. Details of how to access the training
had been circulated, but could be re-circulated on request. Members should advise the
Clerk when they had undertaken relevant training to allow their training record to be
updated

Resolved -

317.

(i)

That the report be noted

(ii)

that details of the Hymans Robertson online training package be noted.

Work Plan
Members considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and
Democratic Services) detailing the areas of planned work of the Pension Board for
the coming year and providing meeting dates for the Pension Board until April 2022.
The Chairman stated that initially it had been the intention to enable members to
undertake in depth analysis of aspects of the work programme, as individuals or in
smaller groups, but that had not been possible in recent times. He stated that further
consideration would be given to developing this analysis during the development of
next year’s work programme.
It was noted that the draft Meetings Calendar for 2022/23 was currently being
developed and would be circulated to Members when completed.
Resolved (i)

That the Work Plan, as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, be noted.

(ii)

That the dates of ordinary meetings as detailed in the report be noted as
follows:Thursdays at 10 am
2021/22
13th January 2022
7th April 2022

318.

Other business
BCPP – CEO Blog
A Member asked whether it was appropriate for him to share the blog from the CEO of
BCPP with other Members of the Scheme. In response it was stated that this was
acceptable unless the contents were marked as confidential.
Resolved That this be noted.

Page 14
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/10

The meeting concluded at 12 noon.
SL

Page 15
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Pension Board - Minutes of 7 October 2021/11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3b
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
13 January 2022
Progress on issues raised by the Board
Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
1.0

Purpose of the report

1.1

To advise Members of:


Progress on issues raised at previous meetings;
Issues that may have arisen, relating to the work of the Board, since the
previous meeting

2.0

Background

2.1

This report is submitted to each meeting listing the Board’s previous Resolutions
where further information is to be submitted to future meetings. The table below
represents the list of issues which were identified at previous Pension Board
meetings and which have not yet been resolved.

Date

Minute No and
subject

7 October
2021

Minute No 305(b)
– Appointment of
Employer and
Scheme Member
representatives

20 July
2017 ongoing

Resolution/Action

Vacancies for Employer and
Scheme Member
Representatives were
appointed to. David
Hawkins (York College) and
Sam Thompson
(Hambleton DC) were
nominated respectively,
with their appointments
subject to approval by full
County Council.
Minute No 100 – That Pension Board
Risk Register /
Members be provided with
Minute No 123 – the background
Annual discussion documents/ staffing
with Treasurer of structure/ financial
NYPF / Minute
information in relation to
no 177(b) –
pooling. Following that, a
progress on
structure was required to
Issues raised /
determine how reports
Minute no 186
were to be provided, going
Pooling / Minute forward. This remained a
no 217(b), 231
significant issue particularly

Page 17
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Comment/completed
The appointments were approved
by full County Council on 17th
November 2021, each having a
four years term of office.

The Board is provided with details
of the relevant information, to
enable them to monitor the
development of the pooling
arrangements directly by the
Treasurer of the NYPF, however, an
appropriate reporting mechanism
has still to be established, with a
significant proportion of reports
still deemed to be confidential by
BCPP. The Treasurer continued to
address this matter with BCPP.

3 October
2019 –
ongoing –
delayed
by COVID
19

(b) and 261 (b) progress on
Issues raised

in respect of the amount of
documentation considered
to be confidential by BCPP,
which hindered the
scrutiny and monitoring
process of the Board. It was
also considered that this
was hindering the feedback
process for the Scheme
Member representative
that attends JCC Meetings.

Minute no 223 –
Governance of
the Fund/ Minute
no 231 (b) –
progress on
Issues raised /
Minute no 289(b)
-– progress on
Issues raised

Hymans Robertson Report
on Good Governance in the
LGPS – Members raised
concerns regarding the
potential for the creation
of new local authority
bodies and joint
committees to oversee the
LGPS, which had been
raised as part of this
study/consultation.
In considering whether a
breach should be reported
to the Pensions Regulator it
was noted that further
details were expected back
from HMRC before it could
be decided whether this
should be reported.

Members agreed to monitor
developments in relation to any
potential changes to governance
arrangements from the Scheme
Advisory Board, going forward.
Advice is still awaited in relation to
this matter. The issue was now
progressing
with
the
final
implications awaited.

Both reconciliations
continued to progress with
a number of queries being
referred back to the
administration team for
review and resolution.

Figures from the projects would be
fed back into the Pension Board as
soon as they were finalised. Figures
were starting to emerge from the
projects.

The NYPF was covered by
the NYCC Policy on Cyber
Security and was
monitored by Technology
and Change, who would be
developing a series of
reports on this matter for

The reports on Cyber Security
would be presented to the Pension
Board as soon as they were
available.

14
Minute no 265 –
Pension
January
2021
- administration –
Breaches log /
ongoing
Minute no 289(b)
& 306(b) -–
progress on
Issues raised
14
Minute no 265 –
Pension
January
2021
- administration –
Data
ongoing
Reconciliation
Projects – GMP
and Pensioner
Data/ Minute no
297 and 313 Pensions
Administration
14
Minute no 265 –
Pension
January
2021
- administration –
Cyber Security /
ongoing
Minute no 289(b)
&306(b) -–
progress on
Issues raised

Page 18
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Details of the report back from
HMRC would be provided to the
Board before a decision was made
as to whether to report the breach
to tPR.

4

Minute Nos – 281
/282 - Budget,
April 2021 Accounts and
- ongoing Business
Plan/Investment
Strategy Review/
Minute no 289(b)
-– progress on
Issues raised/
Minute no 314 –
Budget and
Accounts
8
Minute No 292 –
Annual discussion
July 2021 - with Treasurer of
ongoing
NYPF/ Minute No
306(b)- progress
on issues raised

4
April
2021ongoing

Minute No. 271 Other business Continuation of
Remote
Meetings/
Minute no 289(b)
-– progress on
Issues raised

7 October Minute no 309 Pension Fund
2021
Committee update on
Meeting held on
10 September
2021

use throughout the
Authority.
Details to be provided to
allow a comparison of costs
and the performance of
investments prior to, and
following the
implementation of the
pooling arrangements with
BCPP.

A comparison of data would be fed
back into the Board at regular
intervals when appropriate and
meaningful data was available.

The additional pressure
from the Regulatory
Bodies, a large number of
investigatory projects and
the introduction of new
systems on the
Administration Team for
the North Yorkshire
Pension Fund and whether
there are sufficient
resources available to
manage this effectively.

The situation would be carefully
monitored by the Treasurer of the
Fund and the pension Board to
determine whether there are
sufficient resources to effectively
manage the service.

Consideration to be given
to the arrangements for
meetings following the
emergency legislation for
the holding of remote
meetings during the
pandemic having lapsed on
7th May 2021

The County Council met on 17th
November 2021 and agreed to
continue
with
virtual,
live
broadcast meetings on an informal
basis, with issues requiring a
decision being referred by the
Committees, with details of their
discussion, to the Chief Executive,
allowing the decision to be
implemented under his existing
emergency powers. A review of this
position would be undertaken at
the February 2022 meeting of the
County Council.
The Pension Fund Committee had
supported the recommendation to
develop the request further to
determine whether it could be
undertaken,
delegating
the
responsibility to the Treasurer to
pursue that. It was expected that
there would be further reports to
both the Committee and Board on
this matter, going forward.

Request for Broadacres
Housing Association to join
the North Yorkshire
Pension Fund (NYPF) and
for their assets and
liabilities to be covered by
a transfer agreement with
Hambleton District Council.

Page 19
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

7 October Minute no 311 NYPF External
2021
Audit and
Statement of
Final Accounts

7 October Minute No 313 –
Pensions
2021
Administration Breaches Annual Benefits
Statements (ABS)

The Statement of Final
Accounts had not been
signed off by the Audit
Committee on 20
September as expected,
due to the External Auditor
having resource issues, and
they were now expected to
be considered at the Audit
Committee scheduled for
25 October. Once
approved the accounts
would be included in the
NYPF’s Annual Report
which would be considered
at the Pension Fund
Committee meeting on 26
November and would be
available for the January
meeting of the Board.
A new breach had occurred
as less than 100% ABS had
been issued for both active
and deferred members.

An update on this issue will be
provided at today’s meeting.

It was recommended to, and
agreed by, the Pension Fund
Committee that no further action
be taken in respect of the breach in
relation to the issuing of ABS to
deferred members, as that position
had subsequently been addressed,
however, further information be
provided before a decision was
made as to whether to report the
breach to the Pensions Regulator
in respect of the ABS issued to
active members.

3.0

Recommendation

3.1

That the report be noted and further action be undertaken where required.

Barry Khan
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
Report Author – Steve Loach - December 2021
Background Documents – None

Page 20
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 21
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6a
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Fund Committee
Minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2021 held as a live broadcast meeting
commencing at 10 am.
Present:County Councillors John Weighell OBE (Chairman), Michael Chambers MBE, Cliff Lunn, Don
Mackay, Patrick Mulligan, Andy Solloway, Helen Swiers and Angus Thompson.
Councillor Jim Clark - North Yorkshire District Councils.
Councillor Christian Vassie - City of York Council.
David Portlock - Chair of the Pension Board.
Brian Hazledine – UNISON retired members
The meeting was available to watch live via the County Council’s website and a recording of
the meeting is now available on the website via the following link
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings

Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book
All decisions made by the Committee are subject to the procedure set out in Minute
239, below.
239.

Welcome and Introduction
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and highlighted the following:-.
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in
the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of
emergency, to take any decision which could be taken by the Council, the Executive
or a committee. Following on from the expiry of the Local Authorities and Police and
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for committee
meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic
circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings should continue (as
informal meetings of the Committee Members), with any formal decisions required
being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making
powers and after consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and
after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee Members. This
approach was reviewed by full Council at its November meeting and it was agreed to
continue with this approach with a further review taking place at the County Council
Meeting in February 2022.

Page 23NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/1
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

240.

Exclusion of the Public and Press
Resolved –
That on the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972
as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006,
the public was excluded from the meeting during consideration of agenda items: 3(b)
– Confidential minutes of 10th September 2021; and; 12 – Asset Allocation

241(a). Minutes
Resolved That the Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2021were confirmed and would
be signed by the Chairman as a correct record at the first available opportunity.
241(b). Confidential Minutes
That the Confidential Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2021 were
confirmed and would be signed by the Chairman as a correct record at the first
available opportunity.
(There was no discussion of the Confidential Minutes, therefore, the Meeting did not
go into private session).
242.

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

243.

Public Questions or Statements
There were no public questions / statements

244.

Pension Administration Report
Considered The report of the Treasurer providing Members with information relating to the
administration of the Fund in the quarter and updating on key issues and initiatives
which impact the administration team, including the following:Admission Agreements and New Academies
Administration
Membership Statistics
Throughput Statistics
Performance Statistics
Commendations and Complaints
Annual Benefit Statements 2021
Issues and Initiatives

Page 24

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/2

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

GMP and Pensioner Data Reconciliation
Breaches Policy & Log
Business Plan update
Administration System Project
Other Key Projects
McCloud
Broadacres
Governance Documents
Funding Strategy Statement
Admissions and Terminations Funding Policy
Pensions Administration Policy
Business Plan Update
Member Training
Meeting Timetable
The following issues from the report were highlighted:











The impact of increased demand on the team on the performance satisfaction
rating. New systems are continuing to be bedded in which affected this,
therefore, additional resources had been recruited, together with a change in
structure for the team, to address the increased outstanding work.
In respect of the issuing of Annual Benefits Statements (ABS), 100% of
deferred members had now been issued. Work had taken place on the
outstanding active members’ statements since the report was produced and,
575 now had been issued, 76 were not eligible for a Statement, 352 had
outstanding year- end queries and 155 were being checked for eligibility.
The Pensioner Data Reconciliation project had been completed and pension
records had been amended. Around 1800 pensioners have had their records
amended, 581 had been overpaid, with average overpayment being £206.70
per annum (ranging from £7.42 to £12k). 711 had been underpaid, with the
average underpayment being £54.30 per annum (ranging from £1.74 to
£1500). Arrears on underpayments will be paid, but overpayments will not be
reclaimed. All pensions have now been rectified to the correct amount.
There had been 4 breaches since the previous report, details of which were set
out in the report – these related to 3 administrative breaches, one of which was
related to data collection by the third party contractor dealing with data for
McCloud, and the other relating to the ABS and 100% having not been issued.
An update of the Fund’s Business Plan was provided.
The Administration System project was progressing well. Work was taking
place with NYCC and City of York Council to get them on board as soon as
possible, as the two largest employers.
It was explained that pensioner members of the Fund were being encouraged
to take up the self-service, on-line option for services they required from the

Page 25NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/3
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE



Fund, however, they could opt-out of this if they wanted to maintain postal and
telephone services. Around 25% of the overall pensioner members had opted
out and their service would be continued in-line with their requirements, but the
option to move to self-service was still available to them.
The collection of data for McCloud continued to be progressed.

Members discussed the report and the following issues and points were raised:



A Member asked for details in relation to how long the Broadacres issue would
take to resolve. The Treasurer responded stating that, initially, the issue had to
be discussed with the appropriate Government Policy Team, which had been
arranged. Broadacres were also obtaining the appropriate information to
submit to the Secretary of State. The whole process could take a number of
months and Members would be provided with regular updates on how this was
progressing. The Member representing the District Councils stated that he had
discussed the issue with the Treasurer and was satisfied with the information
provided but would continue to monitor the progress.
A Member noted that some of the information contained with attendance at
training, conferences and events appendix to the report was incorrect. In
response it was stated that the appendix would be corrected and Members
were asked to provide details to the Clerk of any information they wished to be
included in this appendix, going forward.

Resolved – that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:
(i)

That the contents of the report be noted;

(ii)

That in terms of the data breaches reported, Members agreed that no reports
should be made to the Pensions’ Regulator in respect of the two issues
related to the gathering of data for the McCloud case, the copy of a letter left
on a printer and not meeting the deadline for the issuing of Annual Benefits
Statements to deferred members of the Fund. However, further information
was required before a decision could be made on not meeting the deadline for
the issuing of Annual Benefits Statements to active members of the Fund;

(iii)

That the proposed Meetings’ timetable for 2022/23 be approved.

(iv)

That the Administration Team be congratulated for their continued hard work
and good performance through an extremely difficult time.

245(a) Death Grant – Mrs P
Considered The report of the Treasurer providing Members with information relating to the death
of Mrs P in January 2019 in order that a decision could be made as to the beneficiary
of the death grant now payable.
Members were reminded that it was an administering authority discretion under the
regulations to decide to whom death grants are paid.
Background information was provided to enable Members to make a decision on this
matter.

Page 26

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/4

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Members discussed the report and agreed that the deceased had one immediate
family member, the co-habiting partner, who had proven dependency on the deceased
whereas the sister and father did not appear to have any dependency.
Resolved –that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:

That the death grant be paid in its entirety to the partner who had proven dependency
in order to receive a co-habiting partners pension.
245(b) Death Grant – Mrs R
Considered The report of the Treasurer providing Members with information relating to the death
of Mrs R in January 2020 in order that a decision could be made as to the beneficiary
of the death grant now payable.
Members were reminded that it was an administering authority discretion under the
regulations to decide to whom death grants are paid.
Background information was provided to enable Members to make a decision on this
matter.
Members discussed the report and agreed that the North Yorkshire Pension Fund had
received confirmation that the son had actively been involved in dealing with the estate
of the deceased (e.g. he had paid the funeral expenses in full). He should therefore be
recompensed for these costs and the overall benefit payable was marginally greater
than the cost of the funeral. The son was also likely to have incurred other incidental
costs and the remaining sum was regarded as such low value that there was little
benefit in seeking further interested parties and potentially sharing any residual
element.
Resolved –that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:
That the death grant be paid in its entirety to the son.
245(c) Death Grant – Mr A
Considered The report of the Treasurer providing Members with information relating to the death
of Mr A in May 2020 in order that a decision could be made as to the beneficiary of the
death grant now payable.
Members were reminded that it was an administering authority discretion under the
regulations to decide to whom death grants are paid.
Background information was provided to enable Members to make a decision on this
matter.
Members discussed the report and agreed that although there was a nomination in
place the Committee felt consideration should also be given to the dependent children
from the previous marriage. It was felt a 50/50 split took account of the fact the widow
had the greatest dependence on the deceased at the time of death but the 3 children

Page 27NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/5
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

from the previous marriage should also receive some benefit. It was noted that there
was discussion taking place on the settling of the estate between the widow and the
ex-spouse on behalf of the children and a payment of 50:50 could be fed into those
discussions.
Resolved –that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:
That the death grant should be split 50/50 between the widow and the ex-spouse for
the benefit of his 3 children, in recognition that there were multiple dependants of the
deceased and all should benefit from the death grant.
246.

Pension Fund Annual Report 2020/21 – including Final Accounts
Considered –
The report of the Treasurer requesting Members to approve the Pension Fund Annual
Report 2020/21 and providing an update on the Final Accounts.
The Annual Report was attached as an appendix to the report and the Treasurer noted
that the details within in it had been considered previously by the Committee at Pension
Fund Committee meetings throughout the year.
In respect of the Statement of Final Accounts (SoFA) the Treasurer stated that the final
publication of these continued to be delayed due to resource problems for the External
Auditor. He noted that the accounts could not be published separately to those of the
County Council, therefore, both had to be completed before they were published
despite the Pension Fund accounts having been completed. It was now expected that
a final report would be submitted to the Audit Committee on 13th December 2021 to
consider the SoFA.
The Treasurer stated that in line with legislation, the Annual Report had to be published
by the 1st December. He had taken legal advice and it had been clarified that the
Annual Report, without the SoFA having been signed off, could be published. A note
would be included with the Annual Report to highlight this position. Any changes to the
final SoFA would be reported back to the Committee.
Members discussed the report and the following issues and points were raised:



A Member sought clarification regarding the legal advice obtained in relation to
the publication of the Annual Report with the SoFA not finalised, in respect of
compliance with the legislation and whether the issue would need to be
reported to the Pensions’ Regulator. The Treasurer stated that he had obtained
advice from the County Council’s Monitoring Officer and it had been clarified
that the action identified could be undertaken under Regulation 57 (i), (ii) and
(iii).
It was noted that the Annual Report was usually accompanied with a report
from the Independent Observer to the Fund, but this had not been made
available. In response it was stated that a yearly review was not due, with this
work being undertaken on a two year basis, therefore this would be made
available next year. The Treasure noted there was no obligation to have an
Independent Observer, however, it was seen as good governance. Such an
appointment was likely to be included in the outcomes from the Hymans review
on Good Governance, which was expected to be published next year, with the
Independent Observer assisting with the understanding and assimilation of
this.

Page 28

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/6

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE





A Member welcomed the references to climate change matters within appendix
4 to the report, which would assist with responses to the Task Force on Climate
Related Financial Disclosures, going forward. It was noted that the Fund was
working on that matter, with reporting expected from March 2023 in relation to
that.
A Member asked whether the Committee, and the County Council in general,
should be concerned with regards to the External Auditor not signing off the
SoFA on time. In response the Treasurer stated that this was a national issue
and assured Members that the situation was not unique to the NYPF nor the
County Council.

Resolved – that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:
That the Pension Fund Annual Report for 2020/21 be approved.
247.

Budget/Statistics
Considered The report of the Treasurer outlining the following:


the 2021/22 budget and the cost of running the Fund
the 4 year cashflow projection for the Fund

The latest forecast outturn position against the 2021/22 budget was an estimated total
running cost of £34.1m for the Fund against a budget of £33.9m, as at the end of
September 2021, with no significant changes from Quarter 1.
The overall cashflow position was a small surplus for 2021/22 and 2022/23, turning
into deficits for 2023/24 and 2024/25. It was emphasised that although the Fund was
moving into negative cashflow this was completely normal for pension funds as they
mature. To give some context, it was noted that the forecast 2023/24 cash position of
negative £8.7 million represented approximately 0.2% of the current value of the Fund,
and was not material when compared to the expected annual growth in the value of
the Fund of 5.6%.
The following issues and points were raised during a discussion of the report:


Clarification was provided in respect of the figures within the table appended to
the report.
The Treasurer stated that the cashflow deficit position was relatively small in
context to the overall size of the Fund, and indicated a positive position for the
Fund in terms of its value. He noted that plans were in place to address
negative cashflow when that arose.

Resolved –
That the contents of the report be noted.
248.

Performance of the Fund
Considered –
Report of the Investment Consultants, AON, providing details of performance and
asset allocation information for the Fund along with a background to the investment
markets during the second quarter of 2021/22.

Page 29NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/7
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

The following issues were highlighted:











Performance by the Fund’s investments in the Quarter sees the Fund 130% funded
with a surplus of around £1bn.
Bailie Gifford continued to perform strongly leading to a good performance in
equities overall.
The performance of the various Fund Managers, and the investments managed
within the BCPP were outlined.
The risk from inflation to the markets, in the short and longer term, was outlined
together with the risk of over-reliance on returns from equities.
Inflation levels were rising due to short term supply and demand issues created by
the pandemic and Brexit, therefore, it was not expect that there would necessarily
be long term inflation issues.
The actuary would be considering the impact of inflation during the forthcoming
Triennial Valuation which could affect the level of contributions, going forward.
Issues around Index Linked Gilts and Corporate Bonds were outlined, with these
currently very expensive and unlikely to bring any significant benefit, unless
increasing inflation was likely to be a long term issue where inflation linked assets
would benefit the Fund.
Details relating to liabilities, assets and equities, and the impact of the current
economic situation on those, were outlined.
The risk factor of large exposure to equities remained and the Fund’s Investment
Strategy continued to seek to reduce that risk, with volatility in the markets
remaining.
Climate Change and carbon reduction are issues that will feature prominently in
respect of investment opportunities going forward, and the Investment Strategy
would take account of that.

The following issues and points were raised during a discussion of the report:










Clarification was provided that, although the inflationary pressures were
considered to be short term, continued difficulty with supply and rising wages could
see this develop into a medium/long term issue.
A discussion of the continued excellent performance of Baillie Gifford, and their
portfolio, was undertaken.
The current factors contributing to increased inflation in the short term were
outlined.
A member raised concerns that, given the details provided earlier in the meeting,
it was the wrong time to be investing in Index Linked Gilts. In response it was stated
that the investment referred to related to transferring an existing Index Linked Gilts
investment with M&G into BCPP, which was a change of manager rather than a
asset class.
It was noted that there was a reduced number of fund manager reviews within the
report submitted to this meeting. In response it was stated that a review of fund
managers was currently taking place, in conjunction with BCPP, and it was
expected that future reports would include more detail. Verbal updated were
provided on some of the main fund managers, including some of those within
BCPP.
A Member emphasised the need to consider the long term picture when looking at
investments, highlighting the excellent performance of the Fund in recent years
which had led to the current funding position. He highlighted how similar economic
situations had occurred previously but by trusting the Investment Strategy the Fund
had prospered.
A Member highlighted how the NYPF was the highest performing Fund in the pool,
and one of the best performing Funds in the LGPS. He emphasised how this had

Page 30

NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/8

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

been obtained through hard work and good management, and considered that the
Committee could have confidence in the way the Fund would be managed, going
forward.
Resolved –
That the contents of the report be noted.
249.

Pension Board – report back by Chair on the meeting held on 14th January 2021
Considered A verbal update by the Chair of the Pension Board.
The Chair of the Pension Board, David Portlock, summarised the discussions at the
meeting held on 7th October 2021 highlighting the following:








Vacancies for a Scheme Member and Employer Member representatives on the
Pension Board had been filled, following approval at the November 2021 meeting
of the Full County Council. Their appointments were for four years, and resulted in
there now being a full complement of representatives on the Board.
Reports from Internal Audit had been completed on Income and Expenditure, with
both indicating substantial assurance.
Members again discussed the cashflow position of the Fund and concern was
raised regarding the prospect of going into a negative cashflow position.
Details of the Hymans Robertson on-line training package, purchased for both
Pension Board and Pension Fund Committee Members to undertake, were
outlined. The Chairman of the Board provided details of what the training package
contained. He noted that PFC Members could undertake the available training and,
whilst not mandatory currently, the information provided would be of benefit in their
role.
Louise Branford-White, an original Member of the Board, had taken up a position
with a different body which left her ineligible to sit on the Board, resulting in her
resignation. Consideration would be given to appointing David Hawkins, a current
reserve Employer Representative to the Board, at the next meeting.

Resolved That the details of the meeting outlined be noted and the Board’s Chairman be thanked
for his updates.
Minute No.250 was considered as a private item (see Minute No. 240, above) and
a separate confidential minute was produced. The Minute below provides a
public record of the consideration of that item.
250.

Asset Allocation
Considered The report of the Treasurer to the Fund regarding the following:(i)

To update Members on progress towards aligning the Fund’s investments with
the asset allocation strategy.

(ii)

To update Members on the development of new fund proposals by Border to
Coast.

Page 31NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/9
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

(iii)

To provide Members with carbon emissions information from the Fund’s
investment managers.

Members consideration of the proposals is outlined in the confidential minutes.
Resolved – that the following be referred to the Chief Executive Officer for
consideration under his emergency delegated powers:

(i)

that the Fund’s allocation to property may include global property, subject to
satisfactory due diligence being carried out; and

(ii)

that the Committee would like to explore Border to Coast’s Climate
Opportunities fund in more detail

The meeting concluded at 12.20pm.
SML

Page 32 NYCC Pension Fund - Minutes – 26 November 2021/10
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Agenda Item 6b

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
13 January 2022
Terms of Reference

1.

Purpose of the Report
To provide Pension Board members with details of the Board’s Terms of Reference.

2.

Annual Review

An Annual Review of the Terms of Reference is included in the Work
Programme for the January meeting of the Board each year and Pension
Board members are invited to make comments on the Terms of Reference
and make recommendations for changes if appropriate.
On this occasion, as a review of the Terms of Reference was undertaken in
July 2021, it is considered unnecessary to have a further review at this stage.
A copy of the current Terms of Reference is therefore appended to this report
for information.
3.0

Recommendation

3.1

Pension Board members note the Terms of Reference as detailed in Appendix 1.

BARRY KHAN
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton

Background Documents:
Nil

Page 39
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1

Pension Board of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Terms of Reference and Delegated Authorities
1) Role of the Local Pension Board
The role of the local Pension Board as defined by sections 5 (1) and (2) of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013, is
to assist North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) as Administering Authority in its role as Scheme
Manager
to secure compliance with the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) regulations and any
other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the LGPS
to secure compliance with the requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions
Regulator
to secure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS for the North
Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF, or the Fund)
in such other matters as the LGPS regulations may specify
to provide the Scheme Manager with such information as it requires to ensure that any member of
the Pension Board or person to be appointed to the Pension Board does not have a conflict of interest
The terms “Administering Authority” and “Scheme Manager” are used interchangeably in the
Regulations but are separately defined in this document (see section 18). NYCC as the Administering
Authority has ultimate responsibility for the Fund and has delegated powers to manage the Fund to
the Pension Fund Committee (PFC).
These Regulations provide that the Pension Board has the general power to do anything which is
calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of its functions.
The Pension Board will ensure it effectively and efficiently complies with the code of practice on the
governance and administration of public service pension schemes issued by the Pension Regulator.
The Pension Board will also help ensure that the NYPF is managed and administered effectively and
efficiently and complies with the code of practice on the governance and administration of public
service pension schemes issued by the Pension Regulator, with due regard to guidance issued by
Government, the Pensions Regulator and the National Scheme Advisory Board.
The Pension Board shall meet sufficiently regularly to discharge its duties and responsibilities
effectively, but not less than four times in any year.
The Pension Board will determine the precise timing of its own meetings, which will take place at
suitable intervals between PFC meetings so that PFC activity relevant to the Board can be considered
and responses to recommendations reviewed prior to the next meeting of the PFC.
The Pension Board will undertake formal meetings remotely, through an appropriate media platform,
and subject to the relevant live broadcast requirements, when circumstances arise that prevent
physical meetings from taking place. The Meetings should be wholly remote or physical and should
not be undertaken in a hybrid manner.
2) Membership and Appointment Process
The Pension Board shall consist of 9 members and be constituted as follows:

Page 41
OFFICIAL

i) 4 scheme member representatives, of whom
a. 2 shall represent and be drawn from active members of the Fund
b. 1 shall represent and be drawn from pensioner and deferred pensioner members of the Fund
c. 1 shall represent and be drawn from either the active or deferred/pensioner members of the Fund
ii) 4 employer representatives, of whom
a. 1 shall be nominated by NYCC who shall meet the requirements of the relevant regulations in
relation to avoidance of conflict with the County Council’s role as Administering Authority
b. 1 shall be nominated by the City, Borough and District Councils, the Police and Fire bodies and the
National Parks which are employers within the Fund
c. 1 shall be nominated by all other employers within the Fund
d. 1 shall be nominated by any employer other than NYCC
iii) 1 independent member, who shall be appointed as Chair of the Pension Board
Elected Members and officers involved in the management and administration of the Fund are not
permitted to become Pension Board members.
The Administering Authority will contact employers and members of the Fund to inform them of the
Pension Board arrangements and to canvass interest whenever appointments to the Pension Board
are required. Active, pensioner and deferred pensioner members will be eligible to nominate
themselves as “scheme member representatives”. Individuals put forward by the Fund’s employers,
whether or not those individuals are members of the Fund, will be eligible to stand as “employer
representatives”.
The position of independent member will be advertised publically. The Administering Authority will
seek an independently minded individual with a track record of dealing with governance issues.
Following receipt of nominations/applications the Administering Authority will arrange an independent
as possible appointment process. This process will include assessing information supplied by
candidates in support of their nomination/application and may be supplemented by interviews as
appropriate.
Members in all categories will only be appointed to the Pension Board by the Administering Authority
if they either meet the knowledge and skills requirements set out in the relevant regulations and
guidance (see Section 7) or commit to do so within 3 months of the appointment date.
Members of the Pension Board will serve for a term of 4 years following which they may either retire
from the Board or seek nomination for an additional term. The term of office may otherwise come to
an end
i. for scheme member representatives if they cease to be a member of the relevant group
ii. for employer representatives who are councillors if they cease to hold office as a councillor
iii. for employer representatives who are not councillors when they cease to be employed by their
nominating employer
iv. for a councillor member who is appointed to the PFC
v. for a scheme member or employer representative who is appointed to a role with responsibility for
the management or administration of the Fund
vi. where there is a conflict of interest which cannot be managed in accordance with the Pension
Board’s Conflicts of Interest Policy
vii. where a member fails to attend meetings, undertake training or otherwise comply with the
requirements of being a Pension Board member

Page 42
OFFICIAL

Each Pension Board member should endeavour to attend all Board meetings during the year and is
expected to attend at least 3 meetings each year. The chair of the Board is also expected to attend
the quarterly meetings of the PFC.
Given the nature of the Pension Board as a supervisory body and the need for appropriate knowledge
and skills and the clear avoidance of conflicts of interest, substitute members are not permitted.
In the event of consistent non-attendance by any Board member, then the tenure of that membership
should be reviewed by the other Board members in liaison with the Administering Authority.
Other than by ceasing to be eligible as set out above, a Board member may also be removed from
office during a term of appointment by the unanimous agreement of all of the other members. The
removal of the independent member requires the consent of the Administering Authority.
3) Conflicts of Interest
The policy for identifying, monitoring and managing conflicts of interest is set out in a separate policy
document, which should be regularly reviewed by the Pension Board.
4) Standards of Conduct
The role of Pension Board members requires the highest standards of conduct and therefore the
“seven principles of public life” will be applied to all Pension Board members and embodied in their
code of conduct.
These are:
selflessness
integrity
objectivity
accountability
openness
honesty
leadership
5) Knowledge and Skills
A member of the Pension Board must be conversant with:
1. The legislation and associated guidance of the LGPS
2. Any document recording policy about the administration of the LGPS which is for the time being
adopted by the NYPF
A member of the Pension Board must have knowledge and understanding of:
a. the law relating to pensions, and
b. any other matters which are prescribed in the regulations
Individual Pension Board members must satisfy themselves that they have the appropriate degree of
local knowledge and understanding to enable them to properly exercise their functions as a member
of the Pension Board. This includes being fully aware of all requirements detailed in these terms of

Page 43
OFFICIAL

reference for example on standards of conduct and conflicts of interest, and being conversant with the
investment strategy of the Fund.
In line with this requirement Pension Board members are required to be able to demonstrate their
knowledge and understanding and to refresh and keep their knowledge up to date. Pension Board
members are therefore required to maintain a written record of relevant training and development.
Pension Board members will undertake a personal training needs analysis and regularly review their
skills, competencies and knowledge to identify gaps or weaknesses.
6) Board Review Process
The Board will undertake each year a formal review process to assess how well it and its members
are performing with a view to seeking continuous improvement in the Board’s performance.
7) Accountability
The Pension Board will be collectively and individually accountable to the Administering Authority.
8) Remit of the Board
The Pension Board must assist the Administering Authority with such matters as the scheme
regulations may specify. It is for scheme regulations and the Administering Authority to determine
precisely what the Pension Board’s role entails. Examples of activity include, inter alia:
reviewing the Fund’s governance and policy documents, such as the Governance Compliance
Statement and the Communications Policy Statement
reviewing the Fund’s Annual Report
reviewing the administrative performance of the Fund
reviewing shareholder voting and engagement arrangements
reviewing the Fund’s Risk Register
reviewing the NYPF website
supporting and challenging PFC actions as a critical friend
Reviewing the governance of the new pooling arrangements, to assist in ensuring compliance,
effective and efficient reporting, and the monitoring of investment management.
9) Decision making
Each Pension Board member who is a scheme member or employer representative will have an
individual voting right but it is expected that the Pension Board will as far as possible reach a
consensus. The Chair of the Pension Board will not be entitled to vote.
10) Quorum
The Board shall be quorate if the Chair, 1 scheme member representative and 1 employer
representative are present.
11) Board Meetings – Notice, Minutes and Reporting
The Administering Authority shall give notice to all Pension Board members of every meeting of the
Pension Board and shall ensure that a formal record of Pension Board proceedings is maintained.
Following the approval of the minutes by the Chair of the Board, they shall be circulated to all Pension
Board members.

Page 44
OFFICIAL

The Pension Board is a committee of the Council and as such the Council’s rules on notice of
meetings, publishing agendas, reports and minutes and that meetings and papers (unless exempt)
are open to the public will apply. At the discretion of the Administering Authority items may be edited
or excluded on the grounds that they would either involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as specified in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or it being confidential for
the purposes of Section 100A(2) of that Act and/or they represent data covered by the Data
Protection Act 1998.
The Pension Board shall annually report to the Administering Authority on its nature and activities.
The precise content of this report will be subject to consideration and agreement at a meeting of the
Board but as a minimum should include
a. details of members attendance at meetings of the Pension Board
b. details of training and development activities made available to Pension Board members and
attendance at such activities
c. details of any recommendations made by the Pension Board to the Scheme Manager and the
Scheme Manager’s response to those recommendations
d. details of costs incurred in the operation of the Pension Board
e. a review of the effectiveness of the Board (see Section 6)
In consideration of items of business at its ordinary meetings the Pension Board shall determine
whether it wishes to make recommendations to the Scheme Manager, to which the Scheme Manager
shall respond at the subsequent meeting.
The Pension board shall also report as required by the regulations to the Pensions Regulator and the
National Scheme Advisory Board.
12) Reporting Breaches
Any breach brought to the attention of the Pension Board, whether potential or actual, shall be dealt
with in accordance with the procedure set out in the draft code of practice 14 issued by the Pensions
Regulator, Governance and Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes.
13) Escalation of matters of serious concern
Where a matter of serious concern arises regarding compliance or a potential breach of the
regulations, the Pension Board must inform the Scheme Manager immediately, and may escalate
reporting to the Monitoring Officer, to the National Scheme Advisory Board and the Pensions
Regulator if considered necessary and appropriate.
14) Publication of Pension Board information
Scheme members and other interested parties will want to know that the NYPF is being efficiently and
effectively managed. They will also want to be confident that the Pension Board is properly
constituted, trained and competent in order to comply with scheme regulations, and to carry out its
role in relation to the governance and administration of the scheme and requirements of the Pension
Regulator.
Up to date information will be posted on the NYPF website showing:
the names of the Pension Board members and other relevant information
how the scheme members are represented on the Pension Board
the responsibilities of the Pension Board as a whole
the full terms of reference and policies of the Pension Board and how they operate
the Pension Board appointment process

Page 45
OFFICIAL

any specific roles and responsibilities of individual Pension Board members
The Administering Authority will also consider requests for additional information to be published or
made available to individual scheme members to encourage scheme member engagement and
promote a culture of openness and transparency.
15) Advice to the Board
The Board will be supported in its role and responsibilities by the Administering Authority through
advice and support as appropriate.
16) Expense Reimbursement, remuneration and allowances
The Administering Authority will determine remuneration and allowances to be paid to Pension Board
members based on recommendations made by the Independent Panel on Members Remuneration.
These arrangements are reviewed annually.
Expenses in connection with fulfilling Pension Board responsibilities will be met by the Fund based on
the Council’s Members Scheme of Allowances and officers Travel and Expenses Policy as
appropriate. The costs of appropriate training will also be met by the Fund.
17) Insurance
The Council’s Public Liability Insurance applies to members of the Pension Board.
18) Updating the Pension Board Terms of Reference
Approval for significant amendments must be pursued through the Council’s Constitution Working
Group. General updating or housekeeping can be carried out without the need to seek formal
approval.
19) Definitions
The undernoted terms shall have the following meaning when used in this document:
“Pension Board” or “Board”

Means the Pension Board for the Council
as the Administering Authority of the NYPF
as required under the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013

“Administering Authority”
”Scheme Manager”
“Chair”

Means the Council
Means the PFC of the Council
The individual responsible for chairing
meetings of the Pension Board and
guiding its debates

“LGPS”

The Local Government Pension Scheme
as constituted by the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013,the
Local Government Pension Scheme
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014 and the
The Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2009

“Scheme”

Means the Local Government Pension
Scheme as defined under “LGPS”

Page 46
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 8
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
13 January 2022
Administration Report
1.

Purpose of the Report
To provide Pension Board members with an update on key initiatives undertaken by
the administration team of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund.

2. Pension Fund Committee paper
Included for information at Appendix 1 & Appendix 1a is the administration paper and
appendices provided to the Pension Fund Committee at their November 2021 meeting.
3. Breaches Log
Included at Appendix 2 is the North Yorkshire Pension Fund’s Breaches Log for
review. There are four new breaches this time relating to:




Accidental disclosure of personal information to an employer as a result of data
not being recorded correctly on the administration system
A letter was found on a printer within County Hall which appears to have
automatically printed out during some system issues.
Late reporting to HMRC of a tax charge due to exceeding the annual allowance.

4. Annual Benefit Statements
Of the 1,158 unissued active statements we have:




Issued 645
Identified 122 no longer eligible for a statement
391 still to work through

Deferred statement work has now been completed and we can confirm 100% of
eligible deferred members have now received a 2021 statement.
5. Major Projects
5.1. Data Reconciliation
 Data reconciliation work is now completed and the final position is as reported
in the Pension Fund Committee administration report.
5.2. i-Connect - Employer portal
 A significant number of data differences have been identified on the preliminary files
for both NYCC & CYC.
 These difference shave significantly slowed down the on-boarding of these and
subsequent employers but we continue to work through them.
 On-boarding will be completed as soon as possible.

Page 47
OFFICIAL

5.3. Pensioner payroll
 This work stream has now been completed and is now part of our business as usual.
 All records have been updated for those pensioners who have opted out of
electronic payslips and P60s. Paper payslips will continue to be issued to these
pensioners whenever their monthly pension changes by more than £5.
 Approximately 5,000 pensioners opted out, a quarter of our pensioner population.
Pensioners are able to change their preference at any time and these changes will
now fall into normal work in future
6. Broadacres
Broadacres Housing Association (BHA) would like to join the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund (NYPF) and want their assets and liabilities to be covered by a transfer agreement
with Hambleton District Council. BHA is currently an employer in the London Pension
Fund Authority (LPFA).
Following a meeting with policy advisers at the Department for Levelling Up, Housing &
Communities (DLUHC), an agreed approach has been set out between the NYPF,
Hambleton District Council and BHA. NYPF will be seeking legal and actuarial advice
before contributing to the application form that BHA must submit to DLUHC.
A formal agreement is being sought prior to an application being submitted to DLUCH to
ensure that any risk that the Fund is exposed to is managed effectively.
Following a consultation with the NYPF, the LPFA and BHA, the Secretary of State will
determine whether the transfer of BHA from the LPFA to the NYPF can proceed and, if
so will issue a direction to transfer the assets and liabilities of BHA from the LPFA to the
NYPF.
7. Cyber Security
Whilst the North Yorkshire Pension Fund is covered by the wider North Yorkshire County
Council (NYCC) cyber security framework both CIPFA and the Pensions Regulator are
now looking for pension fund specific cyber security reviews.
Work is underway to establish what form this review should take and what technical
support and information the NYCC IT team will be able to provide to support this.
8. Common and Conditional Data Scores
8.1. As previously advised the Fund measures its data quality each year and provides the
information to the Pensions Regulator in the annual return. To put these into context
the following is a table of the scores for the partner funds in the Border to Coast group
who have provided a response. The NYPF scores are shown at the bottom of the
table:
Common Score
Conditional Score
95.78%
84.38%
95.90%
97.10%
97.80%
94.20%
93.00%
95.00%
94.95%
97.52%

Page 48
OFFICIAL

9. LGPC Bulletins
9.1. The LGPC regularly issues bulletins, which can include actions for administering
authorities. The NYPF reviews every bulletin and logs any actions highlighted. A log
of the actions is included at Appendix 3 to enable Pension Board Members to ensure
appropriate activities are being undertaken
10. Recommendation
10.1.
That Pension Board Members note the contents of this report.
10.2.
That Pension Board Members note the contents of the Breaches Log and
determine whether a report to the Regulator is required.

Phillippa Cockerill
Head of Pensions Administration
County Hall
Northallerton
05 January 2022
Background Papers - Nil

Page 49
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

89 9 99
99
89  !"
# $9%&9
%&9 9' ($

{vw|}ux~wx

)
"
* &99' %&9
)
+,+,)-.)/0.1234)5467408)92:;)2<=.06>:2.<)04?>:2<@):.):;4)>362<28:0>:2.<).=):;4)AB<3)2<):;4)CB>0:40)><3)
:.)/0.1234)><)B/3>:4).<)D4E)288B48)><3)2<2:2>:2148)9;2F;)26/>F:):;4)>362<28:0>:2.<):4>6,))
)

* #9#GH8I #$
)
J,+,)-;4)?>:48:)/.82:2.<)04?>:2<@):.)>362882.<)>@04464<:8)><3)>F>346E)F.<14082.<8)28)8;.9<)2<)
#&&K",)
)
L
* # $9)
)
M,+,)N  &O$
5467408;2/)P>:4@.0E)
Q:)R+SRTSJRJ+) USV)P;><@4)WXY)
Q:)MRSRZSJRJ+)
QF:214)
MJ[RJZ)
VR,+\X)
M+[Z]+)
^4=40043)
M][TMJ)
VR,_JX)
M][\`])
a4<82.<40))
J\[T_M)
UJ,+JX)
J`[MR\)
W2<F?)8/.B84)b)34/4<3><:)6467408Y)
(9$
cde!f
cdgef
)
M,J,)( 9G & O$
h) a402.3)=0.6)+)iB?E)JRJ+):.)MR)j4/:46740)JRJ+)
$
$
k$G
$
k$G$
$ &
$ O$
8I $ 9
l
-0><8=40)m<)CB.:48)
+)
JZ)
JM)
T)
-0><8=40)nB:)CB.:48)
MJ)
+``)
+_+)
\T)
o6/?.E40)48:26>:48)
J)
\`)
\\)
M)
o6/?.E44)48:26>:48)
++)
J__)
J_\)
+R)
p4:20464<:)CB.:48)
``)
+RM`)
+R\M)
_Z)
a04840143)74<4=2:8)
]J)
M+\)
MJJ)
T\)
^4>:;)2<)/>E64<:).0)2<)84012F4)
_M)
J+`)
+TR)
]Z)
p4=B<38)
MM)
MM`)
MJT)
_J)
QF:B>?)04:20464<:)/0.F43B04)
`_J)
+Z\\)
+]T+)
TJ`)
m<:40=B<3):0><8=408)
+MJ)
+]+)
+\_)
+\Z)
Q@@04@>:4)646740)04F.038)
+]T)
M]`)
_\R)
+JM)
a0.F488)q5a)
+)
R)
R)
+)
n:;408)
J\+)
M_`)
M]`)
J++)
(9$$)
"dfgL
ed
ed"cr
"dee
h) Q?.<@8234):;4)>7.14)F>848[):;4)a4<82.<8):4>6)>?8.);><3?43)J[Z`\)/;.<4)F>??8)W>140>@4)
\T)/40)9.0D2<@)3>EY)><3)`[`+])46>2?8)04F42143)12>):;4)a4<82.<8)m<7.s)W>140>@4)+RJ)/40)
9.0D2<@)3>EY)2<):;4)CB>0:40):.)MR)j4/:46740)JRJ+,)

tu
vwxy51z
Page
12234356

89

9
  !"#$%&'#()*%+,-.-)'/.0'1-.-)&++2&3
89 945 
679895 9:9;95
<9


=
9
5

>
?


8@
9

9
5
>

:




79


ABC
A.C

D=
 9=;9E95?79;97 5 9F9@@9
AGC
A.C

499= H9 979959@I9;9=9HEJKK
T..
)UBT)
89

L=

9

M



@

9
7



9
9
5
=
9


N
O
P
Q
Q
R
S



 V% !"!(&'#&"'#!'#!$"!'#!%'1# "'(1,'#$( !(#!'
'' WX&'#++1((#!$#!'!2 ,++&,&'!('#"#!"#&'#&
&'#++'1%++, +#&(WY%'%&,&'! !"!'&2#+++'#&W
 X Z"%#'(((#'#! +&%"!( [#!$" !$''&'%"'%'' 
'((&&'#!" &#!$%!'%'&'!(#!$2[W
 V%##',"!'#!%&'1' ,11!#'&&'+,&2"!W
/W/WD 955D 8@
 #&\% ''++2#!$"!( '#!&!("+#!'&2"#Z(3
D 95
]9^= H9= E
*%+ . 
_%$ - `&!&'#U&! ++,!(+%+!&&W
0
 - a+%+U#!(+,!([!2+($ 1+W

D 8@
]9^= H9 = E
*%+ ) _(#!bc+#!'#!(!(!'#! !"#+ (Z#& 1%'!' !&2#!$
&"##"\%&'#!&W
_%$ . 
0 - _(#!dc+#!'1%'"!%&#!$ (#!$(%"'#!&+#"1+'!&#!&
 '[! +,W
 _(#!dc+#!'$ (#!$Z&''!'1!#'&(%'#(
&Z#"1#!$"((#!""'+,!"(W

 "+#!'"'$#&3
e_(#!b'&"!+''&#!"+"%+'#!&U(+,&#!"&&#!$!( [#!$
 ,!'1!#'&W
1e`$&b'&+''"+#!'2$%+'#!&Z!''11#!$1+
'(2 '',2 !''W
"e fag`b'&21& Z1!("+#!( +,'#!'!'
$%!(&#++ +'!( +#!$'("#&#!'%$'f!'! +h#&%'&
`
&+%'#!i"(%W

j9 j995

a Z#!$Z#2('"+#!'&"#Z(#!'#('2! ''!&#(!'##(\%##!$
%'''!'#!W 



kl
mnop52q
Page
12234356



9    
!"#"#$"%&'"#"(&)*"+'!",%-./".012344-/-5042967#"'((849:9;-5"<8$<"
'!"#"#$"%&+'!"%""!".+"%&'"#"($=+"&'/-%=."'.<(">+"%"#'((832361'%"
$"(8*-%?".-('(.*<<$"&&/".'&*"%"&-<!"+"@/"%"&

A"5"%%".#"#$"%&'"#"(&)*"+'.17&'"#"(&(-,%-./".B,-((!"&8'(8+"&"-(<=
*"%""<8$<"-%""!"'&'"#"('(.+"&"+'!"(-*$""(&&/".>+"%"#'((819*"%"
(-"<8$<"./"-!'%-/&%"'&-(&&/+'&(-*.""'&".2(-*,"(&-("%&-%(-<'$<=&'/&2
"

>+
&#"'(&*"+'!"(-*&&/".3::;-5."5"%%".$"("5&'"#"(&

C
D E FEG

3 HIJ FJ K LMNOK OK 
('<=&&+'&(-*$""(-#,<"".'(.+"5('<,-&-(*'&P

>-'<,"(&-("%%"-%.&%"!"*".P0 216:

>-'<-!"%,'.,"(&-("%&P613
Q>+-&"&/$R"-'%"./-((+"%'((/'<,"(&-(S
((/'<,"(&-('#-/($"(8-!"%,'.'+",-(-5%"5'-(PT30:2:4660,"%'((/#
!"%'8"-!"%,'=#"(PT0:97:,"%'((/#

>-'</(."%,'.,"(&-("%&P733
Q>+-&"&/$R"-'(/,<5(+"%'((/'<,"(&-('(.,'=#"(-5'%%"'%&'(.("%"&./"S
((/'<,"(&-('#-/($"(8/(."%,'.'+",-(-5%"5'-(PT9129:9 9,"%'((/#
!"%'8"/(."%,'=#"(PT6 9:,"%'((/#

>-'<'%%"'%&,</&("%"&%",'.PT69 21634 

0 LOUJKOVWXKY
>Z[\]^_Z̀\a^_bcZd_[\e[fcd^f\ghfijc\k_[lmZ[c\n^o\&(</.".'pp Fq5-%%"!"*>+"%"
'%"("*"(%"&+&#"r("%"<'"&-'((/'<$"("5&'"#"(&2*-%"<'"-.''&&/".-
"#,<-="%&'&,'%-5+"('<st<-/..''8'+"%(8*-%?'(.+"-+"%%"<'"&-'<""%$"(8
'/-#''<<=,%(".'(.<"5-(+",%("%

9 J upF
v(+"wxyz0:03{00)0:09{0 |/&("&&y<'("<"!"(?"='-(&5-%+"0:03{00="'%*"%"
."(5".'(.',,%-!".$=s"#$"%&(+"s'%+0:03t-##""#""(8v*'&'8%"".+'
-55"%&*-/<.,%-!."',%-8%"&&%",-%'8'(&+"&"?"='-(&2+&,%-8%"&&%",-%&''+".
'&pp Fq}

 FLK VJLK~O
>+"."<!"%=&'8"-5+&,%-R"'(.&!'%-/&*-%?&%"'#&&,%-8%"&&(8*"<<
 r($-'%.(8-5"#,<-="%&--/%-(<(",-%'<t-(("+'&(-*%"-##"(".*+-/%*-
<'%8"&"#,<-="%&2wxtttxt'&,%-%=
 y%",'%'-%=*-%?+'&-##"(".'(.&+-,".+&*<<$"<"&&#"-(&/#(8-%<'$-/%
("(&!"5-<<-*(8+"*-%?'<%"'.=/(."%'?"(5-%="'%"(.
 >+","(&-("%,'=%-<<*-%?&%"'#&(-*-#,<""'(.+&+'&,'&&".(-$/&("&&'&
/&/'<
 &#'<<,%-R"&(-*/(."%*'=-/,.'"'<<+"%"-%.&5-%+-&","(&-("%&*+-+'!"
-,".-/-5-(<(",'=&<,&
 >+".''%"-(<'-(*-%?+'&$""(5('<&".
 "$&"."!"<-,#"(+'&-##"(".





53
Page
12234356



9

9  
 ! "#$$%"!&#'"#'!&'(%)*&!+ '(,-%.#/%,0$#1%.).%)0#'2&'3/#$$#*&'3#(./&.)!"+ )%.
%, &$4!+ )-%"#,% 00 .%'!, '1#!+%.5('2) .%)!&$$&'!+%0.%$&,&' .1)!3%)$&6%#(.)%$7%)
'20.#3.%))&))$#* ".#)) $$5('2)
8 9::
;.# 2 ".%)<#()&'3=))#"&!&#'>;<=?*#($2$&6%!#@#&'!+%A#.!+B#.6)+&.%C%')&#'5('2>ABC5?
'2* '!!+%&. ))%!) '2$&-&$&!&%)!#-%"#7%.%2-1 !.')/%. 3.%%,%'!*&!+< ,-$%!#'&)!.&"!
D#('"&$;<=&)"(..%'!$1 '%,0$#1%.&'!+%E#'2#'C%')&#'5('2=(!+#.&!1>EC5=?
5#$$#*&'3 ,%%!&'3 *&!+ 0#$&"1 27&)%.) !!+% %0 .!,%'!/#.E%7%$$&'3 F0G<#()&'3 H
D#,,('&!&%)>EF<D?G ' 3.%%2 00.# "++ )-%%')%!#(!-%!*%%'!+%ABC5G< ,-$%!#'
&)!.&"!D#('"&$ '2;<= ABC5*&$$-%)%%6&'3$%3 $ '2 "!( .&$ 27&"%-%/#.%"#'!.&-(!&'3!#
!+% 00$&"!&#'/#., !+ !;<=,()!)(-,&!!#EF<D
5#$$#*&'3 "#')($!!&#'*&!+!+%ABC5G!+%EC5= '2;<=G!+%I%".%!.1#/I!!%*&$$2%!%.,&'%
*+%!+%.!+%!.')/%.#/;<=/.#,!+%EC5=!#!+%ABC5"'0.#"%%2 '2G&/)#*&$$&))(% 2&.%"!&#'
!#!.')/%.!+% ))%!) '2$&-&$&!&%)#/;<=/.#, !+%EC5=!#!+%ABC5
J KLM:NONOP
Q R+%S%,-%.R.&'&'3T%"#.2)+#*&'3!+%!.&'&'3('2%.!6%'!#U"!#-%.VWV&) !!"+%2 )
XYYONZ[\
KLY::]N^]_:`aK:N^]Nb:O]:O:NONOPc
ObO:O]O::]:OO:NM:NONOPdNeY
Y:\
QV F0"#,&'3"#(.)%)G)%,&' .) '2"#'/%.%'"%) 7&$-$%!#S%,-%.) .%)%!#(!&'!+%)"+%2($%
!!"+%2 ) XYYONZ8 C$% )% "#'!"! f&.)!1 <#*%) >WQWg hhVgi #. %, &$
6&.)!1+#*%)j'#.!+1#.6)3#7(6?/#./(.!+%.&'/#., !&#'#.!#.%)%.7% 0$"%#' '%7%'!k7%'!)
.%$&,&!%2"(..%'!$12(%!#!+%0 '2%,&"

l NOPMNK:L
m R+%$!%)!!&,%!-$%/#./#.!+"#,&'3,%%!&'3)#/!+%D#,,&!!%% '24'7%)!,%'!S ' 3%.,%%!&'3)
&) !!"+%2 )XYYONZJ S%%!&'3)*&$$"#'!&'(%!#-%('2%.!6%'7&.!( $$1('$%)) 27&)%2
#!+%.*&)% %!&$)#/!+%0.#0#)%2!&,%!-$%#/S%%!&'3)/#.VWVVnVh .%0.#7&2%2 '2S%,-%.)
.%&'7&!%2!#"#')&2%.!+%2 !%) '2)(33%)! '1 ,%'2,%'!)

o dKKO:NO
i S%,-%.)!#'#!%!+%"#'!%'!)#/!+%.%0#.!
iV S%,-%.)!#2%!%.,&'%*+%!+%. .%0#.!)+#($2-%, 2%!#!+%C%')&#')T%3($!#..%3 .2&'3!+%
2 ! -.% "+%).%0#.!%2
pqrsssstuvwuxysz{s|{}y~uxszusx{{yustuuz~}ysz~vuzwus{xsrs}syuyzs}svu}vu}zyq
 .15&%$2&'3
R.% )(.%.#/A#.!+B#.6)+&.%C%')&#'5('2
ABDD
D#('!1< $$
A#.!+ $$%.!#'
mA#7%,-%.VWV


54
Page
12234356





2<KBH?P57H>?<:5?=@AB886

41D4

9 !"##$

%  &'()
* )
9+,(,
45678948::;9<7=>?<:5?= CD44
@AB886
5659F?88TH48::;9<7=>?<:5?= CD44
@AB886
@7U8B92<KBH?457B86<AE<PB CD44
@AB886VE5??8P57H
\]^#"_$#`a]_bcdeaf CD44
@AB886VJ5IA5K7H?
X<668gJ?HH48::;9<7=>?<:5?= CD44
@AB886
Y59HKP57H48::;9<7=@AB886 41D4

W5?TK7895KBS4>?<:5?=@AB886 CD44

\]kblm$#457B86<A>?<:5?= CD44
@AB886VS<O89
566@5<97KVD8?T
41D4

C5F;?948R>?<:5?=@AB886 41D4
nmo"ae "$#deaf\c_ b 41D4
R6G<9P78948R>?<:5?=@AB886 41D4

qr
stuv55w
Page
12234356

@8;7BD8?T4;67<5A5IH:=J?;K7


W<KB8OXBHH6H?457B86<A5A5IH:=J?;K7
C8?7BH?9@75?5A5IH:<HKJ?;K7
@8;7BD8?T4;67<5A5IH:=J?;K7
>8KK<F6=g<7BW<KB8OXBHH6H?457B86<A
5A5IH:=J?;K7
>8KK<F6=g<7BW<KB8OXBHH6H?457B86<A
5A5IH:=J?;K7
@745?P5?H746<7BH?8g5A5IH:=J?;K7
@8;7BD8?T4;67<5A5IH:=J?;K7

@8;7BD8?T4;67<5A5IH:=J?;K7

@8;7BD8?T4;67<5A5IH:=J?;K7

R6HG57H4;67<5A5IH:=J?;K7
W<KB8OXBHH6H?457B86<A5A5IH:=J?;K7

-+),9 .+,/-9.0%  
E;6648665F8?57<GH5A5IH:=J?;K7

C87T98g9

C87T98g9
C87T98g9
C87T98g9
C87T98g9

YH65=HIZ?8:L[LMN[
YH65=HIZ?8:LNLMNj
YH65=HIZ?8:LLMNj
5A7;5?<56A56A;657<89KO?8G<IHIF5KHI89A89GH?K<89
I57H8ZLpLjL489GH?K<89IH65=HIV9HgI57H987=H7
T98g9
YH65=HIZ?8:LMLMNj

.1,
+,3,
2 ,
LLMNM
39O?8P?HKKF;7:5=FHQ8<9<9P7BHR5K7S<I<9P>H9K<89
2;9IL

LMLMNM
39O?8P?HKK

LMLMNM
YH65=HIZ?8:L[LMNMNLX<66FHO?8P?HKKHI9H5?H?7BH
7<:H

LLMNMM
YH65=HIZ?8:L[LMNMN
LLMNMM
X<66FHO?8P?HKKHI9H5?H?7BH7<:H
h7H9757<GHi
JW4
YH65=HIZ?8:L[LMNj

JW4
YH65=HIZ?8:L[LMNMN
JW4
YH65=HIZ?8:L[LMNMN

/!)0"9'1.%)8*!9 &,'.)
23456789:;<47;=>?@AA6
23BA;C@4D:;<47;=>?@AA6
>C67B;38?34D:;<47;=>?@AA6
E78F2766:;<47;=>?@AA6
46<GCA8B<C@H7B?6<GG3:;<47;=I4JHK>?@AA6
L3BD7;MB<?N:;<47;=>?@AA6
HOGGA;C@:;<47;=>?@AA6

()&"T'U( .*%
V<M@A5C@A;5338G78C>?@AA6

()&"T'U( .*%
47;;38G78C>?@AA6
()&"T'U( .*%
6A;9Y3;74A;3:;<47;=>?@AA6
()&"T'U( .*%
:A5563CA8HA79:;<47;=>?@AA6
()&"T'U( .*%
H765@VOCC3;G<369:;<47;=>?@AA6
()&"T'U( .*%
>C:7O6ZM:;<47;=>?@AA6
()&"T'U( .*%
[37;M63=\;A]3:;<47;=>?@AA6

89  9
! "# $%&'

^_
`abc56d
Page

385;AF;3MM
385;AF;3MM
385;AF;3MM
385;AF;3MM
385;AF;3MM
385;AF;3MM

W366A;M47C3;<8F6<4<C39 XQPQRS
W366A;M47C3;<8F6<4<C39 XQPQRS
W366A;M47C3;<8F6<4<C39 XQPQRS
W366A;M47C3;<8F6<4<C39 XQPQRS
W366A;M47C3;<8F6<4<C39 XQPQRS
W366A;M47C3;<8F6<4<C39 XQPQRS

12234356

385;AF;3MM

W366A;M47C3;<8F6<4<C39 XQPQRS

+)!"",'!"' (.'')/ ) 
-!)
2OC?@<MA847C3;<8F6<4<C39 PQPQRS 385;AF;3MM


! "( )'!*)'

99!"9! #9$ 
16%&'4()*+,)-./011231)4
.5671)879:'4()*+,)-./0112;31)4
.5<*2=)*>9:'4()*+,)-./0112

99!"9! #9$ 
.,/)7>?7,)5'4I5()*+,)-./0112;J1)50,227)51A
.55@8@:5*A79:'4.7/1A>,)-./0112./,)K1)1@80
.5L7A7>*/59:'4()*+,)-./0112;5+H27=1)50
.5671)879:'4()*+,)-./0112;./,)K1)1@80
.5M1:7H09:'4()*+,)-./0112;(*/47)*A8
.5&,)-9:'4()*+,)-./0112;&,251A
.5&,)-9:'4()*+,)-./0112;'*/0+1A>
.5(757)9:'4()*+,)-./0112;./,)K1)1@80
 OP 
522.,*A5:'4./0112;31)4
Q #9$ 
?,RK-'1,>()*+,)-5/,>7+-S/,57)*A8/1A5),/5T
8O
U,:*A8V12>()*+,)-./0112W/,57)*A8/1A5),/5
8O
&11):*>7()*+,)-./0112,A>J@):7)-W/,57)*A8/1A5),/5
8O
412K@)A41++@A*5-()*+,)-./0112W/,57)*A8/1A5),/5
Y9 #9$ 
4,57)*A8/1A5),/5,5,22:/0112:*A507X)@:5

!Z9P#9$ 
<11>501)H7()*+,)-./0112
31)4?*80./0112

89  

\]
^_à57b
Page

3AH)18)7::
3AH)18)7::
3AH)18)7::
3AH)18)7::

GDNDBFBG
GDNDBFBG

X,-21).0,V6*+*57>
X,-21).0,V6*+*57>

&7221):4,57)*A86*+*57> GDNDBFBG
[12/76*+*57>

12234356

3AH)18)7::

GDNDBFBG

3AH)18)7::

?@5/0*:1A4,57)*A86*+*57> GDNDBFBG

?@5/0*:1A4,57)*A86*+*57> GDNDBFBG

X,-21).0,V6*+*57>
GDNDBFBG

3AH)18)7::

3AH)18)7::

?@5/0*:1A4,57)*A86*+*57> GDNDBFBG

99 
9
?@5/0*:1A4,57)*A86*+*57> BCDEDBFBG 3AH)18)7::

89  9

GHGGHJKJG
GHGHJKJJ

U%.')#D0V+.)D6&/&(DF
[%0#+.$*%O6&/&(DF
[%0#+.$*%O6&/&(DF

12234356

Uc##+cM*)4#D%'&'M$D.S&,D) GHGHJKJJ
6(F
5)LD')$D.S&,D)6&/&(DF GHGHJKJJ

4+'(.%,(+.'+(0D(%LL+&'(DFGHGHJKJJ

GHIHJKJG

4%(D.6&'E6&/&(DF

8 99 9 !9" 
5##$%&'()4%(*+#&,-.&/%.0$,*++#
12345667893:72;<=>?3@A>B7AC31?;<<=3

N  !9" 
$L.&'MOD##P%..+M%(D5,%FD/0QO%)(*DR.+SD5,%FD/0T
W "X Y9 
4+LL&,DZ%##D0-.&/%.0$,*++#
W "X Y9 
\D)(D.'-.&/%.0$,*++#

]  Y9 
4%(D.&'M,+'(.%,()%(^_
U%#FD.)`0$(a%/D)4+b-.&/%.05,%FD/0
Uc.(+'R.DD'-.&/%.0$,*++#
2+.D)(+dR%#(.D)5'M#&,%'eD(*+F&)(-.&/%.0$,*++#
-+LL#D(+'1c)D`%'E-.&/%.05,%FD/0
$ED#(+'-.&/%.0$,*++#

g 9"Y9 
[*D$E&L(+'5,%FD/0
8 9!9" 
VDO-%.E-.&/%.05,%FD/0
P%..+M%(DP&M*$,*++#
P++E)(+'D4*%)D-.&/%.0$,*++#
$(%.`D,E-.&/%.05,%FD/0
3'L.+M.D))

3'L.+M.D))

fD#%0DFd.+/ac#0JKJKFcD(+4+S&F_GI

3'L.+M.D))

3'L.+M.D))

3'L.+M.D))

99 
9
GHIHJKJG
3'L.+M.D))

89  9

89  

hi
jklm58n
Page

89 8
 8
14!"#$%&'(6)*)+,-

!%&,#45,67!,#8)4,96)*)+,-

;$9,&<=$>7+#,,4<6#)+6?5,@#%9+
A$#B5#+9C-%46+)$7D4$**%7)+E37+,#,9+4$*&67EF
H,37-,&,7-,7+
I$%9)7JK46#,1/
4$79%5+67+45,67,#9
@<,M)5?,#N$#4,@#%9+
P$54,6)*)+,-
!4<$$59R5%9
!,>,559264)5)+),9S676J,*,7+6)*)+,-
!<,NN),5-37+,#76+)$765T,7%,9
46+,#9,#8)4,6+-
C7+,#&#)9,S676J,-!,#8)4,96+-D5*,EF

UV
WXYZ59[
Page
12234356

 9  

./0.012/3
/:03012/3
./0/1012/3
./0.012/G
./03012/G
./0G012/G
./0/2012/GD8$5%7+6#E5)L%)-6+)$7F
110.012/O
/Q0Q012/O
.20Q012/O
1/0/101212
./0/0121/
/1010121/
1G010121/

89  
!"#$%6&'&()*
/4406&'&()*
#(")'&2)3&46&'&()*
/&27%328"4("9:(9")#)";&:)46&'&()*
4$9":$&#):9"&(#!9(&!246&'&()*

<=
>?@A60B
Page
12234356

9  

+,-,-,.,+
1+-1-,.,+
,5-6-,.,+
1+-6-,.,+
1+-6-,.,+

hijklmn

a

bccdedfg

35126 3 5
41936731 
731 3
3 26731  37  126 9
:.-7439.;<5/73(4.*,3=43=4-431*.9543 C473#D3/63:EF03 #G?##H3/63&;,)I43(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3
+,.,4(4*,3J3K?$H3')'3*/,
,/34+,.95)+>3=>);>3;.,47/-23(4(94-+3 C47+3$" 
DK?G H3/63L464--4'3(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3
+>/15'36.553)*,/3.,3+,.,4(4*,3'.,4?3
+,.,4(4*,3J3G?KDH3')'3*/,
@4.-3A*'3B14-)4+3+,)553/1,+,.*')*73.,3
)++143'.,4?

3 672326 0 33773 33773 263633771 3 672326
39 6 9326731 
0 6263 264 26
264
351267
K!"D!$" % D!" !$" #S/,4'3,>43O/+),)/*T3*/3
S
:.-7439.;<5/73(4.*+3=43'/3*/,324,3<*/=3.;,1.53
-4B1)-4(4*,3,/3-4O/-,?3
,/,.5345)7)95436/-3.3+,.,4(4*,?3
M-4.,)/*3/638-4.;>4+3:/73,/3
M/*,)*143,/3-4'1;43,>439.;<5/73=),>3,.-74,,4'3
)*),).,)I4+?3N.-74,3)+3,/3>.I43.3;/*,-/554'3=/-<3
-4;/-'3O/+),)/*?
,>-/17>O1,39234*'3$" #?
M/*,)*143,/3=/-<3,>-/17>34--/-+3P3B14-)4+3P3
)++143&80Q3=>4*3.9543,/?
R*,-/'1;43(/*,>523-4,1-*+36/-3/1-3$35.-74+,3
4(O5/24-+39234*'3/63$" #3+/3,>.,34--/-+3;.*3943
)'4*,)64'3)*3-4.53,)(43-.,>4-3,>.*3.,324.-34*'?
S
"#! !$" %&'()*)+,-.,)/*0,.,1,/-23'4.'5)*436/-3)++1)*73F4-+/*.53 U1(.*34--/$3(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3+,.,4(4*,+3.6,4-3,>43 0,.,4(4*,+3)++14'3)((4').,452?3
$$!"$!$" # D!" !$" #F83W3S/,4'3,>43O/+),)/*T3*/3
0.I)*7+30,.,4(4*,+3*/,3(4,36/-3.553(4(94-+3
-4B1)-4(4*,3,/3-4O/-,?3
V!"!$" %3'4.'5)*4?
F-/;4++31*'4-3-4I)4=3923,4.(354.'4-?
FXM3W3S/,4'3,>43O/+),)/*T3*/3
D$3(.*1.53;.5;15.,)/*+31*'4-,.<4*3.*'3GV3M>4;<5)+,3;-4.,4'3.*'3O-/;4++3=)553943.1'),4'3)*3
-4B1)-4(4*,3,/3-4O/-,?3
+,.,4(4*,+3)++14'?
$" #3,/34*+1-43;>4;<5)+,394)*731+4'3.*'3O-/;4++3
?GH3/63(4(94-+3.664;,4'
94)*73-/91+,5236/55/=4'
S3W3
$$!"$!$" # D!" !$" #F83W3S/,4'3,>43O/+),)/*T3*/3
Y4(94-3-4;4)I4'394*46),+3>43=.+*Q,34*,),54'3&+3+//*3.+3-4.5)+4'3O.2(4*,3=.+31*.1,>/-)+4'T3
#!$!$" %&'()*)+,-.,)/*R*;/--4;,523O.)'3,-)I).53;/((1,.,)/*3,/3.3 U1(.*34--/C4O/-,4'3,/3
-4B1)-4(4*,3,/3-4O/-,?3
)*6/-(4'3(4(94-3.*'3-4O/-,4'3,/3UYCM?
,/?3S/3/,>4-3(4(94-3.664;,4'?
(4(94-3=>/3>.+394*46),+3=),>3.*/,>4-361*'3
FXM3W3S/,4'3,>43O/+),)/*T3*/3 UYCM
F.2(4*,3)+3.*31*.1,>/-)+4'3O.2(4*,3P3 &=.),)*73;/*6)-(.,)/*3/63+;>4(43,.Z35).9)5),2?
.*'3>.'3*/,3;/((1,4'3,>/+4394*46),+
-4B1)-4(4*,3,/3-4O/-,?3
(1+,3943-4O/-,4'3,/3UYCMT3-4+15,)*73)*3,.Z3
5).9)5),23.,3GGH36/-3,>43(4(94-3P3.''),)/*.53
,.Z36/-3,>43+;>4(4?
 !"#!$" #&'()*)+,-.,)/*0,.,1,/-23'4.'5)*436/-3)++1)*73/63&**1.53 @4.-3A*'3B14-)4+3+,)553/1,+,.*')*73.,3 C473#D3/63:EF03 #V?G$H3/63&;,)I43(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3 8.;<5/73>.+3944*3-4'1;4'3+/3)*3.394,,4-3O/+),)/*3
$$! !$" # !"!$" #F83W3*/,4'3,>43O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3 S
C47+3$" 
+,.,4(4*,3J3?K#H3')'3*/,
84*46),30,.,4(4*,+3*/,3(4,36/-3.55345)7)9543 )++143'.,4?
-47.-')*73;/--4;,345)7)9)5),236/-3+,.,4(4*,+?
*/,3,/3-4O/-,3,>)+3,)(4391,3=)553)*3
DD?%VH3/63L464--4'3(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3 0)7*)6);.*,324.-34*'3B14-)4+3[$TDD\3>.I43
(4(94-+
$" D?
+,.,4(4*,3J3"?$KH3')'3*/,
)(O.;,4'3+,.,4(4*,3O-/'1;,)/*?3A-+394)*73;>.+4'3
FXM3W3*/,4'3O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3
6/-3-4+O/*+4?
*/,3,/3-4O/-,3,>)+3,)(4?
M/*,)*143,/3=/-<3,>-/17>34--/-+3P3B14-)4+3P3
)++143&80Q3=>4*3.9543,/?
]).9)5),23/63(/*,>523-4,1-*+394)*73)*I4+,)7.,4'
$$! !$" D"!"!$" DF83W3')+;1++4'3O/+),)/*T3*/,4'3 S
 !"#!$" D&'()*)+,-.,)/*0,.,1,/-23'4.'5)*436/-3)++1)*73/63&**1.53 @4.-3A*'3B14-)4+3+,)553/1,+,.*')*73.,3 C473#D3/63:EF03 ""H3/63L464--4'3(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3 &*.52+)+3/63,>43TK$31*)++14'3+,.,4(4*,+3
)(O-/I4(4*,36-/(3$" #T3
C47+3$" 
+,.,4(4*,?
1*'4-,.<4*3,/3)'4*,)623.*'3)+/5.,43-4.+/*+?3A.;>3
84*46),30,.,4(4*,+3*/,3(4,36/-3.55345)7)9543 )++143'.,4?
-4B14+,4'361-,>4-3.*.52+)+3923
DG?VDH3/63&;,)I43(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3 7-/1O394)*73=/-<4'3,>-/17>3,/3)'4*,)623=>.,3)+3
M5.-)6);.,)/*3/*3(4(94-+3*/,3=/-<4'3)*3
(4(94-+
4(O5/24-3,/3)'4*,)623=>4,>4-3.*3
+,.,4(4*,?3[TK$3(4(94-+3')'3*/,\
-4B1)-4'3,/34*.9543+,.,4(4*,3,/3943O-/'1;4'?
24.-3+,)553/1,+,.*')*73.,3)++143'.,4?
)++1434Z)+,+3.,3)*')I)'1.53
S1(94-3-4'1;4'3,/3$D3.+3.,3D3^;,/94-T3=/-<3=)553
Y.*1.53;.5;15.,)/*3/63&**1.53&55/=.*;43
4(O5/24-354I45?
;/*,)*1431*,)534*'3/6324.-3,/361-,>4-3-4'1;43
6)71-4+3+,)553/1,+,.*')*73.,3)++143'.,4?
X/55/=)*73O-/I)+)/*3/63.9/I43
*1(94-31*)++14'?3X)*.53O/+),)/*_3$D31*)++14'
)*6/-(.,)/*39/,>3FXM3P3F83
.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,3,>)+3,)(4?
S
!"D!$"$""D!"%!$"$"F83W3̀1523(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
"D!"K!$"$"&'()*)+,-.,)/*&3(4(94-Q+354.I4-3+,.,4(4*,3=.+3)*;/--4;,523L143,/3M/I)'3D3O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*73 L.,.3F-/,4;,)/*3&;,3 &;;)'4*,.53')+;5/+1-43/63O4-+/*.53'.,.36/-33C4;)O)4*,3=.+3.+<4'3,/34),>4-3'4+,-/23/-3-4,1-*3
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
(4(94-3,/3.*/,>4-?3R,3)+3>)7>5231*5)<4523,>.,3,>43)*6/-(.,)/*?F-/;4++3.*'3=/-<)*73O-.;,);43
+4*,3,/3,>43=-/*73(4(94-?
O-/;4++3>.'3,/3943;>.*74'3=>4-49233$" #
FXM3W304O,4(94-3(44,)*7T3
,>43-4;4)O)4*,3<*/=+3,>43O4-+/*3=>/+43 =.+3-4I)4=4'3.*'3;>.*74+3O1,3)*3O5.;4?3
O4-+/*3=.+3-4+O/*+)95436/-3O-)*,)*736/-3
*/,4'3O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3
R*+,-1;,)/*+3)++14'3,/3,>43+,.663-4+O/*+)95436/-3
)*6/-(.,)/*3=.+3')+;5/+4'?3
,>43=>/543,4.(?3U1(.*34--/-?
-4O/-,?
O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*7?
S
!"D!$"$""D!"%!$"$"F83W3̀1523(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
!"G!$"$"&'()*)+,-.,)/*&3(4(94-Q+3-4,)-4(4*,3+,.,4(4*,3=.+3 L143,/3M/I)'3D3O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*73 L.,.3F-/,4;,)/*3&;,3 &;;)'4*,.53')+;5/+1-43/63O4-+/*.53'.,.36/-33C4;)O)4*,3=.+3.+<4'3,/34),>4-3'4+,-/23/-3-4,1-*3
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
(4(94-3,/3.*/,>4-?3R,3)+3>)7>5231*5)<4523,>.,3,>43)*6/-(.,)/*?F-/;4++3.*'3=/-<)*73O-.;,);43
)*;/--4;,523+4*,3,/3,>43=-/*73(4(94-?
O-/;4++3>.'3,/3943;>.*74'3=>4-49233$" #
FXM3W304O,4(94-3(44,)*7T3
,>43-4;4)O)4*,3<*/=+3,>43O4-+/*3=>/+43 =.+3-4I)4=4'3.*'3;>.*74+3O1,3)*3O5.;4?3
O4-+/*3=.+3-4+O/*+)95436/-3O-)*,)*736/-3
*/,4'3O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3
R*+,-1;,)/*+3)++14'3,/3,>43+,.663-4+O/*+)95436/-3
)*6/-(.,)/*3=.+3')+;5/+4'?3
,>43=>/543,4.(?3U1(.*34--/-?
-4O/-,?
O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*7?
G!"G!$"$"&'()*)+,-.,)/*&3(4(94-Q+354,,4-3=.+3)*;/--4;,523+4*,3,/3,>43L143,/3M/I)'3D3O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*73 L.,.3F-/,4;,)/*3&;,3 &;;)'4*,.53')+;5/+1-43/63O4-+/*.53'.,.36/-33C4;)O)4*,3=.+3.+<4'3,/34),>4-3'4+,-/23/-3-4,1-*3
!"D!$"$""D!"%!$"$"F83W3̀1523(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
S
=-/*73(4(94-3.5/*73=),>3,>4)-3/=*354,,4-? O-/;4++3>.'3,/3943;>.*74'3=>4-49233$" #
(4(94-3,/3.*/,>4-?3R,3)+3>)7>5231*5)<4523,>.,3,>43)*6/-(.,)/*?F-/;4++3.*'3=/-<)*73O-.;,);43
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
O4-+/*3=.+3-4+O/*+)95436/-3O-)*,)*736/-3
,>43-4;4)O)4*,3<*/=+3,>43O4-+/*3=>/+43 =.+3-4I)4=4'3.*'3;>.*74+3O1,3)*3O5.;4?3
FXM3W304O,4(94-3(44,)*7T3
,>43=>/543,4.(?3U1(.*34--/-?
)*6/-(.,)/*3=.+3')+;5/+4'?3
R*+,-1;,)/*+3)++14'3,/3,>43+,.663-4+O/*+)95436/-3
*/,4'3O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3
O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*7?
-4O/-,?
G!"G!$"$"&'()*)+,-.,)/*&3(4(94-Q+3;.5;15.,)/*3O-)*,3=.+3)*;/--4;,523 L143,/3M/I)'3D3O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*73 L.,.3F-/,4;,)/*3&;,3 &;;)'4*,.53')+;5/+1-43/63O4-+/*.53'.,.36/-33C4;)O)4*,3=.+3.+<4'3,/34),>4-3'4+,-/23/-3-4,1-*3
S
!"D!$"$""D!"%!$"$"F83W3̀1523(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
+4*,3,/3,>43=-/*73(4(94-?
O-/;4++3>.'3,/3943;>.*74'3=>4-49233$" #
(4(94-3,/3.*/,>4-?3R,3)+3>)7>5231*5)<4523,>.,3,>43)*6/-(.,)/*?F-/;4++3.*'3=/-<)*73O-.;,);43
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
O4-+/*3=.+3-4+O/*+)95436/-3O-)*,)*736/-3
,>43-4;4)O)4*,3<*/=+3,>43O4-+/*3=>/+43 =.+3-4I)4=4'3.*'3;>.*74+3O1,3)*3O5.;4?3
FXM3W304O,4(94-3(44,)*7T3
,>43=>/543,4.(?3U1(.*34--/-?
)*6/-(.,)/*3=.+3')+;5/+4'?3
*/,4'3O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3
R*+,-1;,)/*+3)++14'3,/3,>43+,.663-4+O/*+)95436/-3
-4O/-,?
O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*7?
$V!"G!$"$"&'()*)+,-.,)/*&3O4*+)/*4-3-4;4)I4'3.3O.2+5)O3=>);>3
L143,/3M/I)'3D3O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*73 L.,.3F-/,4;,)/*3&;,3 &;;)'4*,.53')+;5/+1-43/63O4-+/*.53'.,.36/-33C4;)O)4*,3=.+3.+<4'3,/34),>4-3'4+,-/23/-3-4,1-*3
!"D!$"$""D!"%!$"$"F83W3̀1523(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
S
945/*74'3,/3.*/,>4-3O4*+)/*4-?
O-/;4++3>.'3,/3943;>.*74'3=>4-49233$" #
(4(94-3,/3.*/,>4-?3R,3)+3>)7>5231*5)<4523,>.,3,>43)*6/-(.,)/*?F-/;4++3.*'3=/-<)*73O-.;,);43
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
O4-+/*3=.+3-4+O/*+)95436/-3O-)*,)*736/-3
,>43-4;4)O)4*,3<*/=+3,>43O4-+/*3=>/+43 =.+3-4I)4=4'3.*'3;>.*74+3O1,3)*3O5.;4?3
FXM3W304O,4(94-3(44,)*7T3
,>43=>/543,4.(?3U1(.*34--/-?
)*6/-(.,)/*3=.+3')+;5/+4'?3
R*+,-1;,)/*+3)++14'3,/3,>43+,.663-4+O/*+)95436/-3
*/,4'3O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3
O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*7?
-4O/-,?
$%!"G!$"$"&'()*)+,-.,)/*&3(4(94-3-4;4)I4'3.354,,4-3(4.*,36/-3.3 L143,/3M/I)'3D3O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*73 L.,.3F-/,4;,)/*3&;,3 &;;)'4*,.53')+;5/+1-43/63O4-+/*.53'.,.36/-33C4;)O)4*,3=.+3.+<4'3,/34),>4-3'4+,-/23/-3-4,1-*3
!"D!$"$""D!"%!$"$"F83W3̀1523(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
S
+/5);),/-3'4.5)*73=),>3,>43'4.,>3/63.*/,>4-3 O-/;4++3>.'3,/3943;>.*74'3=>4-49233$" #
(4(94-3,/3.*/,>4-?3R,3)+3>)7>5231*5)<4523,>.,3,>43)*6/-(.,)/*?F-/;4++3.*'3=/-<)*73O-.;,);43
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
(4(94-?
O4-+/*3=.+3-4+O/*+)95436/-3O-)*,)*736/-3
,>43-4;4)O)4*,3<*/=+3,>43O4-+/*3=>/+43 =.+3-4I)4=4'3.*'3;>.*74+3O1,3)*3O5.;4?3
FXM3W304O,4(94-3(44,)*7T3
,>43=>/543,4.(?3U1(.*34--/-?
)*6/-(.,)/*3=.+3')+;5/+4'?3
R*+,-1;,)/*+3)++14'3,/3,>43+,.663-4+O/*+)95436/-3
*/,4'3O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3
O-)*,)*73.*'3O/+,)*7?
-4O/-,?
 !"#!$"$"&'()*)+,-.,)/*0,.,1,/-23'4.'5)*436/-3)++1)*73/63&**1.53 @4.-3A*'3B14-)4+3+,)553/1,+,.*')*73.,3 C473#D3/63:EF03 ""H3/63L464--4'3(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3 &*.52+)+3/63,>43T%#K31*)++14'3+,.,4(4*,+3
$%! !$"$"$D!"!$"$"F83W3^;,3(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
S
84*46),30,.,4(4*,+3*/,3(4,36/-3.55345)7)9543 )++143'.,4?
C47+3$" 
+,.,4(4*,?
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
1*'4-,.<4*3,/3)'4*,)623.*'3)+/5.,43-4.+/*+?3A.;>3
(4(94-+
DK?$ H3/63&;,)I43(4(94-+3-4;4)I4'3.3 7-/1O394)*73=/-<4'3,>-/17>3,/3)'4*,)623=>.,3)+3
Y.*1.53;.5;15.,)/*3/63&**1.53&55/=.*;43
FXM3W3S/I43(44,)*7T3*/,4'3
+,.,4(4*,?3[T%#K3(4(94-+3')'3*/,\
6)71-4+3+,)553/1,+,.*')*73.,3)++143'.,4?
O/+),)/*T3.7-44'3*/,3,/3-4O/-,?
-4B1)-4'3,/34*.9543+,.,4(4*,3,/3943O-/'1;4'?
R++14+3=),>3'.,.3B1.5),2T3+1OO-4++4'3
S1(94-3-4'1;4'3,/3$%K3.+3.,3$"3^;,/94-T3=/-<3
+,.,4(4*,+31*,)53'.,.3;/--4;,4'3.*'3
=)553;/*,)*1431*,)534*'3/6324.-3,/361-,>4-3-4'1;43
.;;1-.,43+,.,(4*,+3;.*3943)++14'?
*1(94-31*)++14'?3

0123 41235678 039 7 26 6731 
 !"#!$" %&'()*)+,-.,)/*0,.,1,/-23'4.'5)*436/-3)++1)*73/63&**1.53
84*46),30,.,4(4*,+3*/,3(4,36/-3.55345)7)9543
(4(94-+

Page 61

jklmnop

c

deefgfhi

M!" !# # $%&'(')*+,*'-(Q,';2+/.*-.'))2/..&/&0/+).8'*4.,((2,;. :4/+/.,+/.*8-.&,'(.1,2)/).,).7-;;-8)Z.Q'(,(1/.$1*.# N [4/(.*4/.&/&0/+.+/1/'3/).,.ETT.*4/=. [/.4,3/.'))2/%.*4/.+/;/3,(*.ETT.*-.,;;..
E/()'-(.T,3'(C.T*,*/&/(*).UETTV.'(.*4/. &'))'(C.%,*,.,(%.)*,77.(-*.+/,;')'(C.,.
4,3/.*-.%/1;,+/.*4/.*,>.;',0';'*=.*-.\]GJ.3',.&/&0/+).,(%.4,3/.4,%.%')12))'-().8'*4.*4/&.
+/;/3,(*.=/,+)9.K(/.&/&0/+.8,).&'))'(C.,. )*,*/&/(*.)4-2;%.4,3/.0//(.'))2/%.
,(.,((2,;.*,>.+/*2+(9.:4/=.1,(./;/1*.*-. +/C,+%'(C.*4/.,1*'-().*4/=.(-8.(//%.*-.*,6/9
ETT.7-+.*4/."B!"W.=/,+?.-(/.8,).&'))'(C.,. 84/(.*4/.+/1-+%.8,).+/1,;12;,*/%9
/'*4/+.5,=.*4/.*,>.14,+C/.3',.,.T14/&/.
ETT.7-+."@!"X.,(%.-(/.8,).&'))'(C.,.ETT.
E,=).-5*'-(.-+.%'+/1*;=.*-.\]GJ9.O/1,2)/. [/.4,3/.)*+2CC;/%.*-./)*,0;')4.4-8.*-.+/5-+*.*4/.
7-+."@!"X?."X!"B?."B!"W.Y."W!# 9...
*4/.ETT.4,3/(L*.0//(.'))2/%.&/&0/+).,+/.0+/,14.*-.\]GJ.02*.8';;.+/)20&'*.*4/.,((2,;.
(-8.;,*/.)20&'**'(C.*-.\]GJ9.
\]GJ.+/*2+().7-+.*4/.+/;/3,(*.=/,+)9.[/.8';;.*4/(.
+/)5-(%.*-.\]GJ.,11-+%'(C;=9
[/.,+/.,8,+/.-7.&/&0/+).84-.4,3/.
'C(-+/%.*4/.'(7-+&,*'-(.8/.4,3/.)/(*.7-+.,. [/.4,3/.+/3'/8/%.-2+.'(*/+(,;.5+-1/))/).,(%.
(2&0/+.-7.=/,+)?.84/(.*4/=.%-.1-(*,1*. ,+/.*,6'(C.)*/5).*-./%21,*/.*4/.8'%/+.*/,&.,(%.
\]GJ.*4/=.,+/.,%3')/%.*-.A2)*.5,=.84,*.'). ,%%+/)).)-&/.-7.*4/.'))2/).,*.)-2+1/.+,*4/+.*4,(.
%2/9.:4/+/.,55/,+.*-.0/.(-.5/(,;*'/). 8,'*'(C.2(*';.=/,+./(%9.
,55;'/%9..
$.*,+C/**/%.8-+6'(C.C+-25.8';;.0/./)*,0;')4/%.'(.
O/1,2)/.8/.4,3/(L*.,%3')/%.&/&0/+).,*. *4/.)2&&/+.*-.,%%+/)).*4/.0,16;-C.-7.14,(C/).
*4/.1-++/1*.*'&/.*4/=.4,3/.0//(.2(,0;/.*-. 8/.C/*./,14.=/,+9.:4').8';;.'(3-;3/.*+,'('(C.,.
)&,;;.(2&0/+.-7.)*,77.-(.*4/.84-;/.$((2,;.
*,6/.,1*'-(.*-.&'*'C,*/.*4/.'&5,1*.'(.
)20)/R2/(*.=/,+)9.]/&0/+).'(.*4').5-)'*'-(.$;;-8,(1/.5+-1/))?.84,*.'*.')?.84=.'*L).'&5-+*,(*?.
-7*/(.)8'*14.*-.*4/.M !M .)/1*'-(.*-.+/%21/. */4.'&5,1*.-(.,77/1*/%.&/&0/+).,(%.4-8.*-.
25%,*/.,(%.&,'(*,'(.+/1-+%).1-++/1*;=9.
*4/'+.5/()'-(.,11+2,;9
$.5/(,;*=.-7.25.*-.^ .7-+.7,';2+/.*-.5+-3'%/.:4').*,)67-+1/.8';;.*,6/.+/)5-()'0';'*=.7-+.25%,*'(C.
*4/.+/R2'+/%.'(7-+&,*'-(.-(.*'&/.&,=.0/. &/&0/+.+/1-+%)9.K(1/.6(-8;/%C/.')./)*,0;')4/%.
;/3'/%.-(.S_EQ.84/(.8/.+/)20&'*.-2+. ,(%./&0/%%/%.72+*4/+.)*,77.8';;.0/.*+,'(/%.2(*';.
,((2,;.+/*2+().7-+.*4/.+/;/3,(*.=/,+)9. *4/.84-;/.*/,&.6(-8).84,*.')./>5/1*/%9.
M!#!# #"$%&'(')*+,*'-($.&/&0/+.1-(*,1*/%.2).*-.,%3')/.)4/.4,%. ]/&0/+.-7.)*,77.-(.5-)*.%2*=.*4,*.%,=. D,*,.E+-*/1*'-(.$1*. $11'%/(*,;.%')1;-)2+/.-7.5/+)-(,;.%,*,.7-+.".G/1'5'/(*.8,).,)6/%.*-.%/)*+-=.*4/.'(7-+&,*'-(9. M!#!# #"
&/&0/+.*-.,(-*4/+9.F*.').4'C4;=.2(;'6/;=.*4,*.E+-1/)).,(%.8-+6'(C.5+,1*'1/.8,).+/3'/8/%.*-.
+/1/'3/%.,.*+,()7/+.;/**/+.,%%+/))/%.*-. %'%.(-*.7-;;-8.*4/.,C+//%.5+-1/)).52*.'(.# "B
*4/.+/1/'5'/(*.6(-8).*4/.5/+)-(.84-)/. /()2+/.'*.+/&,'(/%.+/;/3,(*9.
,(-*4/+.&/&0/+./(1;-)/%.8'*4.4/+.-8(.;/**/+95;,1/.*-.5+/3/(*.0+/,14/).7+-&.
T*,77.8/+/.+/&'(%/%.-7.*4/.1-++/1*.5+-1/))9
'(7-+&,*'-(.8,).%')1;-)/%9.
4,55/('(C9
F(%'3'%2,;.&/&0/+.-7.)*,77.8,).)5-6/(.*-.
5/+)-(,;;=.*-.)*+/)).'&5-+*,(1/.-7.7-;;-8'(C.*4/.
1-++/1*.5+-1/))9
"!B!# #"$%&'(')*+,*'-(T*,*2*-+=.%/,%;'(/.7-+.'))2'(C.-7.$((2,;. J,;12;,*'-(.7,';'(C.*-.+2(.-(.)=)*/&9 G/C.BW.-7.IaET. WW9XBb.-7.D/7/++/%.&/&0/+).+/1/'3/%.,. BX.D/7/++/%.&/&0/+).&'))'(C.,.)*,*/&/(*.,+/. S!$
O/(/7'*.T*,*/&/(*).(-*.&/*.7-+.,;;./;'C'0;/. _/,+.<(%.R2/+'/).)*';;.-2*)*,(%'(C.,*. G/C).# "
)*,*/&/(*9.UBX.&/&0/+).%'%.(-*V
0/'(C.8-+6/%.*4+-2C4?.*4/)/.7,';/%.%2/.*-.*4/.
&/&0/+)
'))2/.%,*/9
W@9@b.-7.$1*'3/.&/&0/+).+/1/'3/%.,. )=)*/&.1,;12;,*'-(.(-*.+2(('(C?.,(,;=)').4,).
],(2,;.1,;12;,*'-(.-7.$((2,;.$;;-8,(1/.
)*,*/&/(*9.U"?"MB.&/&0/+).%'%.(-*V
'%/(*'7'/%.*4/)/.7,';/%.%2/.*-.%,*,.+/;,*/%.'))2/)9
7'C2+/).)*';;.-2*)*,(%'(C.,*.'))2/.%,*/9
$(,;=)').-7.*4/."?"MB.$1*'3/.&/&0/+).&'))'(C.,.
F))2/).8'*4.%,*,.R2,;'*=?.)255+/))/%.
)*,*/&/(*.').0/'(C.2(%/+*,6/(.*-.'%/(*'7=.,(%.
)*,*/&/(*).2(*';.%,*,.1-++/1*/%.,(%.
')-;,*/.+/,)-()9.<,14.C+-25.0/'(C.8-+6/%.
,112+,*/.)*,*/&/(*).1,(.0/.'))2/%9
*4+-2C4.*-.'%/(*'7=.84,*.').+/R2'+/%.*-./(,0;/.
)*,*/&/(*.*-.0/.5+-%21/%9
"X!W!# #"$%&'(')*+,*'-(]1J;-2%.%,*,.)/(*.*-.*4/.J'*=.-7._-+6.J-2(1';.:4/.8,=.*4/.%,*,.8,).4/;%.-(.*4/. D,*,.E+-*/1*'-(.$1*. F(7-+&,*'-(.7-+. .%,*,.)20A/1*).8,). $.(/8.5+-1/)).4,).0//(.'&5;/&/(*/%.)-.*4,*.*4/.S!$
UJ_JV.7-+.*4+//.)14--;).*4,*.(-.;-(C/+.2)/. ,%&'(')*+,*'-(.)=)*/&.%'%.(-*./(,0;/. # "B
8+-(C;=.%')1;-)/%.*-.*4/.J'*=.-7._-+6. %,*,.1,(.0/./,)';=.'%/(*'7'/%.-(.*4/.%,*,0,)/.
J_J.*-.5+-3'%/.*4/'+.5,=+-;;.)/+3'1/.U,;*4-2C4.*4/.+%.5,+*=.*-.'%/(*'7=.*4/.&/&0/+).
J-2(1';.UJ_JV9.J_J.').,.*+2)*/%./>*/+(,;. C-'(C.7-+8,+%9.:4/.5+-1/)).14,(C/.4,).0//(.
*4/=.4,3/.'(.*4/.5,)*V9.D,*,.7-+.,(.S_JJ. ,77/1*/%9
-+C,('),*'-(.,(%.'(7-+&,*'-(.8,).-(;=. 1-&&2('1,*/%.*-.*4/.8'%/+.*/,&
)14--;.U*4,*.4,).-5*/%.-2*.-7.S_JJL).5,=+-;;.
%')1;-)/%.*-.,.)&,;;.(2&0/+.-7.)*,779
)/+3'1/V.,;)-.)/(*.*-.J_J.,).'*.8,).'(1-++/1*;=.
1-%/%.-(.-2+.%,*,0,)/9.
D,*,.E+-*/1*'-(.$1*. F(7-+&,*'-(.7-+.-(/.%,*,.)20A/1*.8,). :4/.%,*,.4,).(-8.0//(.1-%/%.1-++/1*;=.-(.*4/. S!$
#B!W!# #"$%&'(')*+,*'-(]1J;-2%.%,*,.)/(*.*-.J'*=.-7._-+6.:+,%'(C. ]/&0/+.+/1-+%.1+/,*/%.-(.*4/.
8+-(C;=.%')1;-)/%.*-.J'*=.-7._-+6.:+,%'(C. ,%&'(')*+,*'-(.)=)*/&
UJ_:V..'(./++-+.7-+.-(/.J'*=.-7._-+6.J-2(1';. ,%&'(')*+,*'-(.)=)*/&.02*.*4/.8+-(C. # "B
I'&'*/%
UJ_JV./&5;-=//?.*4/./&5;-=/+.1-%/.-(.-2+. /&5;-=/+.1-%/.8,).,55;'/%
%,*,0,)/.4,%.0//(.)/*.25.'(1-++/1*;=9.:4/.
),&/.%,*,.7'/;%).,).*4/.'(1'%/(*.(2&0/+..
" " B@MW@@.,+/.'(3-;3/%9
#B!W!# #"$%&'(')*+,*'-($.&/&0/+L).;/**/+.8,).7-2(%.-(.,.5+'(*/+.02*.O/;'/3/.'))2/.8,).1,2)/%.0=.(/*8-+6. D,*,.E+-*/1*'-(.$1*. K(/.;/**/+.5+-%21/%?.1-(*,'(/%.8'*4'(. I/**/+.8,).%/)*+-=/%.'(*/+(,;;=.,(%.,.
8,).(-*.5+'(*/%.0=.&/&0/+.-7.5/()'-().*/,&9.,(%.)=)*/&.'))2/)./>5/+'/(1/%.-(.*4,*.# "B
S_JJ9.S-.-*4/+.;/**/+).,77/1*/%9
+/5;,1/&/(*.8,).+/P'))2/%.*-.*4/.&/&0/+9.
5,+*'12;,+.%,=.,(%.,).,.+/)2;*.*4/.;/**/+.
G/5-+*/%.*-.H/+'*,2?.,8,'*'(C.-2*1-&/9
5+'(*/%.%'+/1*;=.-2*.,(%.%'%(L*.R2/2/9
#@!""!# #"

S!$

EQJ.P.

#@!""!# #"

S!$

#@!""!# #"

#@!""!# #" X!" !# #"EO.P.S-.+/5-+*.7-+.%/7/++/%.$OT.
02*.%/1')'-(.%/;,=/%.-(.,1*'3/.
,8,'*'(C.-2*1-&/.-7.+/3'/8.-7.
&'))/%.-(/)9
EQJ.P.

S!$

T1-+/.-7. N!@!# #" B!N!# #"EO.P.$5+';.&//*'(C?.(-*/%.
5-)'*'-(?.,C+//%.(-*.*-.+/5-+*9
N.P.;-8
EQJ.P.̀2(/.&//*'(C?.(-*/%.
(-.72+*4/+.
5-)'*'-(?.,C+//%.(-*.*-.+/5-+*9
,1*'-(

S

M!!# #""N!"!# #"EO.P.G/R2'+/.72+*4/+.'(7-+&,*'-(. S
-(.&'*'C,*'(C.,1*'-().*,6/(.*-.
5+/3/(*.+/12++,(1/.0/7-+/.
+/,14'(C.,.%/1')'-(.,0-2*.
+/5-+*'(C.*-.*EG9.J-(7'+&/%.0=.
/&,';."!!# #".(-.(//%.*-.
+/5-+*.*-.*EG9
EQJ.P.G/1-&&/(%/%.(-.+/5-+*.
+/R2'+/%

35126 3 5
3 672326 0 33773 33773 263633771 3 672326
41936731 
731 3
3 26731  37  126 9
39 6 9326731 
0 6263 264 26
264
351267
0123 41235678 039 7 26 6731 
M!!# #""N!"!# #"EO.P.G/1-C(')/%.*4/.'))2/.8,). S
 !""!# # $%&'(')*+,*'-($.&/&0/+.1-(*,1*/%.2).*-.,%3')/.)4/.4,%. <&5;-=/+.)20&'**/%.)*,+*/+.7';/.,(%.*4/.D,*,.E+-*/1*'-(.$1*. $11'%/(*,;.%')1;-)2+/.-7.5/+)-(,;.%,*,.7-+.,.G/5-+*/%.*-.H/+'*,29.:4/=.,))/))/%.'*.,).I-8.+')6.
,(./&5;-=/+.-(/.+,*4/+.*4,(.,.
+/1/'3/%.*4/.)*,+*/+.5,16.7-+.,(-*4/+.&/&0/+.%,*,.4,).0//(.&'>/%.25.7-+.,.(2&0/+. # "B
(2&0/+.-7.&/&0/+).*-.,(-*4/+.&/&0/+9.F*.;/3/;.,(%.%'%.(-*.(//%.*-.0/.+/5-+*/%.*-.*4/.FJK9
02*.8'*4.4/+.,%%+/)).-(.'*9.:4/.&/&0/+.,;)-. -7.&/&0/+)?.,%%+/)).#@.+/1-+%)?.%,*/.
Q2(%.-(/9
').4'C4;=.;'6/;=.*4,*.*4/.+/1/'5'/(*.6(-8).*4/.D,*,.)/(*.0,16.*-./&5;-=/+.*-.5+-3'%/.1-++/1*/%.
-7.0'+*4."".+/1-+%)?.5,=+-;;.(-.#".
,%3')/%.*4/+/.8/+/.#.-*4/+.&/&0/+).
EQJ.P.G/1-&&/(%/%.(-.+/5-+*.
5/+)-(.84-)/.'(7-+&,*'-(.8,).%')1;-)/%9. '(7-+&,*'-(9.<&5;-=/+.,%3')/%.8/.4,3/.+/5-+*/%.
+/1-+%)?.%,*/.A-'(/%.B.+/1-+%).,(%.
,77/1*/%9
+/R2'+/%
:4/..-+'C'(,;.&/&0/+).4,%.%')12))/%.'*9. *4/.%,*,.0+/,14.,(%.8/L3/.,)6/%.7-+.1;,+'7'1,*'-(.
)14--;.(,&/."B.8+-(C
-7.84,*.5+-1/)).14,(C/).*4/=.4,3/.&,%/.*-.
5+/3/(*.'*.+/12++'(C9
G/5;,1/&/(*.)*,+*/+.5,16).'))2/%.8'*4.1-++/1*.
%/*,';).-(.,(%.1-3/+'(C.;/**/+.,%3')'(C.+/,)-(.7-+.
%')1;-)2+/.,(%.1-(*,1*.%/*,';).7-+./&5;-=/+9

Page 62

FG"HG

KJ9"!

%!H

"H
M12*0E+-D+3=TD+*E;/+=7,/4;0,93;46P0123+4+->+VD;4+-*+T
5+E+3021+,4-.-+12306+*9*+9-

%!H
KJ9"!c!"HH

12234356

LH 9!'!
N^-?@?OA??- M,-2*0:*+DD-.-Z+-/0,4;,7+-40-2*0104+-1+1V+*-D+3=TD+*E;/+X-d+,D;0,+*D->+*+-*+/+,436-/0,49/4+5-40-+,/07*9:+-D;:,-72Xe7*4Q+*-49*:+4+5-/0117,;/94;0,D-40-V+-7,5+*49W+,XNB-?@?OA??-M,-2*0:*+DD-.-f2+/;=;/94;0,->0*W-;,-2*0:*+DDX-d*0E;5+*-9220;,4+5-9,5-2*+3;1;,9*6-5+E+3021+,4->0*W-7,5+*>96X-

FG"HG
I#Hb!c!H

-

-

-

-

LH 9!'!
N?-?@?OA??-P0123+4+5-.-296*033-=7336-;,4+:*94+5->;4Q-+==+/4-=*01-R736-?@?O-296*033-*7,NB-?@?OA??-8,-Q035-.-U,9V3+-40-*+D07*/+-=7*4Q+*->0*W-0,-4Q;D-94-2*+D+,4X-Y+6-2*0/+DD+D-=0*-;,4+:*94+5-296*033-Q9E+-V++,-5+E+302+5-9,5- 9*+-;,-7D+X-Z;33-V+-*+D/Q+573+5-=0*-D711+*A97471,-?@??-

%!H

"#$

"H
LH 9!'!
P0123+4+-*033-074-0=-0,3;,+- N^-?@?OA??-M,-2*0:*+DD-.-C033-074->9D-297D+5-=0*-6+9*T+,5-2*0/+DD;,:-V74->0*W-Q9D-*+/011+,/+5->;4Q-07*-?-V;::+D4-+12306+*D10,4Q36-+12306+*-*+47*,D_/P3075-*+1+56-5949- N^-?@?OA??-M,-2*0:*+DD-.-̀Q;*5-29*46-+,:9:+5-40-/033+/4-9,5-E93;594+-5949X-a949-/033+/4;0,-7,5+*->96X-/033+/4;0,-

[!\]G

"H
M,4+:*94+5-296*033S7D;,+DD-2*0/+DD-*+T+,:;,++*;,:-

KJ9"!

 97 ! 

%"& !'(
)*++,-.-/0123+4+5-0*-,04-6+4-57+8*9,:+-.-0,:0;,:<-/9**;+5-=0*>9*5-40-?@??A?BC+5-.-074D49,5;,:<-0E+*57+-

789

FG"HG
IJJHJJH !!

gh
ijkl63m
Page

'!&
9 "-!!!.)*

#$%&$

'!&
.)*+!%&&

%&
J93341100675K6c972K6
1274545=68<756
/0<4?02A69U64K0514U40K6
1274545=6
6

'!&
.)*.)9%!

12234356

-& 9!,!
BD6DEDCFDD6 5̀6829=20@@6d6aT4<<@6=786757<A@4@6>92T6@14<<6196]06:938<010K6196057]<06761274545=68<756196]06:20710KR6eA375@695<45061274545=6 6
6
39KO<06829:O20K6196829?4K06]4106@4f061274545=6456<4506>41;6JH̀I\620NO4203051@R6
BP6DEDCFDD65̀6829=20@@6d6eA375@695<45061274545=639KO<06829:O20KR6
6

#$%&$
())& b!&

%&
-& 9!,!
3̀829?06W6A0726:7@;U<9>6 BC6DEDCFDD6 G;4@6;7@6]005618;O@;0K6]7:T6KO061961;06739O5169U6143061;060X10257<67OK416;7@617T056O8R66\5645102436O8K71;106>7@6820@0510K6196 6
U920:7@167::O27:A6
6
1;06HIJ6956CE 6a08103]026DEDCR66\639206:93820;05@4?06U920:7@16>4<<6]06820@0510K61961;06HIJ6956D^ 6_9?03]026DEDCR6

&*)!

#$%&$

%&
-& 9!,!
ZUU0:14?063757=0305169U6 BW6DEDCFDD6 G;0206>02065964@@O0@69U6:95:02564561;0680249K6O861961;061275@4149560?01;51R66\161;06143069U6>24145=61;061275@4149564@6829:00K45=6 6
3O<14[7@@016:20K4161275@414956 6
>0<<Y675K6@;9O<K6]06:938<010K6]A61;06143069U61;06HIJ6300145=6956D^ 6_9?03]026DEDCR6
6

9,

%&
-& 9!,!
/010234506788297:;6196 BC6DEDCFDD6G;06HIJ67=200K61;0650>645?0@130516@12710=A6956L1;6M72:;6DEDC675K61;06@108@620NO420K6196438<030516416956P1;6QO506DEDCR6 6
438<0305145=650>66
45?0@130516@12710=A66
S5K0217T06U20@;6@12710=A6 BP6DEDDFDW6G;4@620?40>64@60X80:10K619617T068<7:0619>72K@61;0605K69U6DEDDFDWY695:061;06DEDD6V7<O71495689@4149569O1:93064@6:<072R6
6
20?40>67<95=@4K061;06DEDD6
V7<O7149566
6

'!&
9 "-!!!.)*

789  97 ! 
"

#$%&$
())&*+!,$

gh
ijkl64m
Page

12234356



89
Page 65





CYMC;I@A:BCD
:8I@A:BCD
:B_?32:BCD
8_?QA:BCD
DbCBcZTV=2>:BCD
CBMCCcZTV=2>:BCD
:CeVS2J=2>:BCD
:B<2=>?@>A:B:B
CCMCYI@>ZX:B:B
:CI@A:B:B
:_?QA:B:B
CBH21T2J=2>:B:B
:cZTV=2>:B:B
C:cZTV=2>:B:B
:feVS2J=2>:B:B
:g_@3?@>A:B:C

:;01>5Q:BCD

:;<2=>?@>A:BCD

hi
jklm66n
Page

NO NO PO NO NO NO NO

!"
#$%

NO NO

9



PO PO PO PO PO PO PO NO PO O
O
NO NO NO PO NO NO NO NO NO
PO PO PO PO PO PO NO NO NO O
PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO O
PO PO PO PO PO PO NO NO PO O
PO PO PO O O O O PO O O
PO PO PO PO PO PO O O PO O
PO PO PO PO PO PO O O PO O
PO PO PO PO PO PO PO O PO O
O
PO O O O O O O O O
PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO O
PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO O O
PO PO PO PO PO PO PO O PO O
PO PO O O PO PO O O O O
PO O O O O O O O O O
PO PO PO PO PO PO O PO PO O
PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO PO

O

&'(
)(
"*)
'+,
-#$.
-'+/!
0!!
1*).

EFGHI2J=2>K
H1>53LH2J53@>M
E224K
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1ME224K
GEH0EVZ@Q0?TXV>5TA
[V3\2>23Z2]
[VTK^VQ4K
I@3@L2>^V>WKXV1
FQV=@Q`a?5TA
^V>WKXV1
I0[UV>WKXV1
d@5QQ52F5\\V>4
[V3\2>23Z2
d[GG[V3\2>23Z2
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1
GEH0R3S2KTJ23TK
[V3\2>23Z2]
`453=?>LX
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1
d[GG[V3\2>23Z2
GEH0[V3\2>23Z2
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1
R3S2KTJ23THT>@T2LA
UV>WKXV1




011234568

2#$5

234

O

NO
NO
NO
NO
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O
O

NO

NO NO

NO NO NO O NO
O
NO NO NO
NO
NO NO NO O NO
NO NO NO O NO
NO NO PO O NO
O O O O O
O O O O O
O O O O O
O O O O O
O
O O O
O
O O O O O
O O O O O
O O O O O
O O O PO O
O O O O O
O O O PO O
O O O PO O

NO NO NO

23',!
16
7!!
86*!*.9
7!!
86*!*.9

C3D2EFG23FHF>@F2IA
JK>LEMK1
C3D2EFG23FHF>@F2IA
JK>LEMK1
C3D2EFG23FHF>@F2IA
JK>LEMK1
VWH0WKQ@X0?FMK>5FA
YK3Z2>23Q2
C3D2EFG23FHF>@F2IA
JK>LEMK1
C3D2EFG23FHF>@F2IA
JK>LEMK1
^YVVYK3Z2>23Q2

:;<2=>?@>A;B;:
8P@>QM;B;:
:RP@A;B;:
:ST:UP@A;B;:
R[?32;B;:
:[?XA;B;:
RBH21F2G=2>\:
]QFK=2>;B;:



NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
NO

NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
O

NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
NO

NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
O

NO
NO
O
NO
NO
NO
NO

NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
NO

NO
O
NO
O
NO
O
O

NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
O

9



NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
NO

NO
O
NO
O
NO
NO
O

&'(
)(
"*)
'+,
-#$.
-'+/!
0!!
1*).

2._`)!*+,a3!4b'#$58#,9c.defg.defhb
3!',!a.defha.dedeb'!6a.dedec/!




!"
#$%



ij
klmn67o
Page

2#$5

O
O
O
O
O
O
O

234

O
O
O
O
O
O
O

011234568

O
O
O
O
O
O
O

NO
NO
NO
O
NO
NO
NO

O
O
O
O
O
O
O

O
O
O
O
O
O
O

23',!
16
7!!
86*!*.9
7!!
86*!*.9

op
qrst68u
Page

758^9 d>;<YLS<>L9
A:>B<=<>@<9

!"#$
 !%&%'
()*
56789 6:;<=>?>@<9
A:>B<=<>@<9
758^9
_689
A:>B<=<>@<9

12234356

kkkkkkkkkkkkkk lmn

9    

+,)-#.
/',)%
(01#$2"34')#!
CD9E9CF9 J?==K:LL9MKNO@PKBB<9 TO<9A:>B<=<>@<9UKPP9<VWP:=<9?9>HSX<=9:B9@H==<>L9KYYH<Y9:;<=9
LU:9Z?IYQ9UKLO9?9>HSX<=9:B9[<I9YW<?[<=Y\9]>PK><9?LL<>Z?>@<9
G?>H?=I9
M:L<PQ9
CDCC9
R:H=><S:HLO9 KY9?PY:9?;?KP?XP<\9
`9E9FD9
]>PK><99
]H=9_689A:>B<=<>@<9X=K>NY9L:N<LO<=9LO<9UO:P<9:B9LO<9ab9
W<>YK:>Y9K>;<YLS<>L9@O?K>9:>9LO<9KYYH<Y9LO?L9S?LL<=9S:YL\99
J?=@O9
TO<9W=:N=?SS<9@:;<=Y9<;<=I9?>NP<9:B9_68\99c<ZK@?L<Z9
CDCC9
<V@PHYK;<PI9L:9LO<9W<>YK:>Y9Y<@L:=\9
TO<9758^Y9_689A:>B<=<>@<9CDCC9UKPP9X<9?9ZKNKL?P9<;<>L\99
]HL9ZKNKL?P9WP?LB:=S9W=:;KZ<Y9^deW:U<=<Z9S?L@OS?[K>N9?>Z9
SHPLKWP<9U?IY9L:9@:>><@L9UKLO9I:H=9W<<=YQ9YO?=<9K>YKNOL9?>Z9
?@@<YY9LO:HNOL9P<?Z<=YOKW9B=:S9?@=:YY9LO<9K>ZHYL=I\9
d>B:=S?LK:>9:>9LO<9_689A:>B<=<>@<9CDCC9UKPP9X<9?;?KP?XP<9
Y::>\9
Cf9E9Cg9
_ZK>XH=NO9 ]H=9d>;<YLS<>L9A:>B<=<>@<9KY9UO<=<9Ad]YQ9T=HYL<<YQ9
d>;<YLS<>L9R:?=Z9J<SX<=YQ97<>YK:>9J?>?N<=YQ9hK>?>@<9
J?I9CDCC9
7=:B<YYK:>?PY9?>Z9LO<K=9?Z;KY:=Y9N?K>9K>YKNOL9:>9LO<9S?i:=9
L=<>ZY9?>Z9<;<>LY9<BB<@LK>N9ab9d>;<YL:=Y9?>Z9J?=[<LY\99j<9
X=K>N9LO<9UO:P<9:B9LO<9ab97<>YK:>Y9d>;<YLS<>L9@O?K>9
L:N<LO<=9H>Z<=9:><9=::B\9
J:=<9Z<L?KPY9@:SK>N9Y::>\9

de
fghi69j
Page
12234356

 !"# 9 
H-0(%)*+,('-./)01.2(3)456064*6(1@(./6(,+0I6@.()5(1.@(D14B(
B6B1*+.6B(.)(%)*+,(G)J604K64.($64@1)4(&*/6K6L((M.(1@(
+..64B6B(N2()J60(7<<(,)*+,(+-./)01.2()551*60@F(*)-4*1,,)0@F(
K6KN60@()5(%)*+,($64@1)4(O)+0B@F(+BK1..6B(N)B16@(+4B(
./610(+BJ1@)0@L(
C6(+06(6P*1.6B(.)(N6(06.-0414I(.)(5+*6>.)>5+*6(6J64.(+I+14(
5)0(%)*+,('-./)01.2(3)456064*6(;<;;L(
Q)06(B6.+1,@(*)K14I(@))4L(
E2K+4@(R)N60.@)4(S+*D+I6(T'@S106U()5()4>,146(.0+1414I(*+4(4)A(N6(-.1,1@6B(N2(Q6KN60@(>(VWXYZ>[X\Z]^[Z[[X_`[^YabY^c+4(N6(B1SS6B(
14(+4B()-.()5(+.(Q6KN60@(*)4J64164*6L(
(

 9
89 9  9 
  

$%&'( %)*+,('-./)01.2( 7(8(9(:-,2( =6>?606(3).@A),B(
3)456064*6( ;<;;( C+.60($+0D(E).6,F(
G,)-*6@.60@/106(

VW
XYZ[70\
Page



12234356


89    9997999  





!"#$
!%&'"(
9)"
("*$"$#+,

K3J63C3=>9>D23/1L/M;BB//
-./01234536/-7-8/
87/94:/;1<=>?/@9AA/
B3=CD1=/E<=F/G16HCI1J/ 9=F/N/16/E<=F/O9=9P36/QM;/
/
-R/01234536/-7-8/
87/94:/K341>3/433>D=P/ B3=CD1=/E<=F/;144D>>33/
J63C3=>9>D23/1L/M;BB/9=F/N/
S/O96TI/-7--/
87/94:/QM;/
B3=CD1=/E<=F/G16HCI1J/ K3
16/E<=F/O9=9P36/QM;/
/
U/O96TI/-7--/
87/94:/QM;/
B3=CD1=/E<=F/;144D>>33/









7889

XY
Z[\]71^
Page

21-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-56721-/34-567-

+L-./0-+1++-

M1-N?:9-+1++-

2-N?O0-+1++-

P-Q9EG93R9B-+1++-

S-Q9EG93R9B-+1++-

+T-U=H93R9B-+1++-

+V-U=H93R9B-+1++-

+-./BWD-+1+M-

M-./BWD-+1+M-

#$% &

12234356

89:;<=:->?:@-7=33<GG99-

89:;<=:->?:@-A=BC;D=E-

89:;<=:->?:@-7=33<GG99-

89:;<=:->?:@-A=BC;D=E-

89:;<=:->?:@-7=33<GG99-

89:;<=:->?:@-A=BC;D=E-

89:;<=:->?:@-7=33<GG99-

89:;<=:->?:@-A=BC;D=E-

89:;<=:->?:@-7=33<GG99-

89:;<=:->?:@-A=BC;D=E-

' 

F9EB9;9:G/G<H9-=I-6788-/:@-J=B->?:@-./:/K9B-567-

F9EB9;9:G/G<H9-=I-6788-/:@-J=B->?:@-./:/K9B-567-

F9EB9;9:G/G<H9-=I-6788-/:@-J=B->?:@-./:/K9B-567-

F9EB9;9:G/G<H9-=I-6788-/:@-J=B->?:@-./:/K9B-567-

& (" "!)*
F9EB9;9:G/G<H9-=I-6788-/:@-J-=B->?:@-./:/K9B-567-

7  9 9   98  

+,-./0-+1++-

! "

78979

This page is intentionally left blank

Description of Breach
Date
Category
31/08/2017 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Regulation being
Cause of Breach
breached
Large backlog meant we were unable to Reg 89 of LGPS
establish which category members
Regs 2013
should fall into at statement date.
Year End queries still outstanding at
issue date.

Referred
Referred
Outcome of Referral
to PFC
to PB
to PFC & PB
14/09/2017 19/01/2018 Noted the position, no
requirement to report.
Creation of Breaches Log to
record position.

Reported to
Regulator
N

Statements issued immediately.
Process under review by team leader.
Checklist created and process will be audited in
2018 to ensure checklist being used and process
being robustly followed
As soon as realised payment was unauthorised,
informed member and reported to HMRC.
Awaiting confirmation of scheme tax liability.

22/02/2018 19/01/2018 PB - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.
PFC - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.

N

22/02/2018 19/01/2018 PB - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.
PFC - Noted the position, no
requirement to report.

NReported to
HMRC

Backlog has been reduced so in a better position
regarding correct eligibility for statements.
Significant year end queries (2,399) have
impacted statement production. Ers being chased
for response.
Continue to work through errors & queries & issue
ABS' when able to.
Viability of monthly returns being investigated

22/11/2018 11/10/2018 PB - noted the position, agreed
not to report this time but will in
2019.
PFC - noted position, agreed
not to report this time.

N

Effect of Breach & Wider Implications
85.88% of Active members received a
statement = 14.12% did not
94.51% of Deferred members received a
statement = 5.49% did not

Response to Breach
Large backlog means we do not yet know actual
total eligible for a statement.
Continue to reduce the backlog with targetted
initiatives. Target is to have a controlled work
throughput by end 2018.
Continue to work through errors & queries & issue
ABS' when able to.
Introduce monthly returns for our 2 largest
employers by end of 2018 so that errors can be
identifed in real time rather than at year end.

2 members received statements after the
6/10/2017 deadline.
192 manual calculations undertaken and 56
statements issued.
3.5% of members affected
Member received benefits he wasn't entitled
to. No other member affected.
Payment is an unauthorised payment &
must be reported to HMRC, resulting in tax
liability at 55% for the member & additional
tax for the scheme.
86.52% of Active members received a
statement = 13.48% did not
99.76% of Deferred members received a
statement = 0.24% did not

Reported to
DPO
DPO
outcome

Human error

18/12/2017 Administration Incorrectly paid trivial commutation to a
member who has benefits with another fund
and had not commuted those benefits

Human error

31/08/2018 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Year End queries still outstanding at
issue date.

31/08/2019 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Year End queries still outstanding at
Reg 89 of LGPS
issue date.
Regs 2013
Clarification on members not worked in
year still outstanding at issue date.
Manual calculation of Annual Allowance
figures still outstanding at issue date.

100% of Deferred members received a
statement.
95.69% of Active members received a
statement. (1,342 members did not)

Analysis of the 1,342 unissued statements
undertaken to identify and isolate reasons. Each
group being worked through to identify what is
required to enable statement to be produced.
Number reduced to 329 as at 9 October, work will
continue until end of year to further reduce
number unissued. Final position: 329 unissued

22/11/2019 03/10/2019 PB - discussed position, noted
improvement from 2018,
requested further analysis by
employer to identify whether an
issue exists at individual
employer level.
Following provision of above
information both PFC & PB
agreed not to report this time.

N

09/04/2020 Administration A member's leaver statement was incorrectly
sent to the wrong member.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

15/05/2020 Administration A member's letter was incorrectly sent to the
wrong member along with their own letter.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

15/05/2020 Administration A member's calculation print was incorrectly
sent to the wrong member.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

26/05/2020 Administration A pensioner received a payslip which
belonged to another pensioner.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

27/05/2020 Administration A member received a letter meant for a
solicitor dealing with the death of another
member.

Due to Covid 19 printing and posting
process had to be changed whereby 1
person was responsible for printing for
the whole team. Human error.

Data Protection Act
2018

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

31/08/2020 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Year End queries still outstanding at
Reg 89 of LGPS
issue date.
Regs 2013
Manual calculation of Annual Allowance
figures still outstanding at issue date.
Issues with data quality, suppressed
statements until data corrected and
accurate statments can be issued.

11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
11/09/2020 09/07/2020 PB - July meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - September meeting,
noted position, agreed not to
report.
27/11/2020 29/10/2020 PB - Oct meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.
PFC - Nove meeting, noted
position, agreed not to report.

N

11/05/2020 Administration A member's retirement statement was
incorrectly sent to the wrong member.

Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Recipient was asked to either destroy or return
the information.Process and working practice was
reviewed and changes put in place. Instructions
issued to the staff responsible for printing and
posting.
Analysis of the 1,784 unissued statements
undertaken to identify and isolate reasons. Each
group being worked through to identify what is
required to enable statement to be produced.
Number reduced to 274 as at 20 October, work
will continue until end of year to further reduce
number unissued.

Page 73

08/11/2017 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing Personal
Savings Statements not met for all members

Reg 89 of LGPS
Regs 2013

100% of Deferred members received a
statement.
94.21% of Active members received a
statement. (1,784 members did not)

#

OFFICIAL

N

N

N

N

N

N

Description of Breach
Date
Category
30/11/2020 Administration A member contacted us to advise she had
received the starter pack for another member
but with her address on it. The member also
advised there were 2 other members affected.

05/10/2020 Administration Failure to issue 3 members with annual
Pension Saving Statements (PSS) in the
relevant years. One member was missing a
PSS for the 18/19 year, one was missing a
PSS for 16/17 and one was missing a PSS for
16/17, 17/18, 18/19 & 19/20.

Regulation being
Cause of Breach
breached
Employer submitted starter file and the Data Protection Act
data has been mixed up for a number of 2018
members, address 26 records, date of
birth 11 records, payroll no 21 records,
date joined 8 records and school name
18 wrong

There are two main causes as follows:
missing data and staff not realising a
statement should have been issued
when the record was recalculated.

Finance Act 2004

Effect of Breach & Wider Implications
Accidental disclosure of personal data for a
number of members to another member. It
is highly likely that the receipient knows the
person whose information was disclosed.
The 3 original members had discussed it.

Response to Breach
Reported to Veritau. They assessed it as Low risk
level and did not need to be reported to the ICO.
Data sent back to employer to provide corrected
information. Employer advised we have reported
the data breach and we've asked for clarification
of what process changes they have made to
prevent it recurring.
Replacement starter packs issued with correct
details on and covering letter advising reason for
disclosure and contact details for employer.

When the member receives a PSS they
have to declare the tax liability to HMRC via
an annual tax return. They can elect to
either pay the tax charge via a Scheme
Pays option or directly to HMRC. Because
the PSS haven't been issued members are
now late submitting to HMRC.

We have issued the relevant PSS to all 3
members and have had discussions with them
regarding the actions they now need to take.

We are aware of members who have
ignored the information we have sent for a
number of years, when they do contact
HMRC they are advised to just pay what is
due. There appear to be no penalties
applied.

Page 74

Member of staff on post duty that day
Data Protection Act
05/02/2021 Administration A member contacted us to advise she had
received a transfer letter addressed to another did not follow the agreed process put in 2018
member enclosed with her own letter.
place to prevent breaches from
happening.

31/08/2021 Administration Statutory deadline for issuing of Annual
Benefit Statements not met for all eligible
members

Calculation failing to run on system.
Reg 89 of LGPS
Year End queries still outstanding at
Regs 2013
issue date.
Manual calculation of Annual Allowance
figures still outstanding at issue date.
Issues with data quality, suppressed
statements until data corrected and
accurate statements can be issued.

17/09/2021 Administration McCloud data sent to the City of York Council
(CYC) for three schools that no longer use
CYC to provide their payroll service (although
they have in the past). Data for an NYCC
school (that has opted out of NYCC's payroll
service) also sent to CYC as it was incorrectly
coded on our database.

The way the data was held on the
administration system did not enable
the 3rd party to identify the members
affected.

Data Protection Act
2018

28/09/2021 Administration McCloud data sent to City of York Trading
(CYT) in error for one City of York Council
(CYC) employee, the employer code on our
database had been set up incorrectly. The
same data fields as the incident number
101008635966 are involved.

Member record created on the
administration system but the wrong
employer code was applied

Data Protection Act
2018

Data Protection Act
28/09/2021 Administration A member's letter was found on a printer but Believe issue was caused by network
was not printed by member of pensions team. and system issues experienced on that 2018
particular day and as a result the letter
printed directly out and didn't queue.

Reported to
DPO
DPO
outcome

Referred
Referred
Outcome of Referral
Reported to
to PFC
to PB
to PFC & PB
Regulator
05/03/2021 14/01/2021 PB - Recognised the issue was
N
an employer one rather than a
Fund one.
PFC - Recommended no report
required

05/03/2021 14/01/2021 PB - Require further information
on mitigating actions taken to
prevent recurrance before
reaching a decision about
reporting to tPR. Confirmed by
email 01/03/2021 no need to
report to tPR.
PFC - Recommended no report
required

We have struggled to establish how to report the
breach to HMRC but will resubmit the annual
HMRC returns for the relevant years. We will then
respond to HMRC accordingly.
We have reviewed our internal processes and are
taking steps to educate the wider team and
address some of the issues at source rather than
waiting until year end.

Because we haven't advised members at
the correct time they have been unable to
take action to mitigate the impact in
subsequent years. Members in this position
often switch to the 50/50 section to reduce
their pension accrual.

A targetted working group will be established in
the summer to address the backlog of changes
we get each year. This will involve training a small
number of staff on the whole Annual Allowance
process, what it is, why it's important, teh impact
on affected members and how to update and
maintain records correctly.

A penalty of up to £300 for failure to provide
the required information on time may be
levied on NYPF when we resubmit our
annual returns for the relevant years.

This taskforce will take responsibility for updating
member records. Once knowledge is established
and embedded further staff will be trained until the
whole team knows what is expected.

Accidental disclosure of personal data for 1
member to another. It is highly unlikely that
the receipient knows the person whose
information was disclosed.

Recipient was asked to destroy the information.
05/02/2021
Process and working practice was reviewed to
ensure it remained relevant.
Staff were reminded of the correct process.
Individual member of staff was spoken to
personally to stress importance of following the
correct process.
99.78% of Deferred members received a
87 Deferred members missing a statement are
N/A
statement. (87 members did not)
being worked through, these failed due to the
96.06% of Active members received a
system calculation not running, analysis has
statement. (1,158 members did not)
identified these failed due to data related issues.
Analysis of the 1,158 Active members missing a
statement is being undertaken to identify and
isolate reasons. Each group being worked
through to identify what is required to enable
statement to be produced.
Information for 330 data subjects was
A new process has been implemented so that the N/A
wrongly disclosed to the City of York Council data can be easily identified on the database
(CYC). CYC is a trusted external
going forward. The process change has been
organisation and information was only
communicated to the wider team
disclosed to a small number of staff.

Score of 04/06/2021 08/04/2021 PB - April meeting, noted
4 - low
position, agreed not to report.
no further
PFC - June meeting, noted
action
position, agreed not to report.

Information for one data subject was
wrongly disclosed to City of York Trading
Limited

The data has now been coded correctly on the
administration system

One letter produced, contained within
NYCC. No other letters affected.

#

OFFICIAL

N

N

N/A

26/11/2021 07/10/2021 PB - No report for deferred ABS Yet to be
but decision delayed on active
determined
awaiting outcome of review of
missed ones.
PFC - Agreed with PB
recommended course of action.
Further update on Active
statements is rqeuired.

N/A

26/11/2021 13/01/2022 PFC - No report
PB -

N/A

N/A

26/11/2021 13/01/2022 PFC - No report
PB -

Letter was destroyed internally and a replacement N/A
was re-issued to the member. Reported to
Veritau, awaiting outcome.

N/A

26/11/2021 13/01/2022 PFC - No report
PB -

Regulation being
Description of Breach
Cause of Breach
breached
Date
Category
19/11/2021 Administration One Pension Savings Statement (PSS) issued Record was inhibited from bulk annual The Registered
after statutory deadline of 6 October 2021
allowance run whilst a query on another Pension Scheme
record was resolved
Regulations 2006
Finance Act 2004

Effect of Breach & Wider Implications
Response to Breach
When a member receives a PSS they have Senior officer review of annual process
to declare the tax liability to HMRC via an
annual tax return. The deadline for a paper
annual tax return was 31 October 2021 so
the member could not use this option.
However, the deadline for an online tax
return is 31 January 2022.

Page 75
#

OFFICIAL

Reported to
DPO
DPO
outcome
N/A
N/A

Referred
to PFC

Referred
Outcome of Referral
to PB
to PFC & PB
13/01/2022 PB -

Reported to
Regulator

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 3
North Yorkshire Pension Fund
LGPC Bulletins Log
Bulletin Number

Action

Response

191

FCA publish video to help consumers understand
pension transfer advice
Please review your transfer communications to make sure
that your members are aware of this video before making
an election to transfer benefits out of the scheme.
Draft GAD guidance for the exit cap
Administering authorities are making comparisons
between their current strain cost calculations and the draft
strain cost calculation. Please make sure you use the
latest version when making these comparisons.
Non-Club transfers out - updated technical guide
Review transfer processes and correspondence to make
sure that we are complying with the rules and supplying
the correct information to members considering
transferring their benefits
Updated GAD Guidance
Review and update processes to ensure that they refer to
the latest version of the relevant GAD guidance.

On our ‘To Do’ list

204 – Dec 2020

206 – Mar 2021

210 – May 2021

213 – Aug 2021

214 – Sept 2021

215 – Oct 2021

216 – Nov 2021

Revaluation of CARE benefits transferred from a Club
scheme
Review end of year processes to ensure we can identify
leavers who have career average pension transferred in
from a Club scheme and award the correct adjustment

On hold awaiting 2022
Valuation

Completed – processes and
communications updated

On our ‘To Do’ list

On our ‘To Do’ list

Death grant distribution legal opinion
Review the legal opinion and consider its impact on your
processes and communications.
GDPR documents updated
Review the changes to each document and update your
local versions accordingly.

Completed - processes and
communications updated

Raising a query with HMRC
Review the guidance for raising a query with HMRC and
update our procedures if necessary.
Reporting multi small pot payments through RTI
Make sure we comply with the guidelines when reporting
multiple small pot payments through RTI.
How to avoid the Pensions Ombudsman
Review the guidance and check if we need to update our
complaint procedures and communications.
Pensions Dashboards
Start preparing for dashboard onboarding by considering
whether we wish to use an ISP to connect to the
dashboard ecosystem, cleansing our data and
ensuring we have adequate resources to prepare for the
dashboard connection.
Annual and lifetime allowance event report data
2020/21
Email from HMRC advising we can submit the annual
allowance event report data for 20/21 on an excel
spreadsheet as well as the lifetime allowance protections,
rather than through the event reports (by 31.1.2022).
Review the email and follow the instructions when
submitting the annual and lifetime allowance event report
data for 2020/21.

Completed – guidance
reviewed and changes made

Page 77
OFFICIAL

In Progress

Completed – payroll software
updated
Completed – info and links to
guidance saved for future use

In Progress

In Progress – email saved and
diary note made for 06/01/2022

Appendix 3
Pension scams: new restrictions on transfers
Review the TPR guidance and amend our procedures and
communications accordingly.
Finance (No.2) Bill 2021/22 - increase in the normal
minimum pension age (NMPA) to age 57 from 6 April
2028.
Consider the process changes and contact our software
supplier concerning the system changes that may be
needed to accommodate them.

Page 78
OFFICIAL

In Progress – working group
set up to review and amend
process
Completed –software provider
has it in hand

Agenda Item 10
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PENSION BOARD
13 JANUARY 2022
PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
Report of the Treasurer
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To update Pension Board members on the audit of the accounts, and the
publication of the Pension Fund’s Annual Report.

2.0

FINAL ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

2.1

At the time of the Pension Fund Committee (PFC) meeting on 26 November
2021 the audit was still ongoing. Covid related delays have been a national
issue, with only 9% of local authority accounts having been completed by the
deadline of 30th September.

2.2

The Pension Fund Accounts are a part of the Accounts of North Yorkshire
County Council so they are overseen by the Audit Committee of the Council,
rather than the PFC.

2.3

The PFC’s responsibility is in relation to the Annual Report, which includes the
Pension Fund Accounts. At the meeting on 26 November 2021 the PFC was
therefore only able to consider the Annual Report without the audit of the
Accounts having been completed. The report to the PFC, including the
Pension Fund’s Annual Report, is attached as Appendix 1.

2.4

The PFC approved the Annual Report 2020/21 at the meeting. Based on
legal advice, the document was published on the Fund’s website by the
deadline of 1 December 2021, even though the audit had not been completed.
A note describing the status was included on the website. The publication
date was 30 November 2021.

2.5

The audit was completed shortly before Christmas. The Council’s Accounts,
including the Pension Fund Accounts was signed off and published on 22
December 2021.

2.6

The finalisation of the audit process did not result is any amendments to be
made to the Accounts of the Pension Fund.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

Pension Board members to note the Annual Report 2020/21.

Page 79
OFFICIAL

GARY FIELDING
Treasurer to North Yorkshire Pension Fund
04 January 2022

Page 80
OFFICIAL

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE
26 NOVEMBER 2021
PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
Report of the Treasurer

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To ask Members to approve the Pension Fund Annual Report 2020/21.

2.0

FINAL ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

2.1

The draft NYPF Statement of Accounts was brought to the Pension Fund Committee
on 02 July 2021 for noting. At the time of writing this report the audit has not been
completed, however it is expected that the Fund’s auditor Deloitte will issue an
unqualified opinion in due course.

2.2

The final Statement of Accounts is included in the Annual Report (section 3). This
document is also subject to audit. Again, the audit is ongoing, with an unqualified
opinion expected. The Annual Report is attached as Appendix 1.

2.3

Each year Deloitte issue a report on the audit, identifying areas of focus and issues
that have arisen throughout the process. The latest version of this report is attached
as Appendix 2.

2.4

The main finding during the audit was an uncorrected misstatement of the Fund’s
investment assets (£9m understatement) due to an error in a Custodian accounting
report. As this was well below the materiality threshold, the accounts were not
amended.

2.5

Between the time of writing this report and the time of the Committee meeting it is
expected that progress will have been made on the audit. A verbal update will be
provided at the meeting.

2.6

From discussion with the auditor, we do not expect there will be any material changes
to the Accounts or the Annual Report, therefore Members are asked to approve the
Annual Report (which includes the Accounts) attached to this report.

2.7

Following Members approval, the Annual Report will be published on the NYPF
website. The deadline for publishing this document is 1 December 2021.

Page 81
OFFICIAL

4.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1

Members are asked to approve the Pension Fund Annual Report for 2020/21.

GARY FIELDING
Treasurer to North Yorkshire Pension Fund
NYCC
County Hall
Northallerton
17 November 2021

Page 82
OFFICIAL

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Annual Report
and Accounts
2020/21

Page 83

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Contents
Part 2 – Scheme Administration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Part 1 – Management
and Financial Performance

Part 3 – Investment Policy and Performance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

1.1 Introduction

Part 4 – Asset Pooling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14

North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC, the Council)
is the statutory administering authority for the
North Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF, the Fund),
which is part of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS, the Scheme). All aspects of the
Fund’s management and administration, including
investment matters, are overseen by the Pension
Fund Committee (PFC, the Committee), which is a
committee of the Council.

Part 1 – Management and Financial Performance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Part 5 – Pension Administration Activity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Part 6 – Membership, Contributions and Scheme Benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
Part 7 – Governance Documentation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
Part 8 – Training . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25
Part 9 – Glossary and Contact Details  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26
Appendix A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28

Page 84

Appendix B . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 59
Appendix C . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63

The purpose of the Fund is to provide retirement
benefits specified by the LGPS regulations for
staff working for local authority employers, and
other employers admitted by agreement, in
the North Yorkshire area. The regulations also
specify the member contribution rates as a
percentage of pensionable pay, with employer

contribution rates being set every three years
by the Fund’s Actuary. These contributions
are supplemented by earnings on the Fund’s
investments in order to pay retirement benefits.
The day to day running of the Fund is delegated
to the Treasurer who is the Corporate Director
- Strategic Resources of the Council and is
responsible for implementing the decisions made
by the PFC. Supporting him is a team of staff split
into two sections. The pension administration
team administers all aspects of member records,
pension benefits etc. and the finance team looks
after the accounting and management information
requirements of the Fund. All aspects of the day
to day management of investment funds are
undertaken by external fund managers.

1.2 Pension Fund Committee
PFC membership as at 31 March 2021 was as follows:
Members

Position

Voting Rights

John Weighell (Chairman)

Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Helen Swiers (Vice-Chairman) Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Mike Chambers MBE

Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Don MacKay

Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Clifford Lunn

Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Patrick Mulligan

Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Andy Solloway

Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Angus Thompson

Councillor, NYCC

Yes

Jim Clark

Councillor, District Councils’ representative of Local Government North Yorkshire and York

Yes

Christian Vassie

Councillor, City of York Council

Yes

David Portlock

Chairman of the Pension Board

No

3 Unison representatives

Union Officials

No

The powers delegated to the PFC are detailed in paragraph 2.1 of the Governance Compliance Statement
(see Part 7).
2

North Yorkshire County Council

3

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

During the year the PFC formally met on seven occasions supported by its Investment Consultant and the
Independent Adviser, as well as the Treasurer. The Committee meetings provide a forum for discussion about
economic and market trends, monitoring the performance of the investment managers and considering their
individual investment strategies.

1.3 Fund Administrators,
Advisers and Investment Managers
Treasurer
Investment Consultant
Independent Professional Observer
Actuary
Investment Adviser
Legal Services

Gary Fielding
Aon
Peter Scales (AllenbridgeEpic)
Aon
Leslie Robb
Ward Hadaway
Head of Legal Services, NYCC

Auditor

Deloitte

Banker

Barclays Bank

Page 85

Custodian
Performance Measurement
Asset Pool & Operator
Fund Managers

Bank of New York Mellon
BNY Mellon Asset Servicing
Border to Coast Pensions Partnership (BCPP)
Arcmont
Baillie Gifford
Dodge & Cox
Hermes Investment Management
Leadenhall
Legal & General Investment Management
M&G Investment Management
Newton Investment Management
Permira
PIMCO
Threadneedle Pensions
Veritas

AVC Provider

4

North Yorkshire County Council

Prudential

1.4 Risk Management
Risk management is the process by which the
Fund identifies and addresses the risks associated
with its activities. Risk management is a key part
of the NYPF's governance arrangements, and
the Fund has its own dedicated risk management
policy and risk register with key risks also appearing
on the Administering Authority's corporate risk
register. Risks are identified and assessed, and
controls are in place to mitigate risks. The Fund’s
risk register is reviewed every year by the PFC
and Pension Board and is monitored during the
year by officers. The latest review highlighted:

The Council's internal audit team regularly
undertake audits across different aspects of
the Fund's management and administration.
These findings are reported to the PFC and
Pension Board as appropriate. Assurance from
the appointed Fund managers is obtained
through the receipt of control reports.

(a) Fund solvency remains a high risk, despite
the improved funding position, due to the
unpredictable and volatile nature of global
financial markets on which both investment
returns and certain market based actuarial
assumptions used to value liabilities are based.
The potential consequence of the risk occurring
is a significant increase in contribution rates for
the Fund’s employers and/or an extension to the
deficit recovery period.

1.5 Accounting and Cash Flow

(b) Another key risk relates to the LGPS pooling
arrangements (see Part 4). This is a major
change to the way in which the Fund is managed
so should be considered a significant risk.

Further detail about how the Fund manages other
risks can be found in Note 18 Nature and Extent
of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments in the
Statement of Accounts in Appendix A.

Prior to the start of the 2020/21 financial year, a
budget was prepared for NYPF which detailed
the annual cost of running the Fund. A cashflow
forecast was also produced which detailed the
main inflows and outflows of the Fund in the
year, for example, contribution income, benefits
payable, transfers in and transfers out. The
budget was monitored at each subsequent
quarterly PFC meeting, and revised as necessary
to take into account the latest projections.

In addition, the approach to managing third
party risk such as late payment of contributions
is contained in the Pensions Administration
Strategy (see Part 7). Contributions received
from employers are monitored, the date of
receipt is recorded and appropriate action is
taken for late payments. For persistent material
breaches of this protocol, the employer may
be reported to the Pensions Regulator.

5

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

The total running costs of the Fund in 2020/21 were £31.5m against a budget of £30m, resulting in an
overspend of £1.4m, as shown in the table below:

EXPENDITURE

Budget
2020/2021
£000

Outturn
2020/2021
£000

Variance
£000

This analysis of expenditure that was reported to the PFC as part of the quarterly Fund management
arrangements has been analysed differently in the Statement of Accounts to comply with accounting
requirements and guidance.
The table below shows the 2020/21 cashflow statement for the Fund:
Actual Cashflow
2020/2021
£000

Admin Expenses
Finance and Central Services

430

415

-15

Provision of Pensioner Payroll (ESS)

140

138

-2

1,090

1,059

-31

50

60

10

0

0

0

270

244

-26

1,980

1,916

-64

Actuarial Fees

40

21

-19

Custodian & Performance Monitoring Fees

50

70

20

290

273

-17

Operational Expenses

70

143

73

Admin Expenses

-1,916

Pooling Operational Charge

600

711

111

Oversight and Governance

-1,281

Other O & G Expenses

100

63

-37

1,150

1,281

131

Investment Management Base Fee invoiced

2,200

2,812

612

Performance Fees invoiced

2,000

2,406

406

Employer and Employee Contributions

22,760

23,080

320

Transfers in (from other schemes)

26,960

28,298

1,338

TOTAL RECEIPTS

30,090

31,495

1,405

SCHEME SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT)

Pensions Administration Team
Pension Data Reconciliation
McCloud
Other Admin Expenses
Oversight and Governance

Page 86

Consultants Fees
Pooling Project Costs

TOTAL

The main reasons for the variances were:
•

Benefits
Pensions

-95,937

Lump Sums

-25,625
-121,562

Payments to and on account of leavers
Transfers out

Investment Fees

Investment Fees deducted from Fund

SCHEME PAYMENTS

Investment fees – Investment fees incurred in the year were higher than had been anticipated
when the 2020/21 budget was set, as they are based on the values of the Fund’s assets
and these have increased above the original expectations since the start of the year.

•

Costs were lower than expected due to reduced costs for the Pensions
Administration team and lower website review costs.

•

Oversight and Governance - Costs were higher than had been anticipated when the budget was set
against the Pooling Operational Charge. This is as a result of a partnership fund withdrawal from the
Pool (details under part 4 - Asset Pooling). Costs are now split between 11 and not 12 pension funds.

Refunds to leavers

-7,992
-387
-8,379

-3,197
TOTAL PAYMENTS

-133,138

SCHEME RECEIPTS
133,082
10,575
143,657
10,519

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Fees Invoiced Paid to Fund Managers
Investment Income from Fund Managers
Withdrawals and (Deposits) with Fund Managers

-5,219
4,786
-37,135

TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT

-37,568

SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) AFTER INVESTMENT

-27,049

CASH BALANCE B/F

138,897

CASH BALANCE C/F

111,848

The actual cashflow for the Fund in 2020/21 was a surplus of £10m.

6

North Yorkshire County Council

7

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Part 2 – Scheme
Administration
2.1 Administering Authority
Arrangements
The Fund’s administration is the responsibility of
Gary Fielding, the Treasurer.
Staff within the pension administration team are
responsible for administering the Scheme, including
the calculation and administration of benefit
payments and transfer values, recording employee
contributions, the maintenance of pension records
and communications with all stakeholders.

Page 87

Staff within the finance team are responsible for
maintaining the Fund’s accounts and investment
records, monitoring employer contributions,
preparing quarterly reports to the PFC, producing
the Annual Report and Accounts and acting as the
main point of contact with the Fund’s managers,
advisers and auditors.

2.2 Disputes Process
The Fund deals with disputes under the statutory
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP). This
is a two stage process and further information
is available on the Fund’s website at www.nypf.
org.uk/formsandguides/publications.shtml.
However, as part of the pension team’s customer
care policy, all questions raised are dealt with via an
internal process with the aim of resolving issues to
the satisfaction of the Scheme member as quickly as
possible. In 2020/21 eight cases were received via
the IDRP process. This represents less than 0.01%
of total work processed in the year.

8

North Yorkshire County Council

2.3 Pensions Administration
The NYPF covers the largest geographical area
in England and Wales and the varied methods of
communication utilised aim to tackle the challenges
when communicating with both Scheme members
and employers. Continued support has been
provided for employers to ensure they are confident
in carrying out their obligations under the Scheme.
Face to face support and guidance has been
provided and employers are encouraged to use the
dedicated employers’ area on the NYPF website.
An online portal to enable monthly data returns is
being rolled out which removes the need for an
annual year end return ensuring accurate data is
received promptly.
Following the Education Act 2011 there continues
to be a significant growth in scheme employers
converting to Academies. A dedicated NYPF contact
continues to provide schools with appropriate
actuarial information regarding employer contribution
rates and deficits.
Scheme members have access to a dedicated
telephone helpline and email address. The online
self-service module of the Altair administration
system continues to provide members with access
to their Annual Benefit Statements. Members are
also asked to use the online benefit projector to
carry out their own pension benefit estimates.
Although members are encouraged to use electronic
means of communication, NYPF still provides paper
versions of documents on request. This is felt to be
particularly important for members who may not
have access to, or wish to use, electronic methods
of communication.

2.4 Member Self-Service (MSS)

2.7 Data Quality

This is a web-based self-service facility which
allows members to update their contact details and
perform calculations. This facility has also been used
to allow electronic communication with members for
the retirement and estimates processes. As at 31
March 2021 there were 31,816 registered users.

The Pensions Regulator’s guidelines on data
collection and security have been applied by the
Fund and validation checks are carried out across
all areas of activity. Periodic checks are carried out
across the database continually to ensure that data
gaps or queries are caught in ‘real-time’. Other
validation checks are carried out at each year end
and queries are sent to the employer to resolve. This
has become more complex with the introduction
of the Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE)
Scheme as NYPF cannot validate CARE pay
provided by employers.

A small number of staff from employers
within the Fund have direct upload access to
the pensions database (with access to their
employees only). This allows them to carry
out basic pensions administration processes
(creating new starter records, updating hours
and personal information) and upload associated
documents. Work is monitored via a ‘task’
which is created on the member record by the
employer detailing what they have done. All
changes can be tracked through an audit report
which is run by the NYPF Processes team.

2.5 Electronic Annual Benefit
Statements
Active and deferred Scheme members can view
their Annual Benefit Statements online. The majority,
representing 98% of all statements, are delivered in
this way with only 1,682 being posted to members
in 2020/21.

2.6 NYPF Website
All essential information and guides are held on the
website at www.nypf.org.uk along with links to
further national guidance. Employees and employers
are able to use the website to refer questions to a
generic pensions email address which is specifically
resourced each day to provide a prompt response
to queries. An ‘Employers Only’ area provides a
central location to access forms and guides with
the facility to securely submit forms electronically.

In accordance with the requirements of the Pensions
Regulator the NYPF completed a data quality
assessment and scoring exercise resulting in data
scores of:
Common Data: 97.52%
Conditional Data: 94.95%
Common data is the set of data that is
defined as necessary and applicable to all
members of all schemes. This data is required
to identify Scheme members and includes
surname, date of birth, National Insurance
number and address. The Pensions Regulator
has identified 10 Common data items.
Conditional data is the set of data that is defined
as additional detailed data required for the
administration of a pension scheme. This data is
dependent on scheme type, structure and system
design. For example, employer, salary history,
contributions, transfer in details, etc.
A data improvement plan has been
developed to ensure the continued
improvement of the data quality.
Support is sought where appropriate from the
internal audit service in order to encourage
employers to maintain a consistent level of data
accuracy including validating any data before it
is supplied. Data is only accepted from named
authorised signatories after the appropriate
validation checks have been made.
9

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Part 3 – Investment
Policy and Performance
3.1. Investment Policy
(a) Regulations
❯ Threadneedle and Legal & General both
managed active UK Property portfolios
during the year through pooled funds
with the objective of outperforming the
All Balanced Property Funds index

(b) Investment Management arrangements

❯ Veritas and Dodge and Cox managed active
global equity portfolios in the form of a pooled
vehicle against the MSCI All Country World index

Page 88

NYCC is required, as the administering authority, to
invest any NYPF monies which are not immediately
required to pay pensions and other benefits. The
LGPS Management and Investment of Funds
Regulations 2016 set out certain restrictions as to
individual investments, the purpose of which is to
limit the exposure risk of an LGPS fund. Full details
of the investment policy are shown in the Investment
Strategy Statement (see Part 7).

As at 31 March 2021 the following investment
management arrangements were in place:
❯ Baillie Gifford managed an active global (i.e.
including UK) equity portfolio, namely Long
Term Global Growth (LTGG). This portfolio is
in the form of a pooled vehicle, rather than
being invested in segregated holdings. It is
managed without reference to a benchmark,
however the FTSE All World index is used
for performance measurement purposes
❯ BCPP managed a UK Equities portfolio through a
pooled vehicle against the FTSE All Share Index
❯ BCPP managed a global equities portfolio in the
form of a pooled vehicle against the MSCI All
Countries World Index
❯ M&G managed an active Gilts portfolio
comprising segregated fixed income
and index linked holdings, against
the “least risk” benchmark
❯ Hermes managed an active UK Property portfolio
through a pooled fund with the objective of
outperforming the IPD Other Balanced Property
Funds index

10

North Yorkshire County Council

❯ Newton managed a Diversified Growth Fund
portfolio during the year through the Real
Return (RR) pooled fund, with the objective of
significantly outperforming the cash benchmark

❯ Arcmont and Permira managed private debt
portfolios through pooled Funds, both are
managed without reference to a benchmark but
have an objective to significantly outperform cash
❯ Leadenhall managed three pooled Insurance
Linked Security portfolios, all have an objective
to significantly outperform against Money Market
Fund returns
❯ The Fund held a cash investment with NYCC
Treasury Management.
❯ BCPP managed an Infrastructure portfolio in a
pooled fund that has the objective to outperform
a long term absolute benchmark
❯ LGIM managed an equity protection
strategy against a proportion of the
Fund's global equity holdings.

❯ BCPP managed an active UK corporate bonds
portfolio through a pooled vehicle against the
iboxx Sterling Non-Gilts Index
❯ BCPP managed a private debt portfolio
through a pooled vehicle that has the objective
to outperform against a long term absolute
benchmark
❯ PIMCO managed an active global bonds portfolio
through a pooled vehicle without reference to a
benchmark but have an objective to significantly
outperform cash
The agreed asset class structure for the investment
portfolio as at 31 March 2021 was as follows:
%
Equities

50

Alternatives

22.5

Bonds

22.5

(c) Custody of Investments
BNY Mellon Asset Servicing is the custodian for the
Fund’s assets. There is one exception, being:
(i) Internally Managed Cash, which is held in
the Fund’s bank account with Barclays Bank,
Northallerton. Money in this account forms part
of the balance of funds invested by the Council
for treasury management purposes. A formal
Service Level Agreement exists between the
Council and the Fund so that the Fund receives
an interest rate return equivalent to that achieved
by the Council.

3.2 Performance
(a) Fund and Manager Performance
Pension Fund investment is a long term business,
so as well as considering the annual performance
of the Fund, performance over extended periods
in comparison to peers is also considered; this
principle is applied both to individual managers and
the overall Investment Strategy of the Fund.
The return produced by the Fund is a contributory
factor in setting the employer contribution rates. The
mix of assets within the Fund has been established
to generate the greatest possible return within
appropriate limits of risk.
Performance for the year was +0.2% compared to
the benchmark return of -1.5%.
Performance for the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund compared with the benchmark for 5 years
is shown below.
Periodic Performance

1 Year

5 Years (p.a.)

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

27.1%

13.1%

Benchmark

+17.0%

+7.1%

Performance against benchmark

+20.0%

-3.9%

The main services provided by BNY Mellon are
the custodianship of the Fund’s assets, including
settlement of trades and collection of income,
investment accounting, and performance
measurement of the fund managers.

❯ BCPP managed an active Gilts portfolio through a
pooled vehicle against the FTSE UK Index Linked
Gilts over 15 Years Index

11

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

The performance of the Fund as a whole and of the individual fund managers for the year to 31 March 2021
compared with their defined benchmarks is shown in the following table:
Fund Manager

Share of Fund as at
31st March 2021

£000

%

Share of Fund as
31st March 2020

£000

Fund
Customised
Performance Benchmark

%

%

%

%

(b) Analysis of Accounts
The Statement of Accounts for the year 2020/21 is shown at Appendix A.
The value of the Fund’s assets at 31 March 2020 was £3,542m, and this increased by £969m during the year
to give a value of £4,511m at 31 March 2021.

Investments managed by
Border to Coast Pension Partnership:
BCPP - Global Equity Alpha

+/-

Please note that full year performance figures are not yet available for investments managed by Border to
Coast Pension Partnership and LGIM Equity Protection.

1,208,259

26.8

813,510

23.0

BCPP - UK Equities

172,881

3.8

120,164

3.4

BCPP - Index Linked Gilt Fund

141,521

3.1

0

0.0

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

BCPP - Investment Grade Credit

114,983

2.5

0

0.0

£000

£000

£000

BCPP - Infrastructure 1A

9,223

0.2

8,549

0.2

Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members

10,518

-6,725

4,058

BCPP - Private Debt

5,332

0.1

0

0.0

Net investment return

-24,036

-9,792

-7,867

BCPP - Infrastructure 1B

4,418

0.1

0

0.0

Change in market value of investments

982,096

-17,152

250,447

BCPP - UK Unquoted Equities

1,182

0.0

833

0.0

Net increase/(decrease) in the Fund

968,578

-33,669

246,638

1,657,799

36.6

943,056

26.6
2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

£000

£000

£000

33,768,242

468,984

639,513

1,182

833

394,926

3,767,819

2,641,322

2,016,885

Pooled Property

279,864

276,103

288,502

Cash Deposits

105,209

138,523

220,042

2,129

2,727

4,136

4,493,885

3,528,492

3,564,004

203

42

-

16,025

13,001

11,200

4,510,113

3,541,535

3,575,204

Analysis of Fund Account over three years to 2020/21

Analysis of Net Asset Statement over three years to 2020/21

Page 89

Investments managed outside
of Border to Coast Pension Partnership:
Baillie Gifford & Co. - LTGG

761,048

16.8

595,897

16.8

-6.2

M&G Investments

341,823

7.6

473,067

13.4

4.2

Veritas

273,800

6.1

216,499

6.1

-6.2

Dodge & Cox

260,688

5.8

169,549

4.8

-6.2

PIMCO

192,755

4.3

0

0.0

LGIM Equity Protection

192,738

4.3

313,901

8.9

Threadneedle

173,158

3.8

170,226

4.8

Newton Investments

170,503

3.8

142,871

4.0

0.7

Other

NYCC Treasury Management

100,184

2.2

133,832

3.8

0.7

Total Investment Assets

Legal & General

72,281

1.6

70,474

2.0

-

Leadenhall Remote Fund

57,898

1.3

55,491

1.6

0.7

Leadenhall Diversified Fund

55,174

1.2

54,266

1.5

0.7

Permira

52,008

1.2

57,539

1.6

6.0

Leadenhall NAT CAT Fund

51,222

1.1

53,767

1.5

0.7

Arcmont (formerly Bluebay)

43,368

1.0

39,319

1.1

6.0

Hermes

35,015

0.8

35,993

1.0

0.1

Fidelity International

2,421

0.1

2,719

0.1

UK Equity Transition

2

0.0

0

0.0

Standard Life Investments - Equities

0

0.0

25

0.0

16,228

0.4

13,044

0.4

2,852,314

63.4

2,598,479

73.4

4,510,113

100.0

3,541,535

100.0

Internally Managed (cash and net debtors)

Total Fund

12

North Yorkshire County Council

-1.5

Fixed Interest Securities
Equities
Pooled Funds

Long-Term Debtors
Current Assets and Current Liabilities
Net Assets of the Fund

3.3 Voting Arrangements
The Committee delegated the exercise of voting rights to Pension Investment Research Consultants Limited
(PIRC) for all directly owned shares until September 2019 when all equity investments were made through
pooled investments. All voting rights are now delegated to the Fund's investment managers. Votes are
executed according to predetermined Shareholder Voting Guidelines agreed by the PFC. These guidelines
are aligned to the UK Stewardship Code and to best practice in other jurisdictions. The Fund monitors voting
decisions on a regular basis and a summary of the voting activity in 2020/21 is provided in the table below:
In Favour

5,609

Against

1,315

Abstained/Withheld

309

13

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Part 4 – Asset Pooling

The core principles of BCPP include the following:
•

One Fund one vote – so regardless of Fund size, all Funds will be treated equally

•

Equitable cost sharing

Background

•

Funds retain governance role and ownership of asset allocation

In 2015 the Government issued the ‘LGPS: Investment Reform Criteria and Guidance’ which
set out its intention to work with the 89 Administering Authorities in the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) to establish asset pooling arrangements with the following objectives
to deliver:

•

Generation of improved net-of-fees risk adjusted performance

•

Benefits of scale

•

Strong governance and decision making

•

Reduced costs and excellent value for money, and

•

An improved capacity and capability to invest in infrastructure

This has led to the creation of eight asset pools, significantly changing the approach to
investing. These regulatory changes do not however affect the responsibility for determining the
investment strategy which remains with individual Funds.

Border to Coast Pensions Partnership
BCPP is responsible for designing, delivering and operating a range of investment funds and services to allow
Partner Funds, BCPP’s shareholders and only customers, to implement their investment strategies. BCPP
develops a range of internally and externally managed investments across a range of asset classes in both
public and private markets. The team of 77 employees are based in Leeds.

Governance
The Fund will hold BCPP Ltd to account through the following mechanisms:
•

A representative on the Shareholder Board, with equal voting rights, who will provide
oversight and control of the corporate operations of BCPP. The performance of the
pool company is overseen by the shareholder representatives from each Authority
on an ongoing basis and formally once a year at the BCPP AGM.

In order to satisfy the requirements of the guidance issued by the Government, the Fund has
become a shareholder of the Border to Coast Pensions Partnership (“BCPP”, or “the Pool”).
BCPP is an FCA-regulated Operator and Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM), that
became operational in July 2018.

•

A representative on the Joint Committee which, as an investor, will monitor and oversee the
investment operations of BCPP. The Chair of each of the Funds’ Pension Fund Committees
sit on the Joint Committee. There is also a non-voting scheme member representative that
sits on the Joint Committee, who is nominated by the Funds’ Local Pension Boards.

The Administering Authorities of the LGPS Funds that are participating in the pool are a
combination of “like-minded” UK-based local government Unitary Authorities, Non-Metropolitan
County Councils and Metropolitan District Councils with total assets of around £50bn. These
are listed in the table below:

•

Officer support to the representatives above from the Officer Operations Group and the
Statutory Officer Group. Day to day oversight will be provided by these officer groups.

Page 90

NYPF Pooling Arrangements

Administering Authority

Local Government Pension Fund

Bedford Borough Council

Bedfordshire Pension Fund

Cumbria County Council

Cumbria Pension Fund

Durham County Council

Durham Pension Fund

The East Riding of Yorkshire Council

East Riding Pension Fund

Lincolnshire County Council

Lincolnshire Pension Fund

North Yorkshire County Council

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

South Yorkshire Pensions Authority

South Yorkshire Pension Fund

Surrey County Council

Surrey Pension Fund

Middlesbrough Council

Teesside Pension Fund

The Borough Council of South Tyneside

Tyne and Wear Pension Fund

Warwickshire County Council

Warwickshire Pension Fund

Pooling Costs
The Fund has incurred both set-up costs and ongoing costs since the inception of BCPP and these are
detailed in the tables below.
2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

Cumulative
Since Inception

£000

£000

£000

£000

Recruitment

2.7

17.1

Legal

4.2

26.6

Procurement

5.7

36.2

Other support (e.g. IT, Accommodation)

0.3

2.0

833.3

1,181.8

9.7

61.9

Set-up costs

Other working capital
Staff costs
Other costs
Total Set-up Costs

14

North Yorkshire County Council

348.5
191.5

357.6

443.9

1,027.8

540.0

357.6

1,299.8

2,353.4

15

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

2020/21

2019/20

2018/19

Cumulative
Since Inception

£000

£000

£000

£000

Transition Costs
259.0

259.0

Taxation (seeding relief)

1,143.4

1,143.4

Other transition costs

1,254.7

1,254.7

Transition fees

Total Transition Costs

0.0

2,657.1

0.0

2,657.1

During 2020/21 there were three transfers to BCPP's fixed income funds and there were no explicit costs
incurred. At this early stage no savings have yet been realised. These savings are expected to be realised in
the longer term. The set-up and transition into the different sub-funds is expected to involve several years of
upfront costs before savings can be achieved. In the July 2016 submission to MHCLG it was estimated that
the pool overall would recover its costs and start to achieve savings within two to five years.
BCPP is taking a phased approach to the launch of its investment funds. It is therefore expected that the
transitioning of the Fund’s assets will continue over a number of years. In 2021/22 transitions are expected to
take place into BCPP’s fixed income investments and Listed Alternatives.

The number of staff (in FTE terms) at the Council involved in pension administration was 30.77
completing an average of 3,376 cases each. The ratio of members to full time equivalent staff is
3,305:1. The NYPF has a net operating cost of £15.24 per member whilst the average operating
cost for all authorities was £30.25 as calculated by the annual CIPFA benchmarking exercise.
(a) Key Performance Indicators
The Local Government Pensions Committee has defined a range of performance indicators through which
Funds can be compared. NYPF’s performance in these areas for the year to 31 March 2021 is shown here:
Performance Indicator

LGPC Target

Page 91

In addition to the set up costs above there are also ongoing costs that have been incurred in 2020/21.
The table below compares costs within and outside of the pool:
Asset Pool

Non-asset Pool

Fund Total

£000

£000

£000

4,186

11,720

15,906

2,417

2,417

Management fees

- Performance

10 days

94.90

Letter detailing transfer out quote

10 days

92.11

5 days

94.12

10 days

93.98

Letter notifying actual retirement benefits

5 days

86.23

Process and pay lump sum retirement grant

5 days

86.23

Initial letter acknowledging death of active/deferred/pensioner member

5 days

31.97

Letter notifying amount of dependant’s benefits

5 days

31.97

10 days

79.03

Process and pay refund

Calculate and notify deferred benefits

For the year ending 31 March 2021, 93% of customers surveyed ranked the service provided
by the NYPF as good or excellent.

Transaction costs

1782

3,649

5,431

(b) Benefit Calculation Activity

Other costs

1157

3,878

5,035

Total

7,125

21,664

28,789

The number of cases processed during the year
requiring benefit calculations is shown here:
Task

4,685

Transfers In

271

Refunds

936

Frozen Refunds

656

AVCs/ARCs
Divorce cases
Deaths in Service
Deaths of Pensioners

North Yorkshire County Council

Number

Retirements

Preserved Benefits

16

Achieved (%)

Letter detailing transfer in quote

Letter notifying estimate of retirement benefits

Ongoing costs

- Ad valorem

Part 5 – Pension
Administration Activity

1,936
0
202
34
681

17

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

(c) Administration

•

Encouraged members to plan for their retirement
by promoting the use of the benefit calculators
available online via member self-service

•

Develop relationships with new employers
to support them with the requirements of
the LGPS. There continues to be significant
growth in scheme employers largely in respect
of schools converting to Academies

The total numbers of joiners and leavers during
2020/21 were:
Joining

8,246

Retiring
Incapacity

38

Normal Retirement Date (NRD)

157

Pre NRD

609

•

Offering guidance and support to all employers

Post NRD

653

•

Dedicated newsletter for retired members

Redundancy/Efficiency

80

•

Flexible

42

Roll out of online employer portal
for monthly data collection

Deaths

777

Other Leavers

6,389

Page 92

The performance and activity reflect the efforts the
pension administration team goes to in providing
a first class service to the Fund membership.
NYPF continues to encourage all stakeholders to
utilise technology effectively in all communications.
Examples of this over 2020/21 include:
•

Continued to promote online member self-service
and encourage members to check their online
Annual Benefit Statement, paying particular
attention to their Career Average Benefits

Administration activity statistics are compiled for
national benchmarking purposes and are based
on tasks undertaken by the pension administration
team; therefore they will not reflect numbers
reported elsewhere.

Part 6 – Membership,
Contributions and
Scheme Benefits
6.1 Membership
NYCC operates the NYPF for its own employees (excluding teachers) together with those of the other local
authorities within the County area, and certain other bodies eligible to join the Fund, under the terms of the
LGPS regulations. The Fund does not cover teachers, uniformed police or fire-fighters for which separate
statutory arrangements exist.
Membership of the LGPS is not compulsory, although employees who are 16 years old or over are
automatically admitted to the Scheme unless they elect otherwise.
Employees therefore have various options to provide a pension in addition to the new State Pension:
•

to be a member of the NYPF

•

to purchase a personal pension plan or a stakeholder pension managed by a private sector company

The following table summarises the membership of the NYPF over the past 5 years:
Membership Type

31 March 2017

31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

31 March 2021

Current contributors

33,559

33,110

33,462

33,403

33,640

Deferred pensions

33,147

35,799

37,207

38,848

38,836

Pensioners receiving benefits

20,441

21,462

22,724

24,181

25,419

1,959

3,813

Undecided leavers

6.2 Contributions
The Fund is financed by contributions from both members and employers, together with income earned
from investments. The surplus of income received from these sources, net of benefits and other expenses
payable, is invested as described in the Investment Strategy Statement (see Part 7).
The total contributions received for 2020/21 on an accruals basis were £133m, and NYCC being the main
employer in the Fund contributed £57.9m. Employer contributions are set every three years by the Actuary
as part of the Triennial Valuation. The last Triennial Valuation took place as at 31 March 2019, at which the
funding level of the Fund was reported as 114% (90% as at 31 March 2016) by the actuary.
Details of the employer contribution rates can be seen in the latest Valuation Report by following this link:
www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/Actuarial%20valuation%20report%202019.pdf

18

North Yorkshire County Council

19

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

6.3 Employer Analysis
At 31 March 2021 there were 129 contributing employer organisations within NYPF including the County
Council. Full details of all employers can be found in the Statement of Accounts (see Part 7).
The following table summarises the number of employers in the fund analysed by scheduled bodies and
admitted bodies which are active (with active members) and ceased (no active members but with some
outstanding liabilities).
Active

Ceased

Total

Scheduled

86

0

86

Admitted Body

48

5

43

Total

134

5

129

6.4 Member Rates
For member contributions a banded structure has
been in place since April 2008 linked to the rate
of pensionable pay a member receives. The band
ranges were updated in April 2019 as follows:

Page 93

Band

Range

Contribution rate

1

£0 to £14,400

5.5%

2

£14,401 to £22,500

5.8%

3

£22,501 to £36,500

6.5%

4

£36,501 to £46,200

6.8%

5

£46,201 to £64,600

8.5%

6

£64,601 to £91,500

9.9%

7

£91,501 to £107,700

10.5%

8

£107,701 to £161,500

11.4%

9

£161,501 or more

12.5%

The employer has the discretion to decide how often
the contribution rate is changed if the pensionable
pay of the member changes. This will usually be
once a year, or where there are contractual changes
to a member's post(s).
Employers’ contributions are determined in a
cycle every three years by a Triennial Valuation.
The valuation assesses the contributions required
to meet the cost of pension benefits payable as
they are earned, as well as additional contributions
employers may be required to pay to address any
deficit relating to previous years. Further details,
including a list of each employer’s minimum

20

North Yorkshire County Council

contributions following the 2019 Valuation are shown
at www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/Actuarial%20
valuation%20report%202019.pdf

6.5 Scheme Benefits
The LGPS is a comprehensive scheme providing
a wide range of benefits for members and their
families. This summary does not give details of all
the benefits provided by the Scheme or of all the
specific conditions that must be met before these
benefits can be paid. More detailed information,
including the Scheme booklet ‘A Long Guide to the
Local Government Pension Scheme for Employees
in England and Wales’, can be found on the NYPF
website at www.nypf.org.uk/formsandguides/
schemeguides.shtml. A paper copy can be
requested by ringing the NYPF at County Hall,
Northallerton on 01609 536335.
Normal Pension Age
The Normal Pension Age is a member’s State
Pension Age for both men and women (earlier
voluntary retirement is allowed from age 55 but
benefits are reduced for early payment). However,
some members have a protected Normal Pension
Age of 65 years.
On retirement, both a pension and a lump sum
retirement grant are payable for service up to 31
March 2008. For service from 1 April 2008 only a

pension is payable, with no automatic lump sum.
However, members do have the option to convert an
amount of pension to a lump sum.
Pension (Normal)
The calculation of pension benefits depends on
the dates of membership involved. From 1 April
2014 the LGPS changed to a Career Average
Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme. The pension
for membership from 1 April 2014 is worked out as
1/49th of pensionable pay for each year.
For membership up to 31 March 2014 benefits
are worked out on a ‘final salary’ basis. A normal
pension is based on the full time equivalent
pensionable pay received in the last year of service,
or the better of the two previous years, if this gives
a higher figure. Also, applicable from 1 April 2008,
members who have a reduction in their pensionable
pay in the last 10 years (up to date of retirement) can
base benefits on the average of any 3 consecutive
years in the last 13 years. Pensions are calculated as
1/80th for each year of membership of the scheme
for service up to 31 March 2008 and as 1/60th for
service between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014.
Pension (Ill Health)
An ill health pension is based on the full time
equivalent pensionable pay received in the last year
of service and a split of the 80ths and 60ths accrual
for membership up to 31 March 2014. A pension of
1/49th of pensionable pay applies for membership
from 1 April 2014 onwards. There are three tiers of
ill health benefits depending on whether a member
can carry out any gainful employment before their
Normal Pension Age.
First Tier:
If it is unlikely that the member will be capable of
gainful employment before Normal Pension Age
(NPA), LGPS service is enhanced by 100% of the
remaining potential pension to NPA. This is based
on 1/49th of an ‘Assumed Pensionable Pay’ figure
which is a calculation of the pensionable pay on a
prescribed basis for the period between the date of
retirement and NPA.

Second Tier:
If it is unlikely that the member will be capable
of gainful employment within 3 years of leaving
but is likely to be capable of undertaking gainful
employment before reaching NPA, LGPS service is
enhanced by 25% of the remaining potential pension
to NPA.
Third Tier:
If it is likely that the member will be capable
of undertaking some gainful employment
within 3 years of leaving the member receives
payment of the benefits built up to the date
of leaving with no enhancement. The benefits
are only payable for a maximum period of 3
years (reviewed at 18 months to assess any
improvement or deterioration in health).
Lump Sum Retirement Grant
For service prior to 31 March 2008, the lump
sum retirement grant is calculated as 3/80ths
for each year of service, with an appropriate
enhancement in respect of ill health. For service
after this date there is no automatic lump sum,
however, pension entitlement can be converted
to a lump sum at the rate of £1 of pension for
£12 of lump sum retirement grant. A maximum
lump sum of 25% of the capital value of the
benefits accrued in the scheme can be taken.

Death Grant
Death in Service
A lump sum death grant usually equal to three times
pensionable pay, worked out on a prescribed basis
known as ‘Assumed Pensionable Pay’, would be
payable to the member’s spouse or nominee.
If a member has a deferred benefit and / or a
pension in payment from a previous period of
membership, the lump sum death grant will be
the greater of any lump sum death grant payable
in respect of those benefits or the death in service
lump sum death grant of three times their assumed
pensionable pay.

21

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Death after Retirement

Children’s Pension

A death grant is payable in certain circumstances
where death occurs after retirement. Retirement
pensions are guaranteed for ten years and
where death occurs within that period, and the
pensioner dies before age 75, a death grant
is payable. This provision only applies to a
pensioner member who has a period of active
membership in the Scheme on or after 1 April
2008. For pensioners who retired prior to this
date the guarantee is limited to five years.

Each child under age 18, or still in full-time education
and under age 23, will receive a proportion of the
spouse’s, civil partner’s or cohabiting partner's
pension depending on the number of eligible
children and whether or not a spouse’s, civil
partner’s or cohabiting partner's pension is payable.

Death of a member with
Preserved Benefits
A lump sum death grant equal to the current value
of the deferred retirement lump sum for leavers prior
to 1 April 2008, or five times the preserved annual
pension for leavers on or after this date is payable to
the member’s spouse or nominee.

Page 94

Spouses, civil partners and eligible cohabiting
partners pensions
Any surviving spouse, cohabiting partner or civil
partner is entitled to a pension based on 1/160th of
the member’s final pay for each year of service up
to 31 March 2014. For membership from 1 April
2014 the surviving spouse, cohabiting partner or civil
partner is entitled to a pension based on 1/160th of
career average pensionable pay.
Benefits are payable to a cohabiting partner
provided the member paid into the LGPS on or
after 1 April 2008 and subject to certain qualifying
conditions being met.
The pension available to a cohabiting partner is
based on post April 1988 membership only (unless
the member elected to pay additional contributions
to make any pre April 1988 membership count).

22

North Yorkshire County Council

Pension Increases
Pensions are increased in accordance with the
Pensions (Increase) Act 1971. All pensions paid from
the scheme are protected against inflation, rising in
line with the Consumer Price Index.

Part 7 – Governance
Documentation
The main governance documentation is as follows:

The ISS must include:

•

Investment Strategy Statement link is
www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/
Investment%20Strategy%20
Statement_v3.0_July%202021.pdf

•

A requirement to invest money in a
wide variety of investments;

•

The authority’s assessment of the suitability of
particular investments and types of investments;

•

Governance Compliance Statement
link is www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/
Governance%20Compliance%20
Statement_v1.4_April%202021.pdf

•

The authority’s approach to risk,
including the ways in which risks are
to be measured and managed;

•

Funding Strategy Statement link is
www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/
FSS_%20Aug%202020.pdf

•

The authority’s approach to pooling
investments, including the use of collective
investment vehicles and shared services;

•

Communications Policy link is
www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/
Atch%206%20-%20Comms%20
Policy_v1.3_April%202021.doc.pdf

•

The authority’s policy on how social,
environmental or corporate governance
considerations are taken into account
in the selection, non-selection, retention
and realisation of investments; and

•

Pension Administration Strategy link is www.
nypf.org.uk/Documents/Atch%201%20-%20
Admin%20Strategy_v1.3_April%202021.pdf

•

The authority’s policy on the exercise of rights
(including voting rights) attaching to investments.

•

Employer Charging Policy link is
www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/
Atch%205%20-%20Charging%20
Policy_v1.3_April%202021.pdf

AVCs
A facility is available for scheme members to make
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs). The PFC
has appointed Prudential as the nominated provider
for this purpose. Further details are available from
the Prudential on 0345 600 0343. Lines are open
Monday - Friday, 8.30am - 6.00pm.

All of these documents can be found on the
NYPF website at www.nypf.org.uk/nypf/
policiesandstrategies.shtml

(b) Governance Compliance Statement
Under the LGPS Regulations 2013 (as amended),
an administering authority is required to publish a
document describing how the Fund must assess
its governance arrangements and compliance with
any principles listed in the guidance. The main areas
covered by this are:
•

Governance arrangements

A short summary of each document is included here.
The full documents are available on the links above.

•

Representation and meetings

•

Operational procedures

(a) Investment Strategy Statement

•

Key policy / strategy documents

Regulation 7 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016 (the Regulations) requires
administering authorities to formulate, publish and
maintain an Investment Strategy Statement (ISS).

•

Assessment of compliance with
best practice principles

23

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

(c) Funding Strategy Statement

(e) Pensions Administration Strategy

The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) has been
prepared in accordance with Regulation 58 of
the LGPS Regulations 2013 (as amended) and
the guidance papers issued in March 2004 and
November 2004 by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The main
purpose is to:

This document sets out the administration protocols
that have been agreed between the Fund and its
employers. It includes the responsibilities and duties
of the employer and NYPF, performance levels,
communications and charging policy.

•

establish a clear and transparent Fund-specific
Strategy which will identify how employers’
pension liabilities are best met going forward

•

support the regulatory requirement to
maintain contribution rates for employers
as nearly constant as possible

•

take a prudent longer-term view
of funding those liabilities

Page 95

In addition to this, the Funding Strategy
Statement covers:
•

responsibilities of the key parties

•

solvency issues and target funding levels

•

link to Investment Strategy set out in the
Statement of Investment Principles

•

identification of risks and counter measures

•

method and assumptions and results
of the 2019 actuarial valuation

(d) Communications Policy
This document sets out the communication
strategy for communication with members,
members’ representatives, prospective members
and employing authorities; and for the promotion
of the Scheme to prospective members and their
employing authorities.

24

North Yorkshire County Council

NYPF’S Local Pension Board is responsible for
assisting the Fund in securing compliance with the
regulations, and to ensure the efficient and effective
governance and administration of the LGPS. The
Pension Board therefore has an oversight role in the
governance of the Fund. The Board produces its
own Annual Report each year that details its roles
and responsibilities and activities over the year. This
can be found on the NYPF website at https://www.
nypf.org.uk/Documents/Pension%20Board%20
-%20Annual%20Report%202018-19.pdf

Part 8 – Training
8.1 Public Sector Pensions –
Finance Knowledge and Skills
The PFC recognises the importance of ensuring that
all Members and officers charged with the financial
management, governance and decision-making with
regard to the pension scheme are fully equipped with
the knowledge and skills to discharge their duties
and responsibilities. The PFC also seeks to ensure
that those Members and officers are both capable
and experienced by making available the training
necessary for them to acquire and maintain the
appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills.
Following the issue of CIPFA guidance “Pensions
Finance Knowledge and Skills Frameworks” the PFC
provides routes through which the recommended
knowledge and skills set out in the guidance may be
acquired, as described below.

8.2. Training for Pension Fund
Committee Members and Officers
(i) Internally Provided
Six Investment Strategy workshops were held
throughout the year, all of which were well attended
by PFC Members and officers of the Fund.
During the year Members and officers also made
use of the CIPFA Knowledge & Skills resource library
and accessed the Trustee Needs Analysis (TNA)
where appropriate, which is aimed at identifying
gaps in knowledge and skills, as a complement to
alternative training resources.

(ii) Externally Provided
In addition to the training provided through
workshops as described previously, Members
and officers are encouraged to attend courses,
conferences and other events supplied by
organisations other than the Council. These events
provide a useful source of knowledge and guidance
from speakers who are experts in their field.
Attendance at these events is recorded and reported
to the PFC each quarter.
Events attended by PFC Members
during 2020/21 were:
Event

Place

Date

BCPP Conference

virtual

2 Oct 2020

PLSA Conference

virtual

12 - 16 Oct 2020

Details of the training undertaken by Members
is recorded and reported at each PFC
meeting. The latest report can be found
by looking in the appendix to the pensions
administration report in the link below:
https://edemocracy.northyorks.gov.uk/documents/
s7285/Appendix%206%20-%20Member%20
Training%20Log.docx.pdf

25

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Part 9 – Glossary
and Contact Details
Active member:
Current employee who is
contributing to a pension scheme.
Actuary:
An independent professional
who advises the Council on the
financial position of the Fund.

Page 96

Every three years the Actuary
values the assets and liabilities
of the Fund and determines the
funding level and the employers’
contribution rates.
Additional Voluntary
Contributions (AVC):
An option available to active
members to secure additional
pension benefits by making
regular contributions to separately
held investment funds managed
by the Fund’s AVC provider.
Administering Authority:
North Yorkshire County Council
as Administering Authority is
responsible for the administration
of the Scheme.
Admitted Body:
An organisation who has
entered into a service agreement
with a Scheme employer. The
parties and NYCC (as the
Administering Authority) enter
into an admission agreement to
allow the staff who transferred
to the new organisation to
participate in the LGPS.

26

North Yorkshire County Council

Alternatives:
An alternative investment is
an asset that is not one of the
conventional investment types,
such as stocks, bonds and
cash. Alternative investments
include private equity, hedge
funds, managed futures,
real estate, commodities
and derivatives contracts.
Asset Allocation:
The apportionment of a fund’s
assets between different types of
investments (or asset classes).
The long-term strategic asset
allocation of a fund will reflect the
fund’s investment objectives.
Benchmark:
A measure against which
the investment policy or
performance of an investment
manager can be compared.
CARE (Career Average
Revalued Earnings):
From 1 April 2014, the LGPS
changed from a final salary
scheme to a CARE scheme. It
is still a defined benefit scheme
but benefits built up from April
2014 are worked out using a
member’s pay each scheme
year rather than the final salary.
The pension earned each
Scheme year is added to the
member’s pension account and
inflation is added so it keeps
its value in line with inflation.

Deferred Members:
Scheme members who have left
employment or ceased to be an
active member of the Scheme
whilst remaining in employment,
but retain an entitlement to a
pension from the Scheme.
Defined Benefit Scheme:
A type of pension scheme
where the pension that will
ultimately be paid to the member
is calculated with reference to
a formula and is not impacted
by investment returns. It is the
responsibility of the sponsoring
organisation to ensure that
sufficient assets are set aside to
meet the pension promised.
Diversified Growth
Funds (DGF):
An alternative way of investing
in shares, bonds, property and
other asset classes.
Employer Contribution Rates:
The percentage of the salary of
members that employers pay
as a contribution towards the
members’ pension.
Equities:
Ordinary shares in UK and
overseas companies traded on
a stock exchange. Shareholders
have an interest in the profits of
the company and are entitled to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Fixed Interest Securities:
Investments, mainly in
government stocks, which
guarantee a fixed rate of interest.
The securities represent loans
which are repayable at a future
date but which can be traded on
a recognised stock exchange in
the meantime.
Index:
A calculation of the average price
of shares, bonds, or other assets
in a specified market to provide
an indication of the average
performance and general trends
in the market.
Pooled Funds:
Funds which manage the
investments of more than one
investor on a collective basis.
Each investor is allocated units
which are revalued at regular
intervals. Income from these
investments is normally returned
to the pooled fund and increases
the value of the units.
Return:
The total gain from holding
an investment over a given
period, including income and
any increase or decrease
in market value.

Scheduled Body:
An organisation that has the
right to become a member
of the LGPS under the
scheme regulations. Such an
organisation does not need
to be admitted as its right to
membership is automatic.
Money Helper
Since the Money and Pensions
Service (MaPS) was formed
in 2019, it has operated three
legacy consumer facing brands:
the Money Advice Service, The
Pensions Advisory Service and
Pension Wise.

Contact Information
North Yorkshire Pension Fund
County Hall
Northallerton
North Yorkshire
DL7 8AL
Telephone: 01609 536335
Email: pensions@northyorks.gov.uk
Website: www.nypf.org.uk
Money Helper
Telephone: 01159 659570
Email: contact@maps.org.uk
Website: moneyhelper.org.uk

MaPS was created as a single
body to bring together financial
guidance services and content,
making it easier for customers to
find what they are looking for in
one joined-up service.
Consolidating three brands
into one means a better and
enhanced consumer experience
can be provided – a single source
of information and guidance
where information can easily be
found in one place.
Unrealised Gains/Losses:
The increase or decrease in the
market value of investments
held by the fund since the
date of their purchase.

27

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Appendix A

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Fund account for the year ended 31st March 2021

Statement of responsibilities for the financial statements
Responsibility for the Financial Statements, which
form part of this Annual Report, is set out below:
a) The Administering Authority
The Administering Authority is North Yorkshire
County Council. The Administering Authority is
required to:
•

•

Page 97
•

make arrangements for the proper administration
of the financial affairs of the Fund and to
secure that an officer has the responsibility
for the administration of those affairs. In this
Authority, that officer is the Treasurer;
manage its affairs to secure economic,
efficient and effective use of resources
and safeguard its assets; and
approve the Statement of Accounts.

b) Treasurer
The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of
the Fund’s Financial Statements in accordance with
proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom Based on International
Reporting Standards (the Code). This document
includes the financial statements for the Pension
Fund only. The financial statements of North
Yorkshire County Council are published separately.

In preparing these financial statements,
the Treasurer has:
•

selected suitable accounting policies
and then applied them consistently;

•

made judgements and estimates that
were reasonable and prudent; and

•

complied with the Code.

The Treasurer has also:
•

kept proper accounting records,
which were up to date; and

•

taken responsible steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Certificate
I hereby certify that the Annual Report and Accounts
give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the North Yorkshire Pension Fund as at 31 March
2021 and its income and expenditure for the
financial year then ended.
Gary Fielding
Treasurer
North Yorkshire Pension Fund

2019/20

2020/21

CONTRIBUTIONS AND BENEFITS

£000
82,625

- Normal

98,843

4,403

- Deficit

1,271

3,674

- Early Retirement Costs Recharged

1,773

29,166

Employers

Employees

148

- Normal
- Additional Voluntary

31,095
100

120,016 Total Contributions Receivable (note 7)

133,082

17,490 Transfers in (note 8)

10,575

Less
Benefits
(91,010) Pensions

(95,946)

(25,990) Commutation and Lump Sum Retirement Benefits

(22,293)

(2,670) Lump Sums Death Benefits

(3,322)

(119,670) Total Benefits Payable (note 9)

(121,561)

Leavers
(560) Refunds to Members Leaving Service
(21,037) Transfers Out
(21,597) Total Payments on Account of Leavers (note 10)

(387)
(7,992)
(8,379)

(2,964) Management Expenses (note 11)

(3,199)

(6,725) Net additions/ (withdrawals) from dealings with Members

10,518

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS
(113) Taxation (note 12a)

North Yorkshire County Council

£000

Contributions

16,554 Investment income (note 12)

28

£000

4,213
0

(26,233) Investment management cost (note 11)

(28,249)

(17,152) Change in market value of investments (note 14a)

982,096

(26,944) Net returns on investments

958,060

(33,669) Net increase/ (decrease) in the Fund during the year

968,578

3,575,204 Opening Net Assets of the Fund

3,541,535

3,541,535 Closing Net Assets of the Fund

4,510,113

29

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Net Assets Statement
31st March
2020

Notes to the North Yorkshire Pension Fund accounts
for the year ended 31st March 2021
31st March
2021

£000

INVESTMENT ASSETS

468,984 Fixed Interest Securities
833 Equities
2,641,322 Pooled Investments
276,103 Pooled Property Investments
3,387,242

£000
337,682
1,182
3,767,819
279,864
4,386,547

138,523 Cash Deposits
2,727 Investment Debtors
3,528,492 TOTAL INVESTMENT ASSETS

105,209
2,129
4,493,885

Page 98

3,528,492 NET INVESTMENT ASSETS (note 14a)
42 LONG-TERM DEBTORS

(b) Membership

The North Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF or “the
Fund”) is part of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) and is administered by North
Yorkshire County Council (NYCC). The County
Council is the reporting entity for the Fund.

Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and
employees are free to choose whether to join
the Fund, remain in the Fund or make their own
personal arrangements outside the Scheme.

The following description of the Fund is a summary
only. For more detail, refer to the NYPF Annual
Report 2020/21 and the statutory powers
underpinning the Scheme, namely the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations.

•

scheduled bodies, which are local
authorities, academy trusts and similar
bodies whose staff are automatically
entitled to be members of the Fund

•

admitted bodies, which are other organisations
that participate in the Fund under an admission
agreement between the Fund and the relevant
organisation. Admitted bodies include voluntary,
charitable and similar bodies or private
contractors undertaking a local authority function
following outsourcing to the private sector.

(a) General

INVESTMENT LIABILITIES
0 TOTAL INVESTMENT LIABILITIES

1. Description of the Fund

0
4,493,885
203

The Fund is governed by the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 and is administered in
accordance with the following secondary legislation:
•

the LGPS Regulations 2013 (as amended)

•

the LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended)

•

the LGPS (Management and Investment
of Funds) Regulations 2016

CURRENT ASSETS
9,170 Contributions due from employers
2,264 Other Non-Investment Debtors
4,969 Cash
16,403 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

10,791
1,288
11,494
23,573

CURRENT LIABILITIES
(3,402) Non-Investment Creditors

(7,548)

(3,402) TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

(7,548)

3,541,535 TOTAL NET ASSETS (note 14c)

4,510,113

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets. They do
not take account of the obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall after the end of the
Fund year.

30

North Yorkshire County Council

Organisations participating in NYPF include:

At 31 March 2021 there were 129 contributing
employer organisations within NYPF including the
County Council itself, and over 97,000 individual
members, as detailed on the next pages.

It is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme
administered by NYCC to provide pensions and
other benefits for pensionable employees of NYCC,
other local authorities in North Yorkshire and a range
of other scheduled and admitted bodies within
the county area. Teachers, police officers and fire
fighters are not included as they come within other
national pension schemes.
The Fund is overseen by the Pension Fund
Committee, which is a committee of NYCC.

31

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

86 Scheduled Bodies including 44 Academies

Academy Trusts
North Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner

Areté Learning Trust - Northallerton School & Sixth Form College

Norton College

Askham Bryan College

Northallerton & Romanby Joint Burial Board

Areté Learning Trust - Richmond School & Sixth Form College

Outwood Grange Academies Trust

Chief Constable (North Yorkshire Police)

Northallerton Town Council

Areté Learning Trust - Stokesley School & Sixth Form College

Pathfinder Multi Academy Trust

City of York Council

Norton on Derwent Town Council

Bishop Wheeler Catholic Academy Trust

Red Kite Learning Trust

Craven College

Pickering Town Council

Dales Academies Trust

Rodillian Multi Academy Trust - Brayton

Craven District Council

Richmond Town Council

David Ross Education Trust – Thomas Hinderwell Primary Academy

Rossett School

Easingwold Town Council

Richmondshire District Council

Ebor Academy Trust

Ryedale Learning Trust

Filey Town Council

Ripon City Council

Elevate Multi Academy Trust

Scalby Learning Trust - Friarage Community Primary School

Foss 2008 Internal Drainage Board

Ryedale District Council

Enquire Learning Trust - East Whitby Primary Academy

Scalby Learning Trust - Newby & Scalby Primary School

Fulford Parish Council

Scarborough Borough Council

Glusburn Parish Council

Scarborough Sixth Form College

Enquire Learning Trust - Roseberry Primary Academy

Scalby Learning Trust - Scalby School

Great Ayton Parish Council

Selby College

Enquire Learning Trust - Stakesby Primary Academy

Scarborough University Technical College

Hambleton District Council

Selby District Council

Enquire Learning Trust - Stokesley Primary Academy

Selby Educational Trust

Harrogate Borough Council

Selby Town Council

Elevate Multi Academy Trust

South Bank Multi Academy Trust

Haxby Town Council

Skipton Town Council

Enquire Learning Trust - East Whitby Primary Academy

South Craven Academy Trust

Hunmanby Parish Council

Sutton in Craven Parish Council

Enquire Learning Trust - Roseberry Primary Academy

South York Multi Academy Trust

Knaresborough Town Council

Tadcaster Town Council

Enquire Learning Trust - Stakesby Primary Academy

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust

Malton Town Council

Vale of Pickering Internal Drainage Board

Enquire Learning Trust - Stokesley Primary Academy

STAR Multi Academy Trust

North York Moors National Park Authority

Whitby Town Council

Great Smeaton Primary Academy

The Bishop Konstant Catholic Academy Trust

North Yorkshire County Council

York College

Hope Learning Trust

The Woodlands Academy

North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue

Yorkshire Dales National Park Authority

Huntington Primary Academy

Wellspring Academy Trust

Lingfield Education Trust – Cambrai Primary School

Yorkshire Causeway Schools Trust

Moorlands Learning Trust

Yorkshire Collaborative Academy Trust

Nicholas Postgate Catholic Academy Trust – All Saints School

Yorkshire Endeavour Academy Trust

Page 99

Ainsty 2008 Internal Drainage Board

Northern Star Academies Trust

32

North Yorkshire County Council

33

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

43 Admitted Bodies

Active, pensioner and deferred pensioner numbers, split between NYCC
as the Administering Authority and all other employers were as follows:

ABM Catering Ltd

Independent Cleaning Services

Absolutely Catering Ltd

ISS Mediclean Ltd

Align Property Partners Ltd

Lifeways Community Care Ltd

Aramark Ltd

Make It York

Betterclean Services Ltd

Mellors

Beyond Housing

RCCN Ltd

Bulloughs Cleaning Ltd

Richmondshire Leisure Trust

Cater Link Ltd

Ringway

Catering Academy Ltd

Sanctuary Housing Association

Pensioners

Chartwells Compass

Springfield Home Care

Churchill Contract Services Ltd

31st March
2021
Number of Employers with Active Members

31st March
2020
157

NYCC

15,968

16,331

Other employers

17,672

17,072

Total

33,640

33,403

NYCC

13,839

13,165

Streamline Taxis

Other employers

11,580

11,016

Churchill Security Solutions Ltd

University of Hull (Scarborough)

Total

25,419

24,181

City of York Trading Ltd

Urbaser Ltd

Deferred Pensioners

Elite

Veritau Ltd

NYCC

24,271

24,278

Everyone Active (SLM Scarborough)

Veritau North Yorkshire Ltd

Other employers

14,565

14,570

Explore York Libraries and Archives

Welcome to Yorkshire

Total

38,836

38,848

Gough and Kelly Security Ltd

Wigan Leisure and Culture Trust

Greenwich Leisure Ltd

York Archaeological Trust Ltd

(c) Funding

Grosvenor Facilities Management

York Mind

Hexagon Care

York Museums and Galleries Trust

Human Support Group Ltd

York St John University

Benefits are funded by contributions and investment
earnings. Contributions are made by active
members of the Fund in accordance with the LGPS
Regulations 2013 and range from 5.5% to 12.5%
of pensionable pay for the financial year ended 31
March 2021. Employee contributions are matched
by employers’ contributions which are set based on
triennial actuarial funding valuations. The last such
valuation was at 31 March 2019 and that set the
contribution rates for 2020/21, 2021/22, 2022/23;
details of the rates for individual employers are
available on the Fund’s website.

Page 100

129

Hutchison Catering Ltd

Employees in the Fund

(d) Benefits
Prior to 1 April 2014 pension benefits under the
LGPS up to 31 March 2014 are based on final
pensionable pay and length of pensionable service.
For service up to 31 March 2008 each year worked
is worth 1/80th of final pensionable salary, an
automatic lump sum of three times salary is payable,

34

North Yorkshire County Council

and part of the annual pension can be exchanged
for a one-off tax free cash payment at the rate of
£12 lump sum for each £1 pension given up. For
service from 1 April 2008 each year worked is
worth 1/60th of final pensionable salary, there is no
automatic lump sum, and part of the annual pension
can be exchanged at the same rate as for service up
to 31 March 2008.
From 1 April 2014 the scheme became a career
average scheme whereby members accrue benefits
based on their pensionable pay in that year at an
accrual rate of 1/49th. Accrued pension is uprated
annually in line with CPI.
There are a range of other benefits provided under
the Scheme including early retirement, disability
pensions and death benefits. For more details please
refer to the Publications section on the Fund’s
website at www.nypf.org.uk.

35

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

2. Basis of Preparation
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Fund’s
transactions for the 2020/21 financial year and
its year end position as at 31 March 2021. The
accounts have been prepared in accordance with
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2020/21 which is based
upon International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.
The Accounts summarise the transactions of the
Fund and report on the net assets available to pay
pension benefits. The Accounts do not take account
of obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall
due after the end of the financial year.

3. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Page 101

Fund Account – Revenue Recognition
(a) Contribution Income
Normal contributions, both from the members and
from the employer, are accounted for on an accruals
basis at the rate recommended by the Fund’s
Actuary in the payroll period to which they relate.
Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted
for in the period in which they are payable under the
schedule of contributions set by the Actuary or on
receipt if earlier than the due date.
Employers’ augmentation contributions and pension
strain contributions are accounted for in the period in
which the liability arises. Any amount due in year but
unpaid will be classed as a current asset. Amounts
due in future years are classed as long term assets.
(b) Transfers to and from other Schemes
Transfer values represent the amounts received and
paid during the year for members who have either
joined or left the Fund during the financial year and
are calculated in accordance with LGPS Regulations
(see notes 8 and 10).

36

North Yorkshire County Council

Individual Transfers in/out are accounted for when
received/paid, which is normally when the member
liability is accepted or discharged.
Transfers in from members wishing to use
the proceeds of their additional voluntary
contributions or other defined contribution
arrangements to purchase scheme benefits
are accounted for on a receipts basis and
are included in Transfers In (see note 8).
Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an
accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the
transfer agreement.
(c) Investment Income
Interest income is recognised in the Fund as it
accrues, using the effective interest rate of the
financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or
origination. Income includes the amortisation of any
discount or premium, transaction costs or other
differences between the initial cost of the instrument
and its value at maturity calculated on an effective
interest rate basis.
Dividend income is recognised on the date
the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any
amount not received by the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in the Net
Assets Statement as a current asset.
Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at
the date of issue. Any amount not received by the
end of the reporting period is disclosed in the Net
Assets Statement as a current asset.
Changes in the net market value of investments are
recognised as income/expenditure and comprise all
realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.
Fund Account – Expense Items
(d) Benefits Payable

(e) Taxation
The Fund is a registered public service scheme
under Section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance
Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income
tax on interest received and from capital gains tax
on the proceeds of investments sold. Income from
overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the
country of origin, unless exemption is permitted.
Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a Fund
expense as it arises.
(f) Management expenses
The Fund discloses its pension fund management
expenses in accordance with the CIPFA guidance
Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme
Management Expenses (2016), as shown below. All
items of expenditure are charged to the fund on an
accruals basis as follows:
Administrative expenses
All staff costs of the pensions administration
team are charged direct to the Fund. Associated
management, accommodation and other
overheads are apportioned to this activity and
charged as expenses to the Fund.
Oversight and governance
All staff costs associated with governance
and oversight are charged direct to the Fund.
Associated management, accommodation and
other overheads are apportioned to this activity
and charged as expenses to the Fund.

In addition, the Fund has negotiated with the
following managers that an element of their fee
will be performance related:
•

Baillie Gifford & Co - Global Equities

•

Hermes Investment Management
- UK Property

•

Arcmont (formerly Bluebay) - Private Debt

•

Permira - Private Debt

Where an investment manager’s fee note
has not been received by the year-end date,
an estimate based upon the market value
of their mandate as at the end of the year is
used for inclusion in the fund accounts.
Net Assets Statement
(g) Financial Assets
The investment in the LGPS asset pool, Border
to Coast Pensions Partnership (BCPP), is valued
at transaction price, i.e. cost, as an appropriate
estimate of fair value. All other assets are included in
the Net Assets Statement on a fair value basis as at
the reporting date. An asset is recognised in the Net
Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes
party to the contractual acquisition of the asset.
From this date any gains or losses arising from the
fair value of the asset are recognised by the Fund.
If valuations are not available at the reporting date,
as is the case for private debt and infrastructure
investments, the latest available valuation is adjusted
for cashflows in the intervening period.

Investment management expenses
Fees of the external investment managers are
set out in the respective mandates governing
their appointments. Broadly, these are based on
the market value of the investments under their
management and therefore increase or reduce as
the value of these investments change.

Pensions and lump sum benefits payable include all
amounts known to be due as at the financial year
end. Any amounts due but not paid are disclosed in
the Net Assets Statement as current liabilities.

37

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

(h) Foreign Currency Transactions

(m) Additional Voluntary Contributions

Dividends, interest and purchases and sales
of investments in foreign currencies have been
accounted for at the spot market rates at the date of
the transaction. End of year spot market exchange
rates are used to value cash balances held in foreign
currency bank accounts, market values of overseas
investment and purchases and sales outstanding at
the end of the reporting period.

NYPF provides an Additional Voluntary Contribution
(AVC) scheme for its members, the assets of which
are invested separately from those of the Fund. The
fund has appointed Prudential as its AVC provider.
AVCs are paid to the AVC provider by employers
and are specifically for providing additional benefits
for individual contributors. Each AVC contributor
receives an annual statement showing the amount
held in their account and the movements in the year.

(i) Derivatives
The Fund does not hold derivatives for speculative
purposes (see note 15).
(j) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand
deposits, and includes amounts held by the Fund’s
external managers.

Page 102

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk
of changes in value.
(k) Liabilities
The Fund recognises liabilities at fair value as at the
reporting date. A liability is recognised in the Net
Assets Statement on the date the Fund becomes
party to the liability. From this date any gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
liability are recognised by the Fund.
(l) Actuarial Present Value of Promised
Retirement Benefits
The actuarial present value of promised retirement
benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the
Fund’s Actuary in accordance with the requirements
of IAS19 and relevant actuarial standards.
As permitted under the Code, the Fund has
opted to disclose the actuarial present value
of promised retirement benefits by way of
an Appendix to these statements.

38

North Yorkshire County Council

AVCs are not included in the Accounts in
accordance with Section 4(1)(b) of the LGPS
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2016 but are disclosed as a note only (see note 23).
(n) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
A contingent asset arises where an event has
taken place giving rise to a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the
occurrence of future events.
A contingent liability arises where an event
has taken place prior to the year-end giving
rise to a possible financial obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed or otherwise
by the occurrence of future events. Contingent
liabilities can also arise in circumstances where
a provision would be made, except that it is not
possible at the balance sheet date to measure
the value of the financial obligation reliably.
Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised
in the Net Assets Statement but are disclosed by
way of narrative in the notes.

4. Critical Judgement in Applying
Accounting Policies
Pension Fund Liability
The Fund’s liability is calculated every three
years by the Actuary, with annual updates in the
intervening years. The methodology used is in line
with accepted guidelines and in accordance with
IAS19. Assumptions underpinning the valuations are
agreed with the Actuary and are summarised in note
19. This estimate is subject to significant variances
based on changes to the underlying assumptions.
Investment in Border to Coast
Pensions Partnership (BCPP)
The Fund’s shareholding in BCPP Ltd. has
been valued at transaction price i.e. cost, as an
appropriate estimate of fair value. Management
have made this judgement because a fair value
cannot be otherwise established for these assets as
at 31 March 2021, and as the pool has only been
established for a short period of time and there
is no market in the shares held, cost would be a
reasonable and appropriate estimate of fair value.
The Class A share is valued at £1 and reflects the
ownership stake in the company, whilst the Class
B shares represent the Fund’s contribution to the
company’s regulatory capital requirement.

The item in the Net Assets Statement as at 31
March 2021 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjustment being required is the
actuarial present value of promised retirement
benefits, which is based on assumptions on the
discount rate, salary increases, retirement ages,
mortality rates and the return on investments.
The effects of changing individual assumptions on
the value of pension liabilities can be measured. A
0.1% increase in the discount rate would reduce
liabilities by 1.9% (£86.1m), a 0.1% increase in
inflation would increase liabilities by 1.8% (£79.2m),
and an increase in life expectancy of one year
would increase liabilities by 3.7% (£161.9m).

6. Events After the End of
the Reporting Period
The financial statements and notes
have not been adjusted for any events
taking place after 31 March 2021.

5. Assumptions Made About the
Future and Other Major Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty
These Accounts require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported for assets and
liabilities at the balance sheet date and for revenue
and expenses during the year. Estimates are
made taking into account historical experience,
current trends and other relevant factors.
However, the nature of estimation means that
the actual outcomes could differ from those
based on these assumptions and estimates.

39

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

7. Contributions Receivable
By category
Employees' Contributions

10. Payments To and On Account of Leavers
2020/21

2019/20

2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

£000

£000

31,195

29,314

387

560

7,992

14,239

0

6,798

8,379

21,597

2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

1,918

1,571

Investment Management Costs

28,249

26,233

Oversight and Governance Costs

1,281

1,393

31,448

29,197

Refunds to Members Leaving Service

Employers' Contributions
Normal contributions

98,843

82,625

Deficit recovery contributions

1,271

4,403

Early Retirement Recharges

1,541

3,429

232

245

133,082

120,016

2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

Compensatory Added Years Recharges
Total Contributions

By authority
Contributions Receivable

Page 103

North Yorkshire County Council

57,935

48,200

Other Scheduled Bodies

68,397

64,790

6,750

7,026

133,082

120,016

Admitted Bodies

Leavers

8. Transfers In from Other Pension Funds
All transfers in were individual transfers.
There were no group transfers during the year.

Individual Transfers
Group Transfers

11. Management Expenses

Administrative Costs

Investment Management Costs includes £2,417k (2019/20: £2,547k) in respect of
performance related fees payable to the Fund’s investment managers and £5,431k in respect
of transaction costs (2019/20 £6,719k).
In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on
investments sales and purchases. These are reflected in the cost of acquisitions and in the
proceeds from the sales of investments (see Note 14a).

9. Benefits Payable
2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

North Yorkshire County Council

50,976

50,401

Other Scheduled Bodies

62,290

60,859

8,295

8,410

121,561

119,670

Benefits Payable

Admitted Bodies

40

North Yorkshire County Council

41

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

14. Investments

a) Investment Management Expenses
2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

15,385

12,563

2,417

a) Reconciliation of Movements in Investments

2,547

Value as at
31st March
2021

Change in
market value

Sale proceeds
receipts

Purchases as at
cost payments

Value as at 1st
April 2020

340

329

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Transactions Costs

5,431

6,719

Fixed Interest Securities

337,682

15,681

(1,134,253)

987,270

468,984

Other

4,205

4,075

Equities

1,182

(88)

88

349

833

27,778

26,233

3,767,819

957,840

(322,476)

491,133

2,641,322

279,864

8,094

(4,333)

0

276,103

Total Invested

4,386,547

981,527

(1,460,974)

1,478,752

3,387,242

Cash Deposits

105,209

569

Management Fees
Performance Related Fees
Custody Fees

Pooled Property

12. Investment Income
2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

2,001

1,538

0

5,209

Pooled Property Investments

1,404

1,177

Pooled Investments - Other Managed Funds

1,024

5,136

0

3,061

(216)

433

4,213

16,554

Income from Bonds
Income from Equities

Page 104

Interest on Cash Deposits
Other

2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

0

113

13. Other Fund Account Disclosures

Payable in respect of external audit

42

North Yorkshire County Council

Net Investment Debtors
Net Investment Assets

2019/20

£000

£000

19

19

2,129

2,727
982,096

Value as at 31st
March 2020

Change in
market value

Sale proceeds
& derivative
receipts

Purchases as
at cost and
derivative
payments

Value as at 1st
April 2019

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

468,984

24,370

(1,624,338)

1,429,439

639,513

833

21,840

(779,948)

364,015

394,926

2,641,322

(55,934)

(772,116)

1,452,487

2,016,885

276,103

(8,745)

(3,654)

0

288,502

Total Invested

3,387,242

(18,469)

(3,180,056)

3,245,941

3,339,826

Cash Deposits

138,523

1,317

Fixed Interest Securities

Pooled Funds
Pooled Property

Net Investment Debtors
2020/21

138,523

4,493,885

Equities

a) Taxes on Income

Withholding Tax on Dividends

Pooled Investments

Net Investment Assets

2,727
3,528,492

3,528,492

220,042
4,136

(17,152)

3,564,004

43

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

b) Analysis of Investments

c) Investments analysed by Fund Manager
2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

337,682

468,984

Equities
UK Unquoted

26.8

813,510

23.0

BCPP - UK Equities

172,881

3.8

120,164

3.4

BCPP - Index Linked Gilt Fund

141,521

3.1

0

0.0

BCPP - Investment Grade Credit

114,983

2.5

0

0.0

9,223

0.2

8,549

0.2

BCPP - Private Debt

5,332

0.1

0

0.0

BCPP - Infrastructure 2

4,418

0.1

0

0.0

BCPP - UK Unquoted Equities

1,182

0.0

833

0.0

1,657,799

36.6

943,056

26.6

Page 105

279,864

276,103

UK Government Bonds

114,983

0

UK Corporate Bonds

141,521

0

Multi Asset Credit

192,755

0

2,299,233

1,655,171

Private Debt

100,708

96,859

Insurance Linked Securities

164,294

163,524

13,641

8,549

Equity Protection

192,738

313,900

Diversified Growth Funds - UK

170,503

142,871

4,047,683

Net Investment Assets

1,208,259

BCPP - Infrastructure

UK Property

Net Investment Debtors

%

833

260,448

Cash Deposits

£000

1,182

377,443

Total Investments (excl Derivatives)

%

833

UK Equity

Infrastructure

31st March 2020

1,182

Pooled Investments

Overseas Equity

31st March 2021
£000

BCPP - Global Equity Alpha

Fixed Interest Securities
UK Public Sector Quoted

Investments managed by
Border to Coast Pension Partnership:

Investments managed outside
of Border to Coast Pensions Partnership:

31st March 2021

31st March 2020

£000

%

£000

%

Baillie Gifford & Co. - LTGG

761,048

16.8

595,897

16.8

M&G Investments

341,823

7.6

473,067

13.4

Veritas

273,800

6.1

216,499

6.1

Dodge & Cox

260,688

5.8

169,549

4.8

PIMCO

192,755

4.3

0

0.0

LGIM Equity Protection

192,738

4.3

313,901

8.9

Threadneedle

173,158

3.8

170,226

4.8

Newton Investments

170,503

3.8

142,871

4.0

2,917,425

NYCC Treasury Management

100,184

2.2

133,832

3.8

4,386,547

3,387,242

Legal & General

72,281

1.6

70,474

2.0

105,209

138,523

Leadenhall Remote Fund

57,898

1.3

55,491

1.6

Leadenhall Diversified Fund

55,174

1.2

54,266

1.5

2,129

2,727

Permira

52,008

1.2

57,539

1.6

4,493,885

3,528,492

Leadenhall NAT CAT Fund

51,222

1.1

53,767

1.5

Arcmont (formerly Bluebay)

43,368

1.0

39,319

1.1

Hermes

35,015

0.8

35,993

1.0

Fidelity International

2,421

0.1

2,719

0.1

UK Equity Transition

2

0.0

0

0.0

Standard Life Investments - Equities

0

0.0

25

0.0

16,228

0.4

13,044

0.4

2,852,314

63.4

2,598,479

73.4

4,510,113

100.0

3,541,535

100.0

Internally Managed (cash and net debtors)

Total Net Assets

The investments with BCPP Global Equity Alpha, Baillie Gifford, M&G Investments, Veritas and Dodge & Cox
each represent more than 5% of net assets. These investments are in pooled funds. All other investments are
either below 5% or constitute a portfolio of segregated assets.
44

North Yorkshire County Council

45

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

(d) Stock Lending
The Fund has not released stock to a third party under a stock lending arrangement within a regulated
market at this period end or in any previous years.

15. Analysis of Derivatives

Description
of asset

Valuation
Basis of valuation
hierarchy

Observable and
unobservable inputs

Key sensitivities affecting
the valuations provided

Freehold and
leasehold
properties

Level 3

Valued at fair value at
the year-end using the
investment method of
valuation by John Finley
FRICS of independent
valuers Carrott-Jones
LLP in accordance
with the RICS Valuation
Standards (9th Edition)

Existing lease terms
and rentals
Independent
market research
Nature of tenancies
Covenant strength
for existing tenants
Assumed vacancy levels
Estimated rental Growth
Discount rate

Significant changes in rental growth,
vacancy levels or the discount rate
could affect valuations as could more
general changes to market prices

Unquoted equity

Level 3

Comparable valuation
of similar companies
in accordance with
International Private
Equity and Venture Capital
Valuation Guidelines (2012)

EBITDA multiple
Revenue multiple
Discount for lack
of marketability
Control premium

Valuations could be affected by material
events occurring between the date of
the financial statements provided and
the Pension Fund’s own reporting date,
by changes to expected cashflows,
and by any differences between
audited and unaudited accounts

The Fund does not hold derivatives.

16. Fair Value – Basis of Valuation
The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in
the valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value techniques which
represent the highest and best price available at the reporting date.
Valuation
Basis of valuation
hierarchy

Observable and
unobservable inputs

Key sensitivities affecting
the valuations provided

Market quoted
investments

Level 1

Published bid market price
ruling on the final day of
the accounting period

Not required

Not required

Quoted bonds

Level 1

Fixed interest securities are
valued at a market value
based on current yields

Not required

Not required

Published exchange
prices at the year-end

Not required

Not required

Exchange traded
Level1
pooled investments

Closing bid value on
published exchanges

Not required

Not required

Unquoted bonds

Level 2

Average of broker prices

Evaluated price feeds

Not required

Forward foreign
exchange
derivatives

Level 2

Market forward exchange
rates at the year-end

Exchange rate risk

Not required

Overseas bond
options

Level 2

Option pricing model

Annualised volatility of
counterparty credit risk

Pooled investments Level 2
– overseas
unit trusts and
property funds

Closing bid price where
bid and offer prices
are published
Closing single price where
single price published

NAV-based pricing set on Not required
a forward pricing basis

Pooled investments Level 3
– hedge funds

Closing bid price where
bid and offer prices
are published
Closing single price where
single price published

NAV-based pricing set on Valuations could be affected by material
a forward pricing basis
events occurring between the date of
the financial statements provided and
the pension fund’s own reporting date,
by changes to expected cashflows,
and by any differences between
audited and unaudited accounts
Required by 6.5.5.1 d) and
f), 7.4.2.13 of the Code.

Page 106

Description
of asset

Futures and
options in
UK bonds

46

Level 1

North Yorkshire County Council

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

Not required

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent investment
advisors, the Fund has determined that the valuation methods described above are likely to be accurate to
within the following ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential impact on the closing value of
investments held at 31 March 2021.
Value at 31 March 2021

Value on Increase

Value on decrease

£000

£000

£000

Pooled investments - Private Debt

100,708

105,139

96,277

Pooled investments - Infrastructure

13,641

14,678

12,604

1,181

1,181

1,181

115,530

120,998

110,062

Assessed valuation range (+/-)

UK Unquoted Equities
Total

a) Fair Value Hierarchy
Asset and liability valuations have been classified
into three levels, according to the quality and
reliability of information used to determine
fair values. Transfers between levels are
recognised in the year in which they occur.

Level 1
Assets and liabilities at level 1 are those where the
fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise
quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted
index linked securities and unit trusts.

47

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Level 2

Level 3

17. Financial Instruments

Assets and liabilities at level 2 are those where
quoted market prices are not available; for example,
where an instrument is traded in a market that is
not considered to be active, or where valuation
techniques are used to determine fair value.

Assets and liabilities at level 3 are those
where at least one input that could have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation
is not based on observable market data.

(a) Classification of Financial Instruments
Accounting policies describe how different asset classes of financial instruments are measured, and how
income and expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table summarises
the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities by category.
31st March 2020

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund grouped into
levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable.

31st March 2021

Designated
as fair value
through profit
and loss

Loans
and
Receivables

Financial
Liabilities
amortised
at cost

Designated
as fair value
through profit
and loss

Loans
and
Receivables

Financial
Liabilities
amortised
at cost

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

337,682

0

0

1,182

0

0

3,597,316

0

0

Quoted market
price

Using
observable
inputs

With significant
unobservable
inputs

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

£000

£000

£000

£000

468,984

0

0

Fixed Interest Securities

468,796

3,933,335

115,530

4,517,661

833

0

0

Equities

0

0

0

0

2,498,451

0

0

Pooled Investments

(7,548)

0

0

(7,548)

276,103

0

0

Pooled Property

279,864

0

0

461,248

3,933,335

115,530

4,510,113

142,871

0

0

Diversified Growth Funds

170,503

0

0

0

143,492

0

Cash

0

116,703

0

2,727

0

0

Investment Debtors

2,129

0

0

0

11,476

0

Non Investment Debtors

0

12,283

0

3,389,969

154,968

0

4,388,676

128,986

0

Investment Creditors

0

0

0

Non Investment Creditors

0

0

7,548

Values at 31 March 2021
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Non-financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Page 107

Net investment assets

Quoted market
price

Values at 31 March 2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Non-financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Net investment assets

Total

Assets

Using With significant
observable
unobservable
inputs
inputs

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

£000

£000

£000

£000

626,679

2,812,018

106,240

3,544,937

0

0

0

0

(3,402)

0

623,277

2,812,018

(3,402)
106,240

3,541,535

Liabilities
0

0

0

0

0

3,402

0

0

3,402

0

0

7,548

3,389,969

154,968

(3,402)

4,388,676

128,986

(7,548)

b. Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements Within Level 3
Market
Value at
1 April
2020

Transfers
into
Level 3

Transfers
out of
Level 3

Purchases
During
the Year

Sales
During
the Year

Unrealised
Gains and
Losses

Realised
Gains and
Losses

Market
Value at
31 March
2021

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Private Debt

96,858

0

0

9,796

(12,545)

6,097

502

100,708

Infrastructure

8,549

0

0

16,744

(2,978)

(8,241)

(434)

13,640

0

349

0

0

0

1,182

0

26,889

(15,523)

(2,144)

68

115,530

UK Unquoted Equities

833
106,240

48

North Yorkshire County Council

0

b) Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

Fair Value Through Profit & Loss
Loans and Receivables

2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

982,096

(17,152)

(264)

(65,503)

981,832

(82,655)

49

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

18. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

Other Price Risk – Sensitivity Analysis

Risk and Risk Management

Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement
during the financial year, in consultation with the Fund’s investment consultants,
the Fund has determined that the following movements in market price risk are
reasonably possible for the 2021/22 reporting period.

The Fund’s primary long term risk is that the
Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e.
promised benefits payable to members). Therefore,
the aim of investment risk management is to
minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the
value of the Fund and to maximise the opportunity
for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The
Fund achieves this through asset diversification
to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk,
currency risk and interest rate risk) and credit
risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund
manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient
liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash flows.
NYCC manages these investment risks as part
of its overall approach to Pension Fund risk.

Page 108

Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management
strategy rests with the Pension Fund Committee.
A Risk Register has been established to identify
and analyse the risks faced by NYCC’s pensions
operations. This document is reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in activity and in market conditions.
(a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in
equity prices, interest and foreign exchange rates
and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market
risk from its investment activities, particularly through
its equity holdings. The level of risk exposure
depends on market conditions, expectations of
future price and yield movements and the asset mix.
The objective of the Fund’s Risk Register includes
identifying, managing and controlling market risk
exposure within acceptable parameters, whilst
optimising the risk-adjusted return.

50

North Yorkshire County Council

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is
managed through the diversification of the portfolio
in terms of geographical and industry sectors and
individual securities. To mitigate market risk, the
Pension Fund Committee (PFC) and its investment
advisers undertake appropriate monitoring of market
conditions and benchmark analysis.
The Fund manages these risks in two ways:
•

•

the exposure of the Fund to market
risk is monitored through advice from
the investment advisers to ensure that
risk remains within tolerable levels
specific risk exposure is limited by applying
risk weighted maximum exposures
to individual investments through
Investment Management Agreements

Other Price Risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising
from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or
factors affecting all such instruments in the market.

Potential Market Movements (+/-)

Asset Type

%

Cash and Cash Equivalents

1.0

UK Bonds

0.5

UK Equities

0.0

Overseas Equities

7.2

UK Pooled Equity

7.2

Overseas Pooled Equity

7.2

Pooled Property Investments

5.4

Diversified Growth Funds

4.0

Other Pooled Investments

2.3

Non Investment Debtors/Creditors

0.0

The potential price changes disclosed above are broadly consistent with a
one-standard deviation movement in the value of the assets. The sensitivities
are consistent with the assumptions contained in the investment advisors’ most
recent review. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates, remain the same.

The Fund is exposed to share and derivative
price risk. This arises from investments held by
the Fund for which the future price is uncertain.
All securities investments present a risk of
loss of capital. The maximum risk resulting
from financial instruments is determined by
the fair value of the financial instruments.
The Fund’s investment managers mitigate this
price risk through diversification and the selection
of securities and other financial instruments is
monitored to ensure it is within limits specified in the
Fund’s investment strategy.

51

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Had the market price of the Fund investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change in the
net assets available to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows (the prior year comparator
is shown below).

Interest Rate Risk

Currency Risk

The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary
purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These
investments are subject to interest rate risks, which
represent the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Fund is exposed to currency risk on financial
instruments that are denominated in any currency
other than the functional currency of the Fund (GBP).
The Fund holds both monetary and non-monetary
assets denominated in currencies other than GBP.

Value as at 31st
March 2021

Potential Market
Movement

Value on Increase

Value on Decrease

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

105,209

1,052

106,261

104,157

UK Bonds

337,682

1,637

339,320

336,045

1,182

0

1,182

1,182

0

0

0

0

377,443

27,176

404,619

350,267

2,299,233

165,545

2,464,778

2,133,688

UK Government Bonds

141,521

425

141,945

141,096

UK Corporate Bonds

114,983

1,725

116,708

113,258

Multi Asset Credit

192,755

5,783

198,538

186,973

Pooled Property Investments

279,864

15,113

294,977

264,751

Diversified Growth Funds

170,504

6,820

177,323

163,684

2020/21

2019/20

Other Pooled Investments

466,049

10,512

476,560

455,537

£000

£000

4,735

0

4,735

4,735

Cash and Cash Equivalents

105,209

138,523

4,726,946

4,255,373

Fixed Interest Securities

337,682

468,984

Pooled Investments

256,504

0

699,395

607,507

Asset Type

UK Equities
Overseas Equities
UK Pooled Equity
Overseas Pooled Equity

Page 109

Non Investment Debtors/Creditors
Total Assets

4,491,160
Value as at 31
March 2020

Potential Market
Movement

Value on Increase

Value on Decrease

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cash and Cash Equivalents

138,523

1,108

139,631

137,415

UK Bonds

468,984

(1,006)

467,978

469,990

833

0

833

833

0

0

0

0

260,448

18,752

279,200

241,696

1,655,171

119,172

1,774,343

1,535,999

Pooled Property Investments

276,103

14,910

291,013

261,193

Diversified Growth Funds

142,871

6,429

149,300

136,442

Other Pooled Investments

582,832

9,750

592,582

573,082

8,074

0

8,074

8,074

3,702,954

3,364,724

Asset Type

UK Equities
Overseas Equities
UK Pooled Equity
Overseas Pooled Equity

Non Investment Debtors / Creditors
Total Assets

52

North Yorkshire County Council

3,533,839

The Fund’s interest rate risk is monitored by the
Fund and its investment advisers through the risk
management strategy, including monitoring the
exposure to interest rates and assessment of actual
interest rates against the strategic benchmark.
The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate
movements as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020 is set out in the tables below. These
disclosures present interest rate risk based on the
underlying financial assets at fair value.

The Fund’s currency rate risk is monitored in
accordance with the Fund’s risk management
strategy, including monitoring the range of exposure
to currency fluctuations.
After receiving advice it is considered that the
likely volatility associated with foreign exchange
movements to be +/-8.4%. A fluctuation of this size
is considered reasonable based on the analysis of
long term historical movements in the month end
exchange rates.

The Fund recognises that interest rates can vary
and can affect both income to the Fund and the
value of the net assets available to pay benefits.
For illustrative purposes if it were to change by +/1% the values in the table above would change by
£141m for 2020/21 and £131m for 2019/20.

53

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

Assuming all other variables, in particular, interest rates remain constant, an 8.4% strengthening/weakening
of the pound against the various currencies in which the Fund holds investments would increase/decrease
the net assets available to pay benefits as follows:
Value as at
31st March 2021

2020

£000

£000

A+ / F1

1,273

678

AAAmmf

0

217

AA / F1+

728

54

Increase

Decrease

£000

£000

£000

2,299,233

2,494,668

2,103,798

Value as at
31st March 2020

Value on
8.6%

Value on
8.6%

Handelsbanken
Santander UK

A+ / F1

1,457

371

Increase

Decrease

Bank of Scotland

A+ / F1

1,335

650

£000

£000

£000

National Westminster Bank PLC

A+ / F1

364

271

1,655,171

1,795,861

1,514,482

AA- / F1+

243

0

A / F1

243

325

A+ / F1

1,214

108

A+ / F1+

0

217

-

4,636

2,078

11,493

4,969

Page 110

(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a
transaction or a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur
a financial loss. The market values of investments
generally reflect an assessment of credit in their
pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly
provided for in the carrying value of the Fund’s
assets and liabilities.
In essence the Fund’s entire investment
portfolio is exposed to some form of credit
risk, where the risk equates to the net market
value of a positive derivative position. However
the selection of high quality counterparties,
brokers and financial institutions minimises
credit risk that may occur through the failure
to settle a transaction in a timely manner.
Contractual credit risk is represented by the net
payment or receipt outstanding, and the cost of
replacing the derivative position in the event of
counterparty default. The residual risk is minimal
due to the various insurance policies held by the
exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties.

North Yorkshire County Council

2021
Call Accounts
Barclays Bank Plc (NRFB)
Money Market Funds
State Street Global LVNAV MMF
Fixed Term Deposit Notice Accounts

DBS Bank Ltd
Goldman Sachs

54

31 March

Value
on 8.5% Decrease

Asset Type
Overseas Equities

31 March

Value
on 8.5% Increase

Asset Type
Overseas Equities

Credit Rating

Standard Chartered

Credit risk on over the counter derivative contracts
is minimised as counterparties are recognised
financial intermediaries with acceptable credit ratings
determined by recognised rating agencies.
Deposits are not made with banks and financial
institutions unless they are rated independently and
meet NYCC’s credit criteria. NYCC has also set
limits as to the maximum amount of deposits placed
with any one financial institution. The banks and
institutions chosen all have at least the minimum
credit rating as described in NYCC’s Treasury
Management Strategy.
NYCC believes it has managed its exposure to
credit risk and has had no experience of default or
uncollectible deposits over the past five financial
years. The Fund’s cash holding under its treasury
management arrangements with NYCC at 31 March
2021 was £11.5m (31 March 2020, £5.0m) and was
held with the following institutions:

Helaba
Local Authorities

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund
will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Fund therefore takes
steps to ensure that it has adequate cash
resources to meet its commitments.
The Fund has immediate access to its cash
holdings, subject to the fixed periods determined
when deposits are placed. These deposits are
scheduled to ensure cash is available when required.
The Fund also has access to an overdraft facility
for short term (up to three months) cash needs.
This facility is only used to address changes in the
strategic benchmark and is met by either surplus
cash from contributions received exceeding
pensions paid or if necessary, disinvesting.

The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can
be converted to cash within three months. Illiquid
assets are those assets which will take longer than
three months to convert to cash. As at 31 March
2021 the value of illiquid assets was £116m (31
March 2020, £107m).
All liabilities at 31 March 2021 are due within
one year. The Fund does not have any financial
instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its
treasury management and investment strategies.

55

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

19. Funding Arrangements
In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 the Fund’s Actuary, Aon,
undertakes a funding Valuation every three years for
the purpose of setting employer contribution rates
for the forthcoming triennial period. The last such
Valuation took place as at 31 March 2019.
The key elements of NYPF’s funding policy are:
to ensure the long term solvency of the Fund,
i.e. that sufficient funds are available to meet all
pension liabilities as they fall due for payment

•

to ensure that employer contribution
rates are as stable as possible

•

to minimise the long term cost of the scheme
by recognising the link between assets
and liabilities and adopting an investment
strategy that balances risk and return

Page 111

•

•

•

to reflect the different characteristics of
employing bodies in determining contribution
rates where the Administering Authority
considers it reasonable to do so
to use reasonable measures to reduce the
risk to other employers and ultimately to
the council tax payer from an employer
defaulting on its pension obligations

At the 2019 Valuation the aim was to achieve 100%
solvency over a period of 21 years from April 2020
and to provide stability in employer contribution rates
by spreading any increases in rates over a period
of time. Solvency is achieved when the funds held,
plus future expected investment returns and future
contributions are sufficient to meet expected future
pension benefits payable.
At the 2019 Triennial Valuation the Fund was
assessed as 114% funded (90% at the 2016
Valuation). This reflected a surplus of £450m (deficit
of £283m at the 2016 Valuation).

The common rate of employers’ contributions is the
average rate required from all employers calculated
as being sufficient, together with contributions paid
by employees, to meet all liabilities arising in respect
of service after the Valuation date. For 2020/21 the
common rate (determined at the 2019 Valuation) is
19.3% of pensionable pay.
Individual employers’ rates will vary from the
common contribution rate depending on the
demographic and actuarial factors particular to
each employer. Full details of the contribution rates
payable can be found in the 2019 Triennial Valuation
Report and the Funding Strategy Statement on the
Fund’s website.
The valuation of the Fund has been undertaken
using the projected unit method under which the
salary increase for each member is assumed to
increase until they leave active service by death,
retirement or withdrawal from service. The principal
assumptions were:
For Future Service Liabilities

Commutation Assumption
It is assumed that future retirees will take 75% of the
maximum additional tax-free lump sum up to HMRC
limits for pre-April 2008 service and for post-April
2008 service.

20. Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
In addition to the Triennial Funding Valuation, the
Actuary also undertakes a valuation of pension fund
liabilities on an IAS19 basis every year using the
same base data as the Valuation, rolled forward to

North Yorkshire County Council

the current financial year, taking account of changes
in membership numbers and using updated
assumptions. A statement prepared by the Actuary
is attached as an Appendix.

21. Current Assets

Debtors

31st March

31st March

2021

2020

£000

£000

396

435

1,733

2,292

2,129

2,727

10,791

8,916

0

254

Investment Debtors
Accrued Dividends
Withholding Taxes Recoverable

Other Debtors

Investment Return

4.20%

per annum

Contributions due from Scheduled (Government) Bodies

Inflation

2.60%

per annum

Contributions due from Admitted Bodies

Salary Increases

3.85%

per annum

Pensions Rechargeable

752

877

Pensions Increases

2.10%

per annum

Other

536

1,387

12,079

11,434

11,494

4,969

Future life expectancy based on the Actuary’s Fund
specific mortality review was:

Cash

Male

Female

11,494

4,969

Current pensioners

21.8 years

23.8 years

25,702

19,130

Future pensioners
(assumed current age 45)

23.4 years

25.6 years

2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

203

42

(a) Long Term Debtors

Long Term Debtors
Reimbursement of Lifetime Tax Allowances

56

50:50 Option
It is assumed that no active members
(evenly distributed across the age, service
and salary range) will take up the 50:50
option in the LGPS 2014 scheme.

57

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

22. Current Liabilities
2020/21

2019/20

£000

£000

0

0

7,548

3,402

7,548

3,402

Creditors
Investment Creditors
Sundry Other Creditors

23. Additional Voluntary
Contributions (AVCs)
We have been unable to obtain from our AVC
provider Prudential the figures for market value
of the AVCs as at 31 March 2021 and the
contributions paid during the year 2020/21. The
market value of the AVCs as at 31 March 2020
was £20,222k and contributions paid directly to
Prudential during the year 2019/20 was £2,047k.

Page 112

24. Agency Services
The North Yorkshire Pension Fund does not operate
Agency Services contracts.

25. Related Party Transactions
North Yorkshire County Council
The North Yorkshire Pension Fund is administered
by North Yorkshire County Council. Consequently,
there is a strong relationship between the Council
and the Fund.
The Council incurred costs of £1.6m (£1.5m in
2019/20) in relation to the administration of the
Fund and was subsequently reimbursed by the
Fund for these expenses. The Council is also the
single largest employer of members of the Fund and
contributed £56.9m to the Fund in 2020/21 (£48.2m
in 2019/20).
The Fund’s cash holdings for cashflow purposes
are invested with banks and other institutions by the
treasury management operations of NYCC, through
a service level agreement. During the year to 31
March 2021 the Fund had an average investment
balance of £9.0m (£11.3m during 2019/20) and

58

North Yorkshire County Council

received interest of £42.6k (£102.7k received in
2019/20) on these funds. The Fund also holds a
cash investment with NYCC Treasury Management.
The value of this investment at the end of 2020/21
was £100.3m (£133.8m in 2019/20).
Governance
As at 31 March 2021 there were no Pension Fund
Committee Members who were also active members
of the Fund. The Corporate Director – Strategic
Resources, who was also the Treasurer of the Fund
was an active member. Benefits for the Treasurer
were accrued on exactly the same basis as for all
other members of the Fund.
Key Management Personnel
The Code exempts local authorities from the key
management personnel disclosure requirements of
IAS 24. This exemption applies in equal measure to
the accounts of the Fund. The disclosures required
by The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations
can be found in the main accounts of NYCC.

26. Contingent Liabilities and
Contractual Commitments
Outstanding capital commitments (investments)
at 31 March 2021 were £177.1m (31 March 2020
£165.5m). These commitments relate to outstanding
call payments due on unquoted limited partnership
funds held in the private debt and infrastructure
parts of the portfolio.

27. Contingent Assets
Four admitted body employers hold insurance bonds
to guard against the possibility of being unable to
meet their pension obligations. These bonds are
drawn in favour of the Fund and payment will only
be triggered in the event of an employer default.

28. Impairment Losses
The Fund had no material impairment losses at the
year-end (£nil in 2019/20).

Appendix B
Statement of the Actuary

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Statement of the Actuary for the year ended 31 March 2021
Introduction
The Scheme Regulations require that a full actuarial valuation is carried out every third year. The purpose of
this is to establish that the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (the Fund) is able to meet its liabilities to past and
present contributors and to review employer contribution rates. The last full actuarial investigation into the
financial position of the Fund was completed as at 31 March 2019 by Aon, in accordance with Regulation 62
of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.
Actuarial Position
1. The valuation as at 31 March 2019 showed
that the funding level of the Fund had increased
since the previous valuation with the market
value of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March
2019 (of £3,575.2M) covering 114% of the
liabilities allowing, in the case of pre- 1 April
2014 membership for current contributors to the
Fund, for future increases in pensionable pay.
2. The valuation also showed that the aggregate
level of contributions required to be paid by
participating employers with effect from 1 April
2020 was:
• 19.3% of pensionable pay. This is the rate
calculated as being sufficient, together with
contributions paid by members, to meet
the liabilities arising in respect of service
after the valuation date (the primary rate),
Plus
• an allowance of 0.9% of pay for McCloud and
cost management – see paragraph 9 below,
Less
• 1.6% of pensionable pay to remove surplus
in excess of a funding level of 110% over
a recovery period of 21 years from 1 April
2020 (which together with the allowance
above comprises the secondary rate).

3. In practice, each individual employer's or
group of employers' position is assessed
separately and contributions are set out
in Aon's report dated 30 March 2020 (the
"actuarial valuation report"). In addition to
the contributions certified, payments to
cover additional liabilities arising from early
retirements (other than ill-health retirements)
will be made to the Fund by the employers.
Total contributions payable by all employers over
the three years to 31 March
2023 are estimated to be:
Year from
1 April

% of pensionable
pay

Plus total
contribution
amount (£M)

2020

19.3

1.2

2021

18.5

1.3

2022

17.1

1.4

4. The funding plan adopted in assessing the
contributions for each employer is in accordance
with the Funding Strategy Statement. Different
approaches were adopted in relation to the
calculation of the primary contribution rate,
stepping of contribution changes and individual
employers' recovery periods as agreed with
the Administering Authority and reflected in
the Funding Strategy Statement, reflecting the
employers' circumstances.

59

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

5. The valuation was carried out using the
projected unit actuarial method for most
employers and the main financial actuarial
assumptions used for assessing the funding
target and the contribution rates were as follows.
Discount rate for periods in service
Secure scheduled body employers *

4.2% p.a.

Intermediate funding target

3.8% p.a.

Ongoing Orphan employers

3.3% p.a.

Low risk funding target

1.3% p.a.

Discount rate for periods after leaving service
Secure scheduled body employers *

4.2% p.a.

Intermediate funding target

3.8% p.a.

Ongoing Orphan employers

1.6% p.a.

Low risk funding target

1.3% p.a.

Rate of pay increases

3.35% p.a.

Page 113

Rate of increase to pension accounts

2.1% p.a.

Rate of increases in pensions in payment (in
excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension)

2.1% p.a.

* The secure scheduled body discount rate was also used
for employers whose liabilities will be subsumed after exit by
a scheduled body.
In addition, the discount rate for already orphaned liabilities
(i.e. where there is no scheme employer responsible for
funding those liabilities and employer has exited the Fund)
was 1.3% p.a.

The assets were valued at market value.
Further details of the assumptions adopted
for the valuation, including the demographic
assumptions, are set out in the actuarial
valuation report.
6. The key demographic assumption was the
allowance made for longevity. The post
retirement mortality assumption adopted for
the actuarial valuation was in line with standard
self-administered pension scheme (SAPS)
S2N mortality tables with appropriate scaling
factors applied based on an analysis of the
Fund's pensioner mortality experience, and
included an allowance for improvements based

60

North Yorkshire County Council

on the 2018 Continuous Mortality Investigation
(CMI) Projections Model (CMI2018), with sk of
7.5 and parameter A of 0.0 assuming a long
term annual rate of improvement in mortality
rates of 1.5% p.a. The resulting average future
life expectancies at age 65 (for normal health
retirements) were:
Men

Women

Current pensioners aged 65 at the
valuation date

21.8

23.8

Current active members aged 45 at
the valuation date

23.4

25.6

7. The valuation results summarised in
paragraphs 1 and 2 above are based on the
financial position and market levels at the
valuation date, 31 March 2019. As such the
results do not make allowance for changes
which have occurred subsequent to the
valuation date. The Administering Authority,
in conjunction with the Actuary, monitors
the funding position on a regular basis.
8. The formal actuarial valuation report and the
Rates and Adjustments Certificate setting
out the employer contribution rates for the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023
were signed on 30 March 2020. Other than
as agreed or otherwise permitted or required
by the Regulations and reflected in the
Funding Strategy Statement as appropriate,
employer contribution rates will be reviewed
at the next actuarial valuation of the Fund
as at 31 March 2022 in accordance with
Regulation 62 of the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

9. There are a number of uncertainties regarding
the Scheme benefits and hence liabilities
• Increases to Guaranteed Minimum
Pensions (GMPs):
The 2019 valuation allows for the extension
of the ‘interim solution’ for public service
schemes to pay full inflationary increases
on GMPs for those reaching State Pension
Age (SPA) between 6 April 2016 and
5 April 2021. On 23 March 2021, the
Government published a response to its
consultation on the longer term solution to
achieve equalisation for GMPs as required
by the High Court judgement in the Lloyds
Bank case. The response sets out its
proposed longer term solution, which is
to extend the interim solution further to
those reaching SPA after 5 April 2021.
The results of the 2019 valuation do not
allow for the impact of this proposed longer
term solution. Based on approximate
calculations, at a whole of fund level, the
impact of providing full pension increases
on GMPs for those members reaching
State Pension Age after 5 April 2021 is an
increase in past service liabilities of between
0.1% to 0.2% across the Fund as a whole.
• Cost Management Process and McCloud
judgement:
Initial results from the Scheme Advisory
Board 2016 cost management process
indicated that benefit improvements /
member contribution reductions equivalent
to 0.9% of pay would be required. However,
the cost management process was paused
following the Court of Appeal ruling that
the transitional arrangements in both the
Judges' Pension Scheme (McCloud) and
Firefighters' Pension Scheme (Sargeant)
constituted illegal age discrimination.
Government confirmed that the judgement
would be treated as applying to all public
service schemes including the LGPS

(where the transitional arrangements
were in the form of a final salary underpin)
and a consultation on changes to the
LGPS was issued in July 2020.
The employer contributions certified from
1 April 2020 as part of the 2019 valuation
include an allowance of 0.9% of pay in
relation to the potential additional costs
following the McCloud judgement / cost
management process. This was a simplified
approach which didn't take account of
different employer membership profiles or
funding targets and may be more or less
than the assessed cost once the details of
the LGPS changes arising from the McCloud
judgement and the 2016 cost management
process have been agreed.
Work on the 2020 cost management process
has now been started, and it is possible
that further changes to benefits and/or
contributions may ultimately be required
under that process, although the outcome is
not expected to be known for some time.
• Goodwin
An Employment Tribunal ruling relating to the
Teachers' Pension Scheme concluded that
provisions for survivor's benefits of a female
member in an opposite sex marriage are
less favourable than for a female in a same
sex marriage or civil partnership, and that
treatment amounts to direct discrimination
on grounds of sexual orientation. The chief
secretary to the Treasury announced in a
written ministerial statement on 20 July
2020 that he believed that changes would
be required to other public service pension
schemes with similar arrangements, although
these changes are yet to be reflected in
LGPS regulations. We expect the average
additional liability to be less than 0.1%,
however the impact will vary by employer
depending on their membership profile.

61

Annual Report and Accounts 2020/21

North Yorkshire Pension Fund

10. This Statement has been prepared by the
Actuary to the Fund, Aon, for inclusion in the
accounts of the Fund. It provides a summary of
the results of the actuarial valuation which was
carried out as at 31 March 2019. The valuation
provides a snapshot of the funding position at
the valuation date and is used to assess the
future level of contributions required.

11. The report on the actuarial valuation as at 31
March 2019 is available on the Fund's website
at the following address:
www.nypf.org.uk/Documents/Actuarial%20
valuation%20report%202019.pdf
Aon Solutions UK Limited
May 2021

Appendix C
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S STATEMENT TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY
COUNCIL ON THE NORTH YORKSHIRE PENSION FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(To follow.)

This Statement must not be considered without
reference to the formal actuarial valuation report
which details fully the context and limitations of
the actuarial valuation.
Aon does not accept any responsibility
or liability to any party other than our
client, North Yorkshire County Council,
the Administering Authority of the
Fund, in respect of this Statement.

Page 114
62

North Yorkshire County Council

63

Contact us
W: www.northyorks.gov.uk E: customer.services@northyorks.gov.uk
T: 01609 780 780 (Monday to Friday 8.00am - 5.30pm closed weekends and bank holidays)
North Yorkshire County Council, County Hall, Northallerton, North Yorkshire, DL7 8AD

You can request this information in another language or format at
www.northyorks.gov.uk/accessibility

Page 115
84636 09/21

nl
y
D

ra
f

tO

Page 116

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Update report to the Audit Committee on the 2021 audit
Issued on 22 October 2021

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Contents
01 Update Report

02 Appendices
4

Audit adjustments

20

Materiality

6

Independence and fees

21

Scoping

7

Fraud responsibilities and representations

22

Significant risk

8

Other findings

15
18

ra
f

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement

24

tO

10

Topical matters

D

Page 117

Audit focus areas

nl
y

Partner introduction

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

2

nl
y
tO
ra
f
D

Page 118

Update report

A tailored, insightful and efficient audit
delivered by a team of pension audit
specialists
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

3

Partner introduction
The key messages in this report:
I have pleasure in presenting our Update Report to the Audit Committee for the 2021 audit of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (the ‘Fund’) and I would like
to draw your attention to the key messages of this paper:

A strong understanding of
your internal control
environment.
A well planned and
delivered audit that raises
findings early with those
charged with governance.

Form an opinion on the statutory financial statements of the Fund which are prepared under the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting 2020/21 (“the Code”) issued by CIPFA; and

•

Report to “those charged with governance” on certain additional matters, including any unadjusted errors over our
reporting threshold (“RT”), our independence and any other issues we consider should be brought to their attention.

Status of our audit

nl
y

•

tO

Page 119

A robust challenge of the
key judgements taken in the
preparation of the financial
statements.

Our reporting responsibilities as auditor of the Fund are to:

We have the following matters to complete as part of our audit:
•

Completion of internal quality assurance procedures, including review processes and follow-up queries arising from
review;

•

Review of updated final version of the financial statements;

•

Receipt of signed management representation letter; and

•

Our review of events since 31 March 2021 through to signing.

ra
f

We plan our audit to focus
on audit quality and have
set the following audit
quality objectives for this
audit:

Audit scope

D

Audit quality is our number
one priority.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Partner introduction
The key messages in this report (continued):
Our conclusion
Based on our work undertaken, we plan to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the financial statements of the Fund included within the financial
statements of North Yorkshire County Council. However, we do have procedures outstanding and will report to management should any further
matters arise as we complete our work. Our work on the Fund’s annual report will be undertaken following signing of these financial statements.

nl
y

In reaching our conclusions, we considered the control observations and the results from our testing on pages 9 to 16. In addition, we noted:
• The significant accounting judgements and estimates appear reasonable; and

• There is one uncorrected adjustment as set out in Appendix 1, but no uncorrected disclosure deficiencies.

tO

ra
f
D

Page 120

We will provide a Final Report on completion of the outstanding procedures.

Nicola Wright
Audit Partner

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

5

Materiality
Our approach to materiality
Basis of our materiality benchmark

Materiality calculation

• We set materiality for our opinion on the financial statements
at 1% (2020: 1%) of the net assets of the Fund.

Although materiality is the judgement of the audit partner, the Audit Committee must
be satisfied the level of materiality chosen is appropriate for the scope of the audit.

tO

Net Assets

1%

£4.5bn

ra
f

• For the year ended 31 March 2021, we determined the
reporting threshold for the financial statements to be £2.25m
(2020: £1.8m).

• Auditing standard also require us to highlight any uncorrected
disclosure deficiencies to enable the Audit Committee to
evaluate the impact thereof.

5 % Reporting Threshold

£45.1m

£2.25m

• We have one uncorrected misstatement to report and have no
disclosure deficiencies to report to you (see Appendix 1). There
were no material corrected misstatements.

D

Page 121

• We report to you all misstatements found in excess of 5% of
financial statement materiality. We report to you
misstatements below this threshold if we consider them to be
material by nature.

Financial Statement Materiality

Reporting to those charged with governance

nl
y

• For the year ended 31 March 2021, we determined financial
statement materiality to be £45.1m (2020: £35.4m).

£15k

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

6

Scoping
Risk dashboard
Material
Balance

Risk Identified

Management
Judgement

Significant Risk
Management override of controls

Controls
Approach

Fraud
Risk

Further Details

ra
f

Other Focus Area
Completeness and accuracy of contributions

D&I

Pg. 11

D&I

Pg. 12

D&I, OE

Pg. 13

D&I

Pg. 14

D

Page 122

Other Focus Area
Completeness of investments and valuation of alternative
investments

tO

Other Focus Area
Completeness and accuracy of the asset transfer to Border to Coast

Other Focus Area
Accuracy of investment transactions

Pg. 9

nl
y

D&I

Significant Risk

Low levels of management judgement/complexity

D&I

Design and Implementation

Other area of audit focus

Medium levels of management judgement/complexity

OE

Operating effectiveness

High degree of management judgement/complexity

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

7

nl
y
tO
D

ra
f

Page 123

Significant
audit risks

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

8

Significant risk
Management override of controls
Risk identified
In accordance with ISA 240 (UK) management override is always a significant risk for financial statement audits.
The primary risk areas surrounding the management override of internal controls are over the processing of journal entries and the key assumptions and
estimates made by management.
with

In order to address this significant risk, our audit procedures consisted of the following:

tO

 Use of Spotlight, our data analytics software, in our journals testing to interrogate 100% of journals posted across
the Fund. This uses intelligent algorithms that identify higher risk and unusual items;
 Performed a walkthrough of the financial reporting process to identify the controls over journal entries and other
adjustments posted in the preparation of the financial statements;

ra
f

 Made inquiries of individuals involved in the financial reporting process about inappropriate or unusual activity
relating to the processing of journal entries and other adjustments;
 Tested the design and implementation of controls around the journals process, and investment and disinvestment
of cash during the year;
 Reviewed related party transactions and balances to identify if any inappropriate transactions had taken place;
 Reviewed the accounting estimates for bias, such as year-end debtor and creditor postings and the valuation of
unlisted investments, that could result in material misstatement due to fraud, including whether any differences
between estimates best supported by evidence and those in the financial statements, even if individually
reasonable, indicate a possible bias on the part of management; and

D

Page 124

The financial reporting process in place
has an adequate level of segregation of
duties.

Deloitte response to significant risk identified

nl
y

Response of those charged
governance

 Assessed whether there is an appropriate level of segregation of duties over processing journal entries to the
financial statements throughout the year.
Deloitte comment
We have identified no matters to report to the Audit Committee.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

9

nl
y
tO
D

ra
f

Page 125

Audit focus
areas

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

10

Audit focus areas
Completeness and accuracy of the asset transfer to Border to Coast
Risk identified
Due to the Government announcement that Local Government Pension Schemes (‘LGPS’) must pool their assets together in order to reduce the cost of
investing to the public purse, the Fund became part of the Border to Coast Pension Partnership (‘BCPP’) in the prior year.

Response of those charged with governance

Deloitte response to audit focus area identified

In the prior year, the Fund engaged Legal &
General (‘LGIM’) to provide oversight and to
report to them on the transition process.

In order to address this audit focus area, our audit procedures consisted of the following:

•

Tested the design and implementation of key controls around asset transfers by reviewing the Border to Coast
Type 2 internal control report and the custodian internal control report.

tO

Confirmed the completeness and the accuracy of the values of the assets transferred by comparing the
purchases of BCPP funds as per the client’s breakdown and the investment manager reports; and

ra
f

Deloitte comment

•

As a transition report was not issued in relation to the asset transfer to Border to Coast this financial year, our approach has therefore been to test the transactions. We
have identified no matters to report to the Audit Committee as part of this work.

D

Page 126

nl
y

During the current year, the Fund transferred a further £90m of directly held assets to Border to Coast.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

11

Audit focus areas
Accuracy of investment transactions
Risk identified
The Fund holds a diverse portfolio of pooled investment vehicles including equities, bonds, pooled investment vehicles (‘PIVs’) and property PIVs. The volume
of transactions and different holdings could lead to a risk of incomplete or inaccurate reporting of transactions or balances at the year-end.

Deloitte response to audit focus area identified

The Fund engages various investment managers (including
BCPP) and BNYM as custodian for these investments.

In order to address this audit focus area, our audit procedures consisted of the following:

nl
y

Response of those charged with governance

Performed design and implementation testing on the key controls over the accuracy of investment
transactions by obtaining investment manager internal control reports and evaluating the
implications for our audit of any exceptions noted;

Page 127

•

Obtained independent confirmation of transactions during the Fund year from the investment
managers;
Performed a unit reconciliation in which the opening investment balances and unit quantities
are reconciled to the closing investment balances and unit quantities by taking into account
the movement that occurred during the year (i.e. purchases, sales, change in market value);

ra
f

•

tO

•

Performed design and implementation testing on an investment sale transaction, agreeing to the
investment mandate and the investment manager’s transaction report; and

•

Tested the completeness of investments by agreeing a sample of purchases and sales by vouching
items from the custodian report to the relevant investment manager confirmation.

D

Deloitte comment

•

The pensions team does not perform investment unit reconciliations or review one performed by the custodian, instead relying on review of cash
movements. This increases the risk that an investment transaction goes unnoticed, as the change in market value is effectively a balancing figure in the
annual reconciliation. We recommend that the pensions team performs a regular unit reconciliation of the investment holdings, thus ensuring completeness
of transactions.
Except for the above, we have not identified any findings relating to the accuracy of investment transactions to report to the Audit Committee.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

12

Audit focus areas
Completeness of investments and valuation of alternative investments
Risk identified
The Fund holds a large and highly material portfolio of investments and due to the ongoing changes and numerous transactions within this portfolio, there is
considered to be an increased risk of material misstatement.
Additionally, within this portfolio, there is a range of alternative investments. These funds do not have publicly available prices and are often infrequently
priced, increasing the risk of stale pricing.
Deloitte response to audit focus area identified

The Fund engages various investment managers
(including BCPP) and BNYM as custodian for
these investments.

In order to address this audit focus area, our audit procedures consisted of the following:
Tested the design and implementation, and the operating effectiveness where applicable, of key
controls over the completeness and valuation of investments by obtaining the investment manager
internal control report (where applicable) and evaluating the implications for our audit of any
exceptions noted;

•

Agreed the year end valuations and sales and purchases totals in the accounts to the reports received
directly from the investment managers and BNYM as custodian, and reconciled these to the individual
confirmations received from the investment managers;

•

Agreed registered funds and directly held investments to publicly available prices;

•

Performed independent valuation testing for a sample of year-end alternative investment holdings by
rolling forward the valuation as per the latest audited accounts using cash flows and an appropriate
index as a benchmark;

•

Ensured appropriate stale price adjustments have been posted to the financial statements; and

•

Performed a unit reconciliation in which the opening investment balances and unit quantities are
reconciled to the closing investment balances and unit quantities by taking into account the movement
that occurred during the year (i.e. purchases, sales, change in market value).

tO

•

D

ra
f

Page 128

nl
y

Response of those charged with governance

Deloitte comment

The internal control reports for Threadneedle and Borders to Coast are qualified, however we are satisfied that these qualifications have no impact on the
year-end valuation of investments and the completeness of transactions during the year.
We also identified a difference between the custodian and investment manager reports, which has led to an understatement of the year end investment
value by £9m. This was due to an error in the custodian report. We have raised this as an unadjusted error in Appendix 1.
We have no other matters to bring to the attention of the Audit Committee.
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

13

Audit focus areas
Completeness and accuracy of contributions
Risk identified

nl
y

There is some complexity surrounding the completeness and accuracy of employer and employee contributions received by the Fund. The employer primary
and secondary contribution rates are dictated by the actuarial valuation and these vary between the contributing employers. Employee contributions are
based on varying percentages of employee pensionable pay. This can vary from month to month and the Fund has no oversight of the individual employer
payrolls.
As a result, we consider the completeness and accuracy of contributions to be an audit focus area.

The administration team monitors the due
dates of contributions and that the correct
amounts are received into the Fund bank
account to ensure that payments are in
accordance with the actuarial valuation.

In order to address this audit focus area, our audit procedures consisted of the following:
•

Tested the design and implementation of key controls over the contributions process;

•

Performed an analytical review of the employer and employee normal contributions received in the
year, basing our expectation on the prior year audited balance, adjusted for the movement in active
member numbers, contribution rate changes and any average pay rise awarded in the year;

•

For a sample of active members, we recalculated individual contribution deductions to ensure these are
being calculated in accordance with the rates stipulated in the LGPS Regulations for employee
contributions and the recommendations of the actuary for employer contributions;

•

Tested that the correct definition of pensionable salary is being used per the LGPS Regulations to
calculate contribution deductions; and

ra
f

Employers
must
also
complete
a
contributions return confirming that the
contributions paid during the year are
complete and accurate.

tO

Deloitte response to audit focus area identified

D

Page 129

Response of those charged with governance

•

For a sample of monthly contributions paid, we checked that they had been paid within the due dates
per the LGPS Regulations.

Deloitte comment
We have not identified any matters to report to the Audit Committee.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

14

Other findings
Heywood Altair system – no formal Service Level Agreement (SLA)
Risk identified
It has been noted that the North Yorkshire County Council (the ‘Council’) are responsible for the hosting and maintenance of the Heywood Altair system, the
main pension administration system for North Yorkshire Pension Fund. The Fund does not receive Service Auditor Reports (SARs) from the Council and there
are no formal SLAs in place with them. There is also no independent monitoring from management at the Fund over the main pension administration system
that is hosted externally. This leads to the Pension Fund receiving no assurance over the operation of key IT general computer controls including information
security, change management and IT operations.

tO

ra
f

Formal Service Level Agreements should be put in the place between the Council and the Fund, so as to ensure that the Fund receives assurance over the
operation of key IT general computer controls.

D

Page 130

Recommendation

nl
y

In mitigation, there are general SLAs in place within the Council that are used across all services that the Council has a business relationship with, therefore
there are general expectations outlined between the Council and the Fund, although not specific to the needs of the Fund. The Council hosts a range of
services for external organisations, therefore the Fund is able to gain some assurance over the security and operating effectiveness of the controls the
Council holds over the underlying infrastructure of the Heywood Altair system.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

15

Prior year findings
Follow up on prior year findings
Finding

Recommendation

Follow up

Heywood Altair system – no formal Service Level Formal Service Level Agreements should be put in place No change. We continue to report this finding in the
Agreement (SLA).
between the Council and the Fund, so as to ensure that current year – see page 15.
the Fund received assurance over the operation of key IT
general computer controls.

ra
f
D

Page 131

tO

nl
y

The pensions team does not perform a unit reconciliation We recommend that the pensions team performs a No change. We continue to report this finding in the
of investment holdings, relying instead on reporting regular unit reconciliation of the investment holdings, current year – see page 12.
prepared by the global custodian, BNYM.
thus ensuring completeness of transactions.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

16

Other risks
Other audit considerations
Audit response

Going Concern

As auditors, we are required to confirm in our audit
report that the going concern basis of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Our testing to address this risk included:
• examined the latest publically available information regarding the financial position of the
principal employers;
• analysed the latest funding position of the Fund; and
• reviewed minutes of the Audit Committee meetings.

Fraud

In our Audit Report in the financial statements we are
now required to directly report on the extent to which
the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud and other matters of
non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Our testing to address the risk included:
• performed procedures to assess the risk of management override as detailed on page 9;
• reviewed the controls in place surrounding fraud risks including disinvestments; and
• agreed a sample of investments to third party investment confirmations.

Brexit

During the Scheme year, the UK have left the
European Union (“EU”).

Our testing to address the risk included:
• assessed the fair value of assets as at the Fund’s year-end date;
• reviewed minutes of the Audit Committee meetings and the going concern assessment; and
• confirmed that appropriate disclosures have been made in the financial statements.

tO

nl
y

Description

ra
f

The impact of Brexit may be felt across the Scheme
and its operations, for example through withholding
taxes and the impact on the going concern of the
Fund.

D

Page 132

Area of focus

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

17

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement
Our report is designed to help you meet your governance duties
The scope of our work

Our report is designed to help the
Audit Committee discharge their
governance duties. It also
represents one way in which we
fulfil our obligations under ISA 260
(UK) to communicate with you
regarding your oversight of the
financial reporting process and
your governance requirements.
Our report includes:

As you will be aware, our audit
was not designed to identify all
matters that may be relevant to
the Audit Committee.

Our observations are developed in
the context of our audit of the
Fund accounts.

•

Our internal control
observations.

•

Other insights we have
identified from our audit.

The audit insights and other
control findings of this report
provide details of additional work
we have performed alongside the
audit of the Fund accounts.

tO

Results of our work on key
audit judgements and our
observations.

We described the scope of our
work in our proposed audit plan
circulated to you on 12 March
2021.

Finally, our views on internal
controls and Fund risk assessment
should not be taken as
comprehensive or as an opinion
on effectiveness since they have
been based solely on the audit
procedures performed in the audit
of the Fund accounts and the
other procedures performed in
fulfilling our audit plan.

This report has been prepared for
the AC, as a body, and we
therefore accept responsibility to
you alone for its contents. We
accept no duty, responsibility or
liability to any other parties, since
this report has not been prepared,
and is not intended, for any other
purpose. Except where required
by law or regulation, it should not
be made available to any other
parties without our prior written
consent.

ra
f

•

Also, there will be further
information you need to discharge
your governance responsibilities,
such as matters reported on by
management or by other specialist
advisers.

nl
y

What we don’t report

D

Page 133

What we report

Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
We welcome the opportunity to discuss our report with you and
receive your feedback.

Newcastle upon Tyne | 22 October 2021
18

nl
y
D

ra
f

tO

Page 134

Appendices
Key audit matters

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Appendix 1: Audit adjustments
Current year and prior year audit adjustments
Detail

Debit/ (credit)
Fund Account
£m

Debit/ (credit)
Net Asset Statement
£m

(9)

9

-

-

nl
y

Uncorrected misstatements identified in current year
Corrected misstatements identified in current year

As set out on page 13, we identified an understatement of investment assets due to an error in the custodian report at year end.
Disclosure deficiencies

ra
f

At the time of writing this report, there were no corrected or uncorrected disclosure deficiencies to bring to the Audit Committee’s attention for the current year. Should any further
items arise as we complete our audit procedures, this will be reported to management and in our Final Report.
Prior year misstatements and disclosure deficiencies

In the prior year, there was a stale price adjustment relating to Permira Credit fund (£1.58m) which was corrected in the financial statements.
There were no other uncorrected misstatements or corrected or uncorrected disclosure deficiencies in the prior year.

D

Page 135

tO

Uncorrected misstatements

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

20

Appendix 2: Independence and fees
A Fair and Transparent Fee
As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK), we are required to report to you on the matters listed below:

In considering the requirements of Auditor Guidance Note 01 (issued by the National Audit Office) and the Ethical Standard 2019 to report
all significant facts and matters that may bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence, though not meeting the defined criteria
for an affiliate of an audited entity, we have taken account of the tax and internal audit services provided to Border to Coast Partnership
by Deloitte. To this effect, we have documented our assessment on the threats and safeguards concerned with the delivery of services to,
and the receipt of fees from, Border to Coast Pension Partnership, along with our assessment on the opinion of a reasonable and informed
third party on these services.
Our audit fee for the year ended 31 March 2021 is £19,206* (2020 £19,206**) for the Fund. The fee excludes VAT and includes out of
pocket expenses.

ra
f

The fee reflected here is the scale fee. In line with recent PSAA correspondence that scale fees should be negotiated by individual s151
officers, we will be looking to discuss with the Authority the current level of fee.
*This fee excludes the cost of providing IAS 19 letters to other local authorities that will be recharged by the Fund to the other local
authorities. The latter has been discussed with management and agreed at £2,000 (2020 £2,500) per letter.
**We have also requested an additional fee due to the impact of Covid-19 on the audit of £5,440. This request is currently under
consideration by PSAA.

Non audit
services
Ethical Standard
2019

D

Page 136

Fees

nl
y

confirmation

We confirm the audit engagement team, and others in the firm as appropriate, Deloitte LLP and, where applicable, all Deloitte network
firms are independent of the Fund.

tO

Independence

In our opinion there are no inconsistencies between the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Fund’s policy for the supply of non-audit services
or any apparent breach of that policy. We continue to review our independence and ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place
including, but not limited to, the rotation of senior partners and professional staff and the involvement of additional partners and
professional staff to carry out reviews of the work performed and to otherwise advise as necessary.
The FRC has released the Ethical Standard 2019. The standard classes pension schemes as ‘other entities of public interest’ where assets
are greater than £1bn and there are 10,000 members. As a result, non audit services will be limited primarily to reporting accountant
work, audit related and other regulatory and assurance services. All other advisory services to these entities, their UK parents and worldwide subs will be prohibited.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

21

Appendix 3: Fraud responsibilities and representations
Responsibilities explained
Your responsibilities:

•

Our responsibilities:

•

We have disclosed to you the results of our
assessment of the risk that the financial statements
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

•

We are not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud
/ We have disclosed to you all information in
relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are
aware of and that affects the Fund and Authority
and involves:
(i)
management;

•

As auditors, we obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error.

•

As set out in the significant risks section of this document, we have identified
management override as a key risk for the Fund.

ra
f

tO

We are required to obtain representations from your management regarding internal
controls, assessment of risk and any known or suspected fraud or misstatement.

•

Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either fraud or error. The
distinguishing factor between fraud and error is whether the underlying action that
results in the misstatement of the financial statements is intentional or unintentional.

•

Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant to us as auditors – misstatements
resulting from fraudulent financial reporting and misstatements resulting from
misappropriation of assets.

D

Page 137

•

Fraud characteristics:

We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control
to prevent and detect fraud and error.

nl
y

The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
management and the Audit Committee, including establishing and maintaining internal
controls over the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of
operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

We will request the following to be stated in the
representation letter signed on behalf of the Audit
Committee:

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

•

(ii)

employees who have significant roles in
internal control; or

(iii)

others where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all information in
relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the Fund’s financial statements
communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators or others.

22

Appendix 3: Fraud responsibilities and representations (continued)
Inquiries
We will make the following inquiries regarding fraud:
Management:
Management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated due to fraud, including the nature, extent and frequency of
such assessments.

•

Management’s process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the Fund.

•

Management’s communication, if any, to the Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the Fund.

•

Management’s communication, if any, to employees regarding its views on business practices and ethical behaviour.

•

Whether management has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Fund.

•

We plan to involve management from outside the finance function in our inquiries.

Whether internal audit has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Fund, and to obtain its views about the risks of fraud.

The Audit Committee

ra
f

•

tO

Internal audit

•

How the Audit Committee exercises oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the Fund and the internal
control that management has established to mitigate these risks.

•

Whether the Audit Committee has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Fund.

•

The views of the Audit Committee on the most significant fraud risk factors affecting the Fund.

D

Page 138

nl
y

•

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

23

Appendix 4: Topical matters
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) – taking action on climate risk
Prior to the approval of the Pension Schemes Act 2021, the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) opened a consultation on regulations covering the new climate risk powers
contained within the Act. Under the proposed regulations, the UK Government has announced its intention to make Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
disclosures mandatory across the economy by 2025, with a significant portion of mandatory requirements in place by 2023. It is proposed that the following schemes should be in
scope of the mandatory climate change governance and TCFD reporting requirements:
(a) trust schemes with £1 billion or more in net assets
(b) authorised master trusts
(c) authorised schemes providing collective money purchase benefits

nl
y

These qualifying schemes will have to produce and publish a TCFD report. We have included some detail on the recommended content of the TCFD report within this update.
The Minister for Pensions and Financial Inclusion, Guy Opperman stated “I whole-heartedly welcome the Chancellor’s announcement of the TCFD Roadmap in November 2020
outlining the steps that the UK Government and regulators will take towards rolling out mandatory climate reporting requirements across its regulated community. This means that,
come 2023, the vast majority of assets will be invested with pension scheme trustees, asset managers, and insurers who are disclosing climate- related financial risks and opportunities
in line with recommendations by the TCFD.”

tO

ra
f

With almost £2 trillion in assets under management, all pension schemes are exposed to climate-related risks. It is important to note, the government sees stewardship of assets,
including engagement with higher carbon firms and voting at Annual General Meetings (whether directly or via asset managers), as entirely legitimate responses to the climate risk
revealed through TCFD-aligned disclosures. Indeed, holding such assets places trustees in an influential position to steward firms towards lower-carbon business practices, which is
why government advocates collaboration with business, as opposed to divestment.
The four core elements of TCFD disclosures are shown in the diagram and these form the basis of the required pension scheme
disclosures.
1. Governance - Trustees must establish and maintain oversight of the climate-related risks and opportunities which are relevant to the
scheme. They must also establish and maintain processes for the purpose of satisfying themselves that persons undertaking governance
on their behalf or those who advise or assist the trustees with respect to governance, are taking adequate steps to identify, assess and
manage climate-related risks and opportunities which are relevant to the scheme. In their annual TCFD report, trustees must describe
how such oversight is maintained.

D

Page 139

Regulations would require trustees to meet climate change governance requirements which underpin the 11 recommendations of the TCFD and to report on how they have done so.
We have included a separate slide on the TCFD recommendations for reference. Statutory guidance, will set out how trustees should meet the requirements and report in line with the
TCFD recommendations. Where trustees choose to diverge from statutory guidance, they need to be able to explain their reasons for doing so in their TCFD report.

2. Strategy- Trustees must identify and assess the impact of climate-related risks and opportunities which they consider will have an
effect over the short term, medium term and long term on the scheme’s investment strategy and (where it has one) the scheme’s funding
strategy. Short, medium and long term are such periods as the trustees deem appropriate, taking into account the scheme’s liabilities and
its obligations to pay benefits. The trustees need to document the above in their TCFD report.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Appendix 4: Topical matters
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) – taking action on climate risk
3. Risk management - Trustees must establish and maintain processes for the purpose of enabling them to identify, assess and effectively manage climate-related risks which are
relevant to the scheme. They must also ensure that management of climate-related risks is integrated into their overall risk management of the scheme. In their annual TCFD report,
trustees must describe these processes and how they are integrated into the trustees’ overall risk management of the scheme.
4a. Metrics -Trustees must select and as far as they are able to calculate an absolute emissions metric and an emissions intensity metric in respect of the scheme’s assets. Draft
statutory guidance proposes that trustees should use total emissions and carbon footprint metrics – calculating scope 1, and 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emissions (scope 3 is not
included in the first year). Trustees must also select one additional climate change metric to calculate in respect of the scheme’s assets. Draft statutory guidance suggests a range of
measures, including an implied temperature rise or climate value at risk measure. Trustees must review their selection of metrics from time to time as appropriate to the scheme.
The trustees need to document the above in their TCFD report and this must be disclosed in line with the requirements noted in the Disclosure section of this update.

tO

Despite the common core principles of TCFD, the DWP acknowledged that the continuing rapid evolution of methodologies still poses the risk that different approaches could lead
to different results being calculated for the same portfolio/assets. The Department indicated it will be consulting later on the use of one particular metric, ‘implied temperature rise’
(ITR) which is emerging as potentially the most useful and powerful.
We have detailed below a number of other matters of note contained within the DWP paper.

ra
f

Scenario analysis - Trustees must, as far as they are able, undertake scenario analysis assessing the impact on the scheme’s assets and liabilities, the resilience of the scheme’s
investment strategy and (where it has one) the scheme’s funding strategy for at least two scenarios – one of which corresponds to a global average temperature rise of between 1.5
and 2°C inclusive on pre-industrial levels. In their annual TCFD report, trustees must describe the most recent scenarios they have analysed, the potential impact on the scheme’s
assets and liabilities and the resilience of the scheme’s investment strategy and (where it has one) funding strategy in those scenarios, and their reason for not carrying out a new
scenario analysis if they have not done one. Trustees should carry out scenario analysis as far as they are able in relation to all the scheme’s relevant assets. Following the initial
consultation in August 2020, the DWP have confirmed that they have made changes to the original proposal and will require that scenario analysis must be carried out in the first
year that trustees are subject to the requirements and every three years thereafter. In the intervening years, trustees must do an annual review of their scenario analysis and carry
out fresh analysis where they consider it appropriate to do so.

D

Page 140

nl
y

4b. Targets - Trustees must set a non-binding target for the scheme in relation to at least one of the metrics which they have selected to calculate. On an annual basis they must
measure performance against the target (as far as are they are able) and taking into account the scheme’s performance they must decide whether to retain or replace the target. In
their annual TCFD report, trustees must describe the target or targets which they have set, and the performance of the scheme against them.

Trustee knowledge and understanding - Trustees must have the appropriate degree of knowledge and understanding of the principles relating to the identification, assessment and
management of climate change risks and opportunities in respect of occupational pension schemes, for the purposes of enabling them to properly exercise their functions. These
principles will be prescribed matters for the purposes of the Pensions Act 2004.
Disclosure - Trustees are required to publish their TCFD report on a publicly available website, accessible free of charge. The Chair of trustees must sign the report. The TCFD report
must be referenced from – but need not be included in – the Annual Report. Members must be told via any annual benefit statement they receive that the report has been
published and where they can locate it. Trustees of DB schemes must also provide this information to members via the scheme funding statement.
Trustees must also provide TPR with the website address where they have published their most recent TCFD report via the annual scheme return form. Where trustees have not yet
published their first report, they must inform TPR whether the period for doing so has ended. Trustees must also provide TPR with the website address of their published Statement
of Investment Principles (“SIP”) and (where applicable) implementation statement and published excerpts of the Chair’s Statement in the annual scheme return form.
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Appendix 4: Topical matters
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) – taking action on climate risk
Penalties – there will be a mandatory penalty for complete failure to publish any TCFD report and other penalties would be subject to TPR discretion. Penalties in relation to climate
change governance, reporting and publication could be imposed without recourse to the Determinations Panel, in a similar way to the penalty regime that applies under the
Occupational Pension Schemes (Charges and Governance) Regulations 2015.

Scope and timing of TCFD policy
The DWP paper has outlined two tests as to whether a pension scheme is in scope.
We have included details directly from the DWP paper below.

nl
y

The requirements to reference the TCFD report from the Annual Report and inform members about the TCFD report’s availability would be subject to the existing penalty regime in
the Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013. The requirements to inform TPR of the website address of the published TCFD report –
or that the period for publishing the report has not ended – and of the website address of the published SIP, implementation statement (where applicable) and excerpts of the
Chair’s Statement would be subject to the penalty regime in section 10 of the Pensions Act 1995.

Authorisation test

ra
f
D

Page 141

tO

Threshold test

Deloitte response: The DWP document is vast
and we have provided only a short summary
of the key details. The full consultation
document can be found Taking action on
climate risk: improving governance and
reporting by occupational pension schemes –
response and consultation on regulations GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). We recommend that
the trustees review the full guidance and
familiarise themselves with the full
requirements of the legislation.
In order to comply with the legislation there is
a requirement to amend governance
arrangements, consider the impact on
investment strategy, identify and manage
investment risks and obtain the relevant data
from scheme advisers. All reporting duties are
ongoing, except requirements to conduct
scenario analysis, calculate metrics and set
and review performance against targets.
Based on the proposed scope and timing of
the policy on the left, we expect this to come
in to force for the year ended 31 March 2022
financial statements, although the
government has not yet set a firm deadline for
LGPS.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Appendix 4: Topical matters
TCFD recommendations and supporting recommended disclosures
Within our topical update ‘Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) – taking action on climate risk’ we have made reference to the fact that regulations would require trustees to
meet climate change governance requirements which underpin the 11 recommendations of the TCFD and to report within their TCFD report how they have done this. We have
therefore included below a reminder of the recommendations and the supporting recommended disclosures.

Disclose the actual and potential and
opportunities on the organization’s
businesses, strategy, and financial
planning where such information is
material.

Describe management’s role in
assessing and managing climaterelated risks and opportunities.

a)

Describe the climate-related risks
and opportunities the organization
has identified over the short,
medium, and long term.

b) Describe the impact of climaterelated risks and opportunities on
the organization’s businesses,
strategy, and financial planning.
c)

Describe the resilience of the
organization’s strategy, taking into
consideration different climaterelated scenarios, including a 2°C or
lower scenario.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Metrics and Targets

Disclose the metrics and targets used
to assess and manage relevant climaterelated risks and opportunities where
such information is material.

Recommended Disclosures

a)

ra
f

b)

Describe the board’s
oversight of climate-related
risks and opportunities.

Disclose how the organization
identifies, assesses, and
manages climate-related risks.

Recommended Disclosures

D

Page 142

Recommended Disclosures

a)

Risk Management

tO

Disclose the organization’s
governance around climaterelated risks and opportunities.

Strategy

nl
y

Governance

Describe the organization’s
processes for identifying
and assessing climaterelated risks.

Recommended Disclosures

a)

Disclose the metrics used by the
organization to assess climate-related
risks and opportunities in line with its
strategy and risk management process.

b) Describe the organization’s
processes for managing
climate-related risks

b) Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and, if
appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse
gas (GHG) emissions, and the
related risks.

c)

c)

Describe how processes for
identifying, assessing, and
managing climate-related
risks are integrated into the
organization’s overall risk
management.

Describe the targets used by the
organization to manage climaterelated risks and opportunities and
performance against targets.

nl
y
tO
ra
f

Page 143

D

This document is confidential and it is not to be copied or made available to any other party. Deloitte LLP does not accept any liability for use of or
reliance on the contents of this document by any person save by the intended recipient(s) to the extent agreed in a Deloitte LLP engagement
contract.
If this document contains details of an arrangement that could result in a tax or National Insurance saving, no such conditions of confidentiality
apply to the details of that arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax authorities).
Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 1 New
Street Square, London, EC4A 3HQ, United Kingdom.
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited
by guarantee (“DTTL”). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide
services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms.
© 2021 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
13 January 2022
Internal Audit update
Purpose of Report
To provide the Pension Board with an update on internal audit activity
Audit Plan 2020/21
The audit plan for 2020/21 was approved by the Pensions Board on 29 October
2020. All audits for the year have now been completed as detailed below
Audit

Days

Status

Pension Fund Investments

15

Final – Substantial Assurance

Pension Fund Income

15

Final – Substantial Assurance

Pension Fund Expenditure

15

Final – Substantial Assurance

The Investments audit has not been reported to this meeting previously and a
copy of the final report is attached as Appendix 1.
Audit Plan 2021/22
The audit plan for 2021/22 was approved at the meeting on 7 October 2021.
Details of the plan are included below. Only one audit has commenced at
present, although it is intended that work will commence on the remaining
audits in February.

Page 145
OFFICIAL

Audit

Description

Days

Status

Expenditure

A review of pension’s payments
made directly from the Altair
system. The audit will review the
processes for making and changing
pension payments and will also
review the process for changing
bank accounts details of pensioners

15

In progress

IT Security

A review of cyber and IT security in
relation to the pension fund and
pension fund systems. The objective
of the audit will be to provide
assurance to pensions
administration and the pensions
board that appropriate controls are
in place and are applied effectively

15

To commence
February

15

To commence
February

Investments A review of investments held within
BCPP. The audit will review
information provided by BCPP in
relation to investments held within
the pool to ensure performance is
reviewed and investments are held
in accordance with the investment
strategy
Advice and
support

An allowance of time to provide
advice and support and attendance
at Pensions Board

Total

5

50

Follow up
There is 1 outstanding action from the 2019/20 Expenditure report that has a
revised completion date of the end of March 2022. The action for the 20/21
Income audit is not due until March 2022. The actions for the Investments audit
have recently become due and are currently in the process of being followed up
Details are shown in Appendix 2.
Recommendation
Pension Board Members are asked to note this report
Ian Morton,
Assistant Director – Audit Assurance,
Veritau Ltd.

Page 146
OFFICIAL

NYCC Pension Fund Investments 2020-21
Page 147

North Yorkshire County Council
Internal Audit Report

Business Unit: Strategic Resources
Responsible Officer: Corporate Director of Strategic Resources
Service Manager: Head of Investments
Date Issued: 13 October 2021
Status: Final
Reference: 32210/013.bf

1

P1

P2

P3

Actions

0

0

2

Overall Audit Opinion

Substantial Assurance

Summary and Overall Conclusions
Introduction
In the 2015 July Budget the Chancellor announced the Government’s intention to work with Local Government Pension Scheme
administering authorities to ensure that they pool investments to significantly reduce costs while maintaining overall investment
performance. The Chancellor announced that the pools should take the form of up to six British Wealth Funds instead of 89 Local
Government Pension Schemes (LGPS), each with assets of at least £25bn. The objective of the pools was to ensure they met four key
criteria; asset pools that achieve the benefits of scale, strong governance and decision making, reduced costs and excellent value for
money, and an improved capacity to invest in infrastructure.

Page 148

Prior to this, each of the 89 funds operated independently of each other with each managing their own investments and employing their
own investment advisor. The change in arrangements is that the Pool will become responsible for manager selection and monitoring.
This will also continue to be a responsibility of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF) Committee until all of the assets are transitioned.
The responsibilities for determining the investment strategy and asset allocation strategy will remain with the Committee. Pooling
investments offers an opportunity to share knowledge and reduce external investment management fees, as the fund manager is able to
treat the funds as a single client.
The NYPF has joined Border to Coast Pensions Partnership (BCPP) along with 11 other funds. The NYPF has included two key risks on
their most recent risk register in relation to pooling. These are: a failure to transition effectively to new pooling arrangements resulting in
poorer value for money; lower investment returns; and inability to effectively execute investment strategy and a failure of a pension fund
investment manager to meet adequate performance levels resulting in reduced financial returns and re-tendering exercise.
In March 2020 the Covid-19 pandemic had a significant impact on global stock markets and trading conditions. Despite the
unprecedented circumstances, NYPF continued working successfully toward its strategy of transferring investments to the Pool, with the
support of the Fund’s advisors. NYCC officers worked from home and processes were adapted to continue to maintain service delivery
and investment management.

Objectives and Scope of the Audit
The purpose of this audit was to provide assurance to management that there are appropriate procedures and controls in place
surrounding the transferring of funds to the Border to Coast Pensions Partnership. This includes ensuring that:
•
•

There is an approved transition plan that is sufficiently detailed with timescales for the transfer of funds into the BCPP and a plan in
place to manage the risks of transition;
The transition plan is monitored and funds are transferred in accordance with that plan;
2

•
•

Transfers by the NYPF into the BCPP have been undertaken in accordance with procedures;
Post transfer reviews are undertaken to identify lessons learnt and support future transfers.

Key Findings
Contracts for investment, fund management and fund transitions are in place and specify service levels requirements. There are two
contracts in place relating to the Border and Coast Pension Pool (BCPP): a Shareholder Agreement for the BCPP, and an Inter Authority
Agreement (IAA). The shareholder agreement outlines the responsibilities and relationships between the members of the BCPP. The
Inter Authority Agreement is an agreement between Pool members to exercise oversight and governance, including through a Joint
Committee, on the investment performance of collective investment vehicles in the BCPP.
In the first year of transitions to the Pool, NYCC acting on behalf of NYPF, was involved in the appointment of Legal and General
Investment Management as the transition manager. The contract clearly specified the services required from the transition manager. An
additional schedule was drawn up specifically for the transition of UK Equities from the legacy manager to the Pool. Thereafter, the
appointment of each transition manager was done by the Pool through a competitive tendering process.
There is a Risk Register entry outlining the risks to the fund of not transitioning investments to the Pool. The risk register is reviewed and
updated regularly and directly supports the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) and the intention to transition assets to the Pool.

Page 149

The approach to transitions is outlined in the published Investment Strategy Statement with the aim of ultimately transitioning 100% of
the Fund's assets into the pool, with the exception of legacy illiquid investments. Transition timing is dependent on the type of asset and
asset class for investments, including whether there is a suitable sub-fund to invest in. The ISS is reviewed annually as well as every
three years in line with the triennial pension fund valuations. The BCPP issues a Governance calendar to members detailing the timings
for fund launches and associated transition activities. The calendars are updated and distributed to members periodically.
Investments earmarked for transitioning to the Pool are made with the approval of the Pension Fund Committee. Treasurer's reports in
relation to investments are presented to Pension Fund Committee meetings for consideration and approval. Investment approvals are
recorded and the meeting minutes are published on the Pension Administrator's website (NYCC).
Transitions are managed by appointed transition managers who produce and follow a detailed transition plan (run-book). Transition
managers follow standard industry practices and provide daily updates on the status of the transfer to the Pension Fund. Whilst the
movement of funds follows standard industry investment management processes, NYCC does not have any of its own internal process
notes in respect of the transition process.
Authorised dealing instructions are issued to subscribe to investments and contract notes are provided to confirm the transition and
purchase of investments. Officers confirmed that differences between the values of the dealing instructions and contract subscription
notes was due to stock market price fluctuations during the trading period. The Pension Fund does not have a materiality threshold for
3

the costs of transitions. However, transition managers work to standard industry practices and aim to be within one standard deviation
risk range for the overall cost of transitions. Whilst authorised dealing instructions and contract subscription notes were available for the
audit, no authorised CHAPS forms were available to evidence the cash transfers. This was due to paper copies being stored on NYCC
premises which have not been accessible due the Covid-19 pandemic.
Post trade reports and post transfer contract subscription notes are provided to ensure transfers have been completed in accordance with
requirements. For the investments transitioned, all had post trade reports concluding that funds had transitioned successfully and within
expected timeframes. The transition manager for the Global Equity Alpha transition highlighted increased shortfall costs due to stock
market responses to Brexit-related news. However, the overall shortfall was 0.81% which was deemed within the benchmark standard
deviation risk range based on actual trading. Where assets were left unsold at the end of trading activity for the UK Equities fund, the
transition manager outlined their approach to manage the sale of the residual assets to complete the transition. All funds transitioned to
the BCPP had evidence of contract subscription notes to verify the transition of the investments to the Pool. The Pool provides monthly
valuation reports for investments transitioned.

Page 150

Post transition reviews are carried out by the Pool and are conducted by an independent company appointed by the BCPP. These provide
assurance to the Pool that transitions have been completed correctly and identify any lessons learned for future transitions. Both funds
transferred to the BCPP by the Pool's transition manager were reviewed by the third party and found to have been completed correctly.
Lessons learned were identified and, in the case of the Sterling Index Linked Bonds, changes were applied by the transition manager to
improve processes for the next transition. This included overall project management and earlier engagement with the BCPP’s
administrator. Similar lessons were highlighted in the Global Equity Alpha post transition review along with the recommendation to
review hedging strategies employed in the transition.
Asset re-balancing is undertaken if investment returns fall outside the limits set within the Investment Strategy. Re-balancing is
delegated to the Corporate Director, Strategic Resources, is not classed as a change in investments, and can be done without Pension
Fund Committee Approval. The third party Fund performance reports help inform if re-balancing is needed and these, along with the
Treasurer's reports, form part of the standing agenda items at Pension Fund Committee meetings. This means that, in practice, there is
oversight of asset rebalancing when it occurs. The benchmark allocation of assets was amended in May 2019 as part of the Equity
Protection Strategy and re-balancing took place to align to the new benchmarks.
Of the rebalancing transactions tested all had contract notes or authorised instructions for the assets to be moved. One sample required
an authorised CHAPS form but this was not available for the audit due to reasons mentioned earlier. Currently, the internal scheme of
delegation is not based on monetary values. Work is ongoing to put in place a framework to allow the Head of Investments to delegate
authority down further to other officers using monetary thresholds.

4

Overall Conclusions
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited. Our overall opinion of the controls within the system at the time of
the audit was that they provided Substantial Assurance.

Page 151
5

1 Authorised signatory lists
Issue/Control Weakness

Risk

Authorised signatory lists are incomplete.

Transfer of funds and investments are not correctly
authorised.

Findings
The documentation forming part of the formal agreement for the transfer of assets from the legacy manager to the BCPP, was signed
by two authorised NYCC officers acting on behalf of NYPF. However, their sample signatures were not against their names on the
signatory list covering the transfer period (28 January 2019 to 14 September 2020). Only 2 of the required 6 sample signatures were
on the form against the corresponding signatory names. The subsequent signatory list (15 September 2020) was fully complete and
had all required sample signatures, including those officers who had signed the agreement. Neither signatory list detailed monetary
values. At present, internal sign off is not based on monetary values, but work is underway to review this.

Page 152

Agreed Action 1.1
Segregation of duties in relation to the implementation of Committee decisions will be
documented. A review of whether financial limits are appropriate will be undertaken.

6

Priority

3

Responsible
Officer

Senior Accountant,
Pensions

Timescale

31 December 2021

2 Transition process notes
Issue/Control Weakness

Risk

A lack of internal process notes for investment transitions may lead to
erroneous actions and unauthorised investment movements.

Transitions are not managed appropriately by the
pension fund officers.

Findings
The movement of funds follows standard industry investment management processes led by the appointed transition managers.
However, NYCC does not have any of its own internal process notes as guidance for officers involved in the transitions. It may be
beneficial to document internal processes for the role of pension fund officers in investment transitions.
Agreed Action 2.1
Internal processes for the role of pension fund officers involved in investment
transitions will be documented.

Page 153
7

Priority

3

Responsible
Officer

Senior Accountant,
Pensions

Timescale

31 December 2021

Annex 1
Audit Opinions and Priorities for Actions
Audit Opinions
Our work is based on using a variety of audit techniques to test the operation of systems. This may include sampling and data analysis
of wider populations. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our opinion relates only to the objectives set out in the
audit scope and is based on risks related to those objectives that we identify at the time of the audit.
Our overall audit opinion is based on 4 grades of opinion, as set out below.

Page 154

Opinion

Assessment of internal control

Substantial
Assurance

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating effectively
and being consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Reasonable
Assurance

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some issues, noncompliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the
area audited.

Limited Assurance

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the system of
governance, risk management and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the
area audited.

No Assurance

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The
system of governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Priorities for Actions
Priority 1

A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent
attention by management.

Priority 2

A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be
addressed by management.

Priority 3

The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.

8

Page 155
Where information resulting from audit work is made public or is provided to a third party by the client or by Veritau then this must be
done on the understanding that any third party will rely on the information at its own risk. Veritau will not owe a duty of care or
assume any responsibility towards anyone other than the client in relation to the information supplied. Equally, no third party may
assert any rights or bring any claims against Veritau in connection with the information. Where information is provided to a named
third party, the third party will keep the information confidential.

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2
Follow up of agreed actions
Audit

Finding Agreed
Responsible
date
Officer
Expenditure
2
30/04/21 Head of Pensions
19/20
Administration
Income
20/21

1

31/03/22 Head of Pension
Administration /
Senior Accountant

Investments
202/21

1

31/12/21

2

31/12/21

Senior
Accountant,
Pensions
Senior
Accountant,
Pensions

Page 157
OFFICIAL

Name of
Officer
Phillippa
Cockerill
Phillippa
Cockerill/
Qingzi Bu
Qingzi Bu
Qingzi Bu

Action
completed?
Action 2
Revised now
March 22
Not yet due

Follow up in
progress
Follow up in
progress

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
13 January 2022
Pension Fund Risk Register

1. Purpose of the Report
1.1. To provide Pension Board members with the opportunity to comment on the Pension Fund risk
register.
2. Background
2.1. The risk register for the Pension Fund is updated every six months and is formally approved
annually by the Pension Fund Committee (PFC). It is also reviewed by the Pension Board after
each six monthly update. The risk register was last approved by the PFC in July 2021 as part
of the annual governance review of the Fund.
2.2. The summary report of the risk register is included at Appendix 1 with the detail included as
Appendix 2.
3. In year changes
3.1. There have been two risk ranking improvements in the year:
3.1.1. 44/4 Pension Fund Solvency has been moved from category 1 to 2
3.1.2. 44/10 Regulations and Legislation has been moved from category 4 to 5
3.2. The primary changes made to the risk register since the last review are:
3.2.1. Addition of two new risks associated with the McCloud project and Local Government
Reorganisation into the Resources risk – 44/207
3.2.2. Contribution deferral as a result of Covid-19 has been removed from the Employer
Contributions risk – 44/1
3.2.3. Enforcing of charging for late submissions and payments of contributions has been
added to the Employer Contributions risk – 44/1
3.2.4. Process review and mapping work has been removed from the Benefit Payments risk –
44/11
4. Recommendation
4.1. Pension Board Members to provide feedback on the latest risk register.

Phillippa Cockerill
Head of Pensions Administration
County Hall
Northallerton
05 January 2022
Background Papers - Nil

Page 159
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – summary
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Identity
Change





Page 161







Risk Title

Person
Risk Description

Risk
Owner

Classification
Fallback Plan
RR
Post
FBPlan Action Manager
Next
Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat RRs
Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat
Action
Pre

Risk Manager

Solvency deteriorates due to liability
growth exceeding expectations and / or
underperforming investment returns,
44/4 - Pension
inappropriate actuarial assumptions,
CSD SR Head of
CD SR
Fund Solvency adverse market conditions or legislative
Investments
changes requiring a review of employer
contributions, additional payments or
extended recovery period
Failure to transition effectively to new
44/222 - LGPS pooling arrangements resulting in poorer
CSD SR Head of
Pooling
value for money; lower investment
CD SR
Investments
Transition
returns; and inability to effectively
execute investment strategy.
CSD SR Head of
Insufficient staffing and system
Investments CSD
44/207 resources to adequately service the
CD SR
SR Head of
Resources
needs of the Fund resulting in delays,
Pensions
reduced performance and complaints
Administration
Failure of the investment strategy to
44/8 - Investment
achieve sufficient returns from
Strategy
investments whilst responding to cash
CSD SR Head of
(including
flows needs and maintaining assurances CD SR
Investments
Responsible
that investments are made in an
Investment)
environmentally and socially responsible
manner
Internal and/or external fraud as a result
CSD SR Head of
of inappropriate pension administration,
Pensions
44/20 - Fraud
investment activity and cash
CD SR Administration
reconciliation results in financial loss,
CSD SR Head of
loss of reputation
Investments

M

M

H

L

M

2

5 31/05/2022

M

M

H

L

H

2

6 31/05/2022 M

L

H

L

M

3

Y

CSD SR Head of
Investments

M M

L

M

4

Y

CSD SR Head of
Investments

M

H

M M

M

M

2

8 31/03/2022 M

M M

M

L

4

Y

CSD SR Head of
Investments CSD
SR Head of
Pensions
Administration

L

M

L

H

3

7 31/03/2022

M

L

H

3

Y

CSD SR Head of
Investments

H

L

L

H

L

M

3

6 31/12/2021

L

L

L

H

M

L

M

5

Y



44/1 - Employer
Contributions

Failure to maintain sustainability and
CSD SR Head of
affordability of employer contributions
CD SR
Pensions
and ensure those contributions are
Administration
efficiently collected at the required times

M

M M

Nil

M

4

3 31/05/2022 M

M M

Nil

M

4

Y



44/16 - Key
Personnel

Loss and unavailability of key personnel,
CSD SR Head of
leading to potential knowledge gaps and
Investments CSD
delays to provision of advice as new CD SR
SR Head of
personnel take on key roles resulting in
Pensions
reduced performance and complaints.
Administration

M

M

M

M

4

4 31/05/2022

M

M

M

5

Y

OFFICIAL

L

L

L

CSD SR Head of
Pensions
Administration
CSD SR Head of
Investments
CSD SR Head of
Pensions
Administration
CSD SR Head of
Investments
CSD SR Head of
Investments CSD
SR Head of
Pensions
Administration

Page 1 of 3

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – summary
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Identity

Person

Classification
Fallback Plan
RR
Post
Risk
Change
Risk Title
Risk Description
Risk Manager
FBPlan Action Manager
Next
Owner
Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat RRs
Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat
Action
Incorrect/late benefits and payments to
CSD SR Head of
CSD SR Head of
44/11 - Benefit
members resulting in criticism, customer CD SR
Pensions
M L L L
M 4 4 31/03/2022 L
L L L
M 5
Y
Pensions
Payments
dissatisfaction, under/over payments
Administration
Administration
CSD SR Head of
LGPS Regulations and Employer
44/10 CSD SR Head of
Investments CSD
Related Legislation not interpreted and
Regulations and
CD SR
Pensions
M L L L
L 5 3 31/05/2022 M L L L
L 5
Y
SR Head of
implemented correctly resulting in legal
Legislation
Administration
Pensions
challenge
Administration
Failure of the physical or digital security
of the Pension IT system leaving it
vulnerable to downtime or cyber crime
CSD SR Head of
CSD SR Head of
44/14 - IT
attack (includes other IT systems on
CD SR
Pensions
L M L M M 5 4 31/05/2022 L M L M M 5
Y
Pensions
Systems
which pensions rely if affected for more
Administration
Administration
than 2 days or at a critical time) resulting
in financial loss, backlog, incorrect
payments, increased overtime, criticism
Failure of a pension fund investment
44/7 - Investment manager to meet adequate performance
CSD SR Head of
CSD SR Head of
CD SR
L M M L
L 5 5 31/05/2022 L M M L
L 5
Y
Manager
levels resulting in reduced financial
Investments
Investments
returns, re-tendering exercise
Pre






Page 162



Key




- new Abbreviations
CD SR
CSD SR
FB Plan
LGPS
IT

Risk Ranking has worsened since last review.
Risk Ranking has improved since last review
Risk Ranking is same as last review
New or significantly altered risk

Corporate Director Strategic Resources
Central Services Directorate Strategic Resources
Fallback Plan
Local Government Pension Scheme
Information Technology

Classifications
Prob
Obj
Fin
Serv
Rep
Cat
RRs

Probability
Impact on Objectives
Financial Impact
Impact on Services
Reputational Impact
Risk Category (1 Very High, 2 High, 3 Medium, 4 Medium/Low and 5 Low)
Number of risk reduction actions to be carried out

OFFICIAL

Page 2 of 3

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – summary
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)

Likelihood
H = > 60% or Probable
Probability

M = 30% to 60% or Possible
L = < 30% or Unlikely

Impact
H = Three or four of the Fund’s key objectives adversely impacted
Objectives

M = No more than two of the Fund’s key objectives adversely impacted
L = No more than one of the Fund’s key objectives adversely impacted
H = Substantial/Over 2.5% increase in contribution rate or loss of major opportunity

Financial

M = Notable/0.75%-2.5% increase in contribution rate or loss of notable opportunity

Page 163

L = Minor/Up to 0.75% increase in contribution rate or loss of some opportunity
H = Widespread impact, 2/3 services affected, significant project slippage
Services

M = Declining Performance, notable inconvenience
L = Minor service impact, resolved locally, minor inconvenience
H = Significant Member/Employer complaints, national media

Reputation

M = Notable Member/Employer complaints, regional media,
L = Some Member/Employer complaints, local adverse media coverage

OFFICIAL

Page 3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Risk Title
44/4
44/4 - Pension Fund Solvency
Number
Solvency deteriorates due to liability growth exceeding expectations and / or underperforming investment returns,
Description inappropriate actuarial assumptions, adverse market conditions or legislative changes requiring a review of
employer contributions, additional payments or extended recovery period

Risk
CD SR
Owner

Manager

Risk
Financial
Group

Risk Type

CSD SR Head of
Investments

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability M

Objectives

Deficit recovery period; adopt prudent actuarial assumptions; all assumptions reviewed every 3 years; measure liabilities against investment returns
on a quarterly basis; regular reports to PFC; fixed income review; new rates provided for employers; high priority data quality actions have been
completed; employer covenants completed as part of each triennial valuation and as required; DfE as guarantor of academies;
Financial
Services
Reputation M
Category 2
M
H
L

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
44/551 - Continue to monitor risk around unguaranteed funds
Accountant Pensions
44/554 - Monitor the legislative environment for any impact on solvency and respond to consultations as and when CSD SR Senior
appropriate
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
44/1909 - Continue with implementation of de-risking options in light of the current positive funding level
Accountant Pensions
44/1912 - Work through transition plan and new operational model for the new pensions pool; developing the sub CSD SR Senior
funds to allow further transfers; still progressing through the timetable
Accountant Pensions

44/7 - Regular review of investment strategy to maximise investments reviewed as part of the valuation but
Reduction
continues to be monitored quarterly and will need to consider post Covid recovery
Reduction

Page 165

Reduction
Reduction
Reduction

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives
M

Financial

Services

H

L

Action by Completed
Tue-310%
May-22
Tue-310%
May-22
Tue-310%
May-22
Tue-310%
May-22
Tue-310%
May-22

Reputation M

%

Category 3

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
Plan

44/428 - Increased contribution rate from employers and/or extend recovery period

OFFICIAL

CSD SR Head of Investments

Page 1 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Risk Title
44/222
44/222 - LGPS Pooling Transition
Number
Failure to transition effectively to new pooling arrangements resulting in poorer value for money; lower
Description
investment returns; and inability to effectively execute investment strategy.

Risk
Owner
Risk
Group

CD SR

Manager

Change Mgt

Risk Type

CSD SR Head of
Investments

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability M

Objectives

Pension Fund Committee involvement in key pooling decisions; NYPF officer involvement in pooling working groups; Periodic reporting of updates to the
Pension Fund Committee; further detail behind the plans received; providing updates to the pension board on a quarterly basis around governance;
legal advice on behalf on partner funds; pooling briefing provided to members;
Financial
Services
Reputation H
Category 2
M
H
L

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Reduction

Page 166

Reduction

Reduction
Reduction
Reduction
Reduction

44/161 - Consultation with advisors on the implication of pooling and advice on setting up arrangements
including sub funds; ongoing fund advice being sought
44/166 - Ensure PFC, Pension Board and employers are kept up to date on pooling progress; pooling
update on PFC agenda each quarter; keeping updated through current revised Covid PFC and Board
arrangements
44/447 - Ensure that as the sub-funds are set up that we can invest into and the process of transition is
developed, NYPF have as much involvement as possible to shape this and ensure that it is suitable for
our needs; continue to establish due diligence prior to fund transfer for each asset class
44/553 - Continue to ensure that pooling transitions are made at optimum time to reduce exposure to
market volatility and costs impact, especially key given Covid related volatility
44/569 - Ensure that PFC continue to be involved in key pooling decisions and informed of transition
progress
44/1913 - Ensure post pooling go live reporting and information is as required; as and when we move
funds the reporting will be checked and monitored

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives
M

Financial

M

Services

Action Manager
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions

Action by
Tue-31May-22

CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions

Tue-31May-22

0%

CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions

Tue-31May-22

0%

CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions

Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22

L

Reputation M

Completed

%
0%

0%
0%
0%

Category

4

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
Plan

44/567 - No current alternative to pooling

CSD SR Head of Investments

OFFICIAL

Page 2 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Number

Description

44/207

Risk Title

44/207 - Resources

Insufficient staffing and system resources to adequately service the needs of the Fund resulting
in delays, reduced performance and complaints

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability H
Objectives

Recruited to Pension Investment Manager post;
Financial
Services M
M
M

Risk Owner

CD SR

Manager

Risk Group

Capacity/performance

Risk Type

Reputation M

Category

CSD SR Head
of Investments
CSD SR Head
of Pensions
Administration

2

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager

Page 167

44/478 - Assess areas of greatest concern, mapping workload against available resource and
engaging with Tech and Change on potential efficiencies from the process mapping exercises,
Reduction
“as is” mapping complete, “to be” and accountancy mapping to do and will continue to work on
this as we move through the delivery stage of the new modules that have been procured
44/479 - Develop plan to deal with identified resource gaps; finance mapping taking place as part
Reduction
of new system implementation
Reduction 44/480 - Obtain sign off for any extra resource need identified
Reduction 44/589 - Ensure adequate Finance capacity is available to support the Pension Fund
Reduction 44/592 - Continue to monitor workload demands to ensure effective resource allocation
44/595 - Commission third party to undertake the data gathering required for the McCloud
Remedy work; supplier commissioned and data gathering is in progress
44/596 - Ensure we provide reassurance and robust comms around impact of LGR to mitigate
Reduction
against possible loss of experienced staff
Reduction

Reduction 44/1895 - Ensure new system delivers earliest possible realisation of anticipated benefits
Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives

M

Financial

M

Services

Action by Completed

CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration Tue-31CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
May-22

60%

CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions

Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration
May-22
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration Thu-31CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
Mar-22
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration Tue-31CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
May-22

M

Reputation L

%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Category

4

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan

Fallback
Plan

Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Investments
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

44/553 - Obtain assistance from 3rd party administration provider.

OFFICIAL

Page 3 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Risk
Risk Title
44/8
44/8 - Investment Strategy (including Responsible Investment)
CD SR
Number
Owner
Failure of the investment strategy to achieve sufficient returns from investments whilst responding to cash flows
Risk
Description needs and maintaining assurances that investments are made in an environmentally and socially responsible
Strategic
Group
manner

Manager

CSD SR Head of
Investments

Risk Type

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability L

Objectives

Strategy reviewed through asset/liability modelling; risk budgeting; experience and knowledge of the market and suitable forms of investment; Member training;
Independent Investment Adviser and Consultant reports; PFC workshops and sign off of strategy; regular monitoring of investment performance; fixed income
review; impact of MiFID monitored; full review as part of the triennial review; Pool has a Responsible Investment Policy; NYCC strategy statement includes
ethical investment policy; Cash Flow Policy; Responsible Investment Policy for NYCC;
Financial
Services
Reputation H
Category 3
M
H
L

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager

Page 168

Reduction
Reduction
Reduction
Reduction
Reduction
Reduction

44/571 - Continue to work to the UK stewardship code (currently a Tier 1 signatory to the seven principles);
need to consider the implications of the new code; guidance received and working towards implementation in
2022
44/590 - Ongoing monitoring of cash flow position and three year forward projection reports provided to PFC
quarterly
44/591 - Continue to work to understand impact of alternative investment payment schedules and ensure these
are considered in cash flow projections
44/1876 - Continual review of the investment strategy and implement the recommendations, including
consideration of pooling arrangements
44/1878 - Quarterly monitoring of appropriateness of strategy against prevailing market conditions (including
Covid and Brexit)
44/1879 - Monitor the advisor and consultants reports and act on professional advice – ongoing given covid
advice

Reduction 44/1909 - Continue with implementation of de-risking options in light of the current positive funding level
Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives M

Financial

H

Services

Action by Completed

CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions

Thu-31Mar-22

CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions

Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22
Tue-31May-22

L

Reputation H

%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Category

3

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
Plan

44/430 - Review the strategy and implement changes as necessary based on the forward assessment of financial markets; media management
through NYCC press office for any reputational incidents

OFFICIAL

CSD SR Head of Investments

Page 4 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Number
Description

44/20

Risk Title

44/20 - Fraud

Internal and/or external fraud as a result of inappropriate pension administration, investment
activity and cash reconciliation results in financial loss, loss of reputation

Risk
Owner

CD SR

Risk
Group

Pers/Capacity

Manager

CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration
CSD SR Head of Investments

Risk Type

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability L

Objectives

Internal and external Audit; internal checking and authorisation procedures and levels in both pension section and finance; split between administration
and finance; all third parties have regular audits and regulated by FCA; legally binding contracts in place; governance arrangements for the delegation of
duties; use of BACS payments; monthly mortality monitoring; participate in National Fraud Initiative
Financial
Services
Reputation M
Category 3
L
H
L

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions

Page 169

Action Manager
Action by
Completed
44/572 - Veritau get the output from National Fraud Initiative and pursue any cases of concern CSD SR Senior
Tue-31-MayReduction
0%
for fraud
Accountant Pensions
22
CSD SR Head of Pensions
44/583 - Increase awareness within the teams of potential for pension scams including cash
Administration
Tue-31-MayReduction
0%
equivalent transfers,
CSD SR Senior
22
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions
44/1887 - Continually review processes and procedures including authorisation levels; being
Administration
Tue-31-MayReduction looked at again as part of the “to be” aspect of the system procurement and development
0%
CSD SR Senior
22
exercise
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration
Tue-31-MayReduction 44/1888 - Ongoing internal audit assessment “substantial assurance” received in latest audit
0%
CSD SR Senior
22
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions
44/1890 - Annual independent external audit of pension fund (separate from County Council) Administration
Fri-31-DecReduction
0%
and carry out appropriate recommendations;
CSD SR Senior
21
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Tue-31-MayReduction 44/1894 - Continue to review external manager audit and risk reports
0%
Accountant Pensions
22
Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives
L

Financial

M

Services

L

Reputation M

Category

%

5

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Fallback
Plan

Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration
CSD SR Head of Investments

44/434 - Review incident and update procedures/processes accordingly

OFFICIAL

Page 5 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Risk Title
44/1
44/1 - Employer Contributions
Number
Failure to maintain sustainability and affordability of employer contributions and ensure those
Description
contributions are efficiently collected at the required times

Risk
Owner
Risk
Group

Manager

CD SR

CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

Risk Type

Legislative

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability M

Objectives

Ongoing consultation with Employers; manage the employer contributions through investment strategy; assumptions used in triennial valuation, cost
sharing mechanism, funding strategy statement; letter going out advising caution on reductions on future budget position (re not taking payment holiday);
Contribution Deferral Policy
Financial
Services
Reputation M
Category 4
M
M
Nil

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
44/573 - Continue to review the employer contributions spreadsheet to seek to improve the
Reduction
chasing of late payments

Page 170

Reduction 44/1880 - Maximise investments / returns by implementation of the investment strategy
Reduction 44/1882 - Enforce the penalty charging regime for late payment and late submissions
Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives
M

Financial

M

Services

Action Manager
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Senior
Accountant Pensions

Nil

Action by Completed
Tue-31-May0%
22
Tue-31-May0%
22
Tue-31-May0%
22

Reputation M

Category

%

4

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Fallback
Plan

44/428 - Increased contribution rate from employers and/or extend recovery period

OFFICIAL

Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration
CSD SR Head of Investments

Page 6 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk Number 44/16

Risk Title

Risk Owner CD SR

44/16 - Key Personnel

Loss and unavailability of key personnel, leading to potential knowledge gaps and delays
Description to provision of advice as new personnel take on key roles resulting in reduced performance
and complaints.

Risk Group

Manager

Capacity/performance

CSD SR Head of
Investments
CSD SR Head of
Pensions Administration

Risk Type

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability M

Objectives

Procedure notes; knowledge sharing; file management; deputies; co-operation between departments; pensions management meetings;
comprehensive training matrix; PFC action notes; professional advisors; increase resources agreed in finance team; Joint Head of Pension Fund
Investments appointed; carried out introduction to LGPS for PFC and Board members 2021;
Financial
Services
Reputation
Category 4
M
L
M
M

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions

Page 171

Reduction 44/589 - Ensure adequate Finance capacity is available to support the Pension Fund

Reduction

44/1905 - Continue to build resilience, particularly at Senior Accountant level, to meet
current and anticipated future demands and complexity, accountant in place

44/1907 - Carry out appropriate induction and ongoing training for new PFC and Pension
Reduction Board members; put together a structured induction programme for replacement PFC
members in light of expected LGR led changes
Reduction

44/1908 - Ensure inclusion of key personnel with relevant external advisers or feedback
from such meetings/telephone calls (on going)

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives
M

Financial

L

Services

Action Manager
Action by
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Tue-31Administration
May-22
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Tue-31Administration
May-22
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Investments
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Tue-31Administration
May-22
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Tue-31Administration
May-22
CSD SR Senior Accountant Pensions

M

Reputation

M

Completed

%
0%

0%

0%

0%

Category

5

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Fallback
Plan

44/441 - Identify temporary cover arrangements plus additional resources where required

OFFICIAL

Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Investments
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

Page 7 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Risk Title
44/11
44/11 - Benefit Payments
Number
Incorrect/late benefits and payments to members resulting in criticism, customer
Description
dissatisfaction, under/over payments

Risk Owner CD SR

Manager

Risk Group Performance

Risk Type

CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability M

Objectives

Up to date procedures and procedural checking; pension software up to date; workflow system; authorisation procedures; pro formas; staff training; audit trail;
internal and external audits; Pensions Administration Strategy; Manuals available for calculation procedure; action plan for clean data requirements; use of
task checklists; ESS; payment timetable flowchart; new system process mapping completed
Financial
Services
Reputation M
Category
L
L
L
4

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

Reduction 44/593 - Roll out the monthly online returns

Page 172

44/1893 - Maintain an open dialogue with employers, with particular regard to
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Reduction customer expectations; supported by the employer relationship role created in the
Administration
team
44/1896 - Regular liaison with ESS regarding operational arrangements; ongoing via CSD SR Head of Pensions
Reduction
employer relationship role
Administration
44/1911 - Continue to implement the plans for the managed reduction of outstanding CSD SR Head of Pensions
Reduction
work
Administration
Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives L

Financial

L

Services

L

Reputation

Action by
Thu-31-Mar22

Completed
40%

Tue-31-May22

0%

Tue-31-May22
Tue-31-May22

M

%

0%
0%

Category

5

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
Plan

44/435 - Correct errors and review and amend existing procedures

CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration

OFFICIAL

Page 8 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Risk Title 44/10 - Regulations and Legislation
Risk Owner CD SR
44/10
Number
LGPS Regulations and Employer Related Legislation not interpreted and implemented
Description
Risk Group Performance
correctly resulting in legal challenge

Manager

CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

Risk Type

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Specialist knowledge; designated members of staff; regular updates & comms with CLG; LGPC; Actuarial advice; Employers Forums; NEPOF; section training
by specialist staff; specialist software; advice on calculations interpretations; investment mgt agreement; awareness of overriding legislation; broadening of
knowledge across MT; LGE advice; nat. technical pension group provide advice; Trustees knowledge and understanding toolkit; training feedback received in
order to continually strengthen understanding; GDPR advice and training sessions; mandatory GDPR training for asset owners; impact of MiFID monitored
Objectives L
Financial
Services
Reputation L
Category 5
L
L

Current Control Measures
Probability M

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Reduction 44/157 - Implementation of staff training programme training schedule created

Reduction 44/589 - Ensure adequate Finance capacity is available to support the Pension Fund

Page 173

Reduction 44/1910 - Continue to promote cross skilling within the section to improve resilience;
Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives L

Financial

L

Services

Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration
CSD SR Senior Accountant
Pensions
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

L

Reputation

Action by
Tue-31-May22

Completed

%
0%

Tue-31-May22

0%

Tue-31-May22

0%

L

Category

5

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Fallback
Plan

44/437 - Review existing interpretations, take legal advice and amend procedures as required

OFFICIAL

Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Investments
CSD SR Head of Pensions Administration

Page 9 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Number

Risk Title

44/14

CSD SR Head of
Manager Pensions
Administration

Risk
CD SR
Owner

44/14 - IT Systems

Failure of the physical or digital security of the Pension IT system leaving it vulnerable to downtime or cyber
Description crime attack (includes other IT systems on which pensions rely if affected for more than 2 days or at a critical
time) resulting in financial loss, backlog, incorrect payments, increased overtime, criticism

Risk
Technological
Group

Risk Type

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability L

Objectives

Manual payments, DR plan and tested, contracts for server maintenance, backups off site, major external providers have DR plans, manual
calculation procedures, administration manuals, annual financial check, contingency plan in place, modern council; modern council working
to aid resilience, mandatory training, tech and change security policies in place.
Financial
Services
Reputation M
Category 5
M
L
M

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager

Page 174

CSD SR Head of
Pensions
Administration
CSD SR Head of
44/594 - Ensure cyber security staff training is up to date and that key messages on threats etc are distributed
Reduction
Pensions
and discussed
Administration
CSD SR Head of
44/1884 - Ensure that contingency planning arrangements are regularly reviewed and updates logged on the
Reduction
Pensions
corporate system; running with contingency arrangements through Covid situation
Administration
CSD SR Head of
Reduction 44/1898 - Sense check any IT recovery assumptions with Tech & Change
Pensions
Administration
Reduction

44/477 - Ensure business continuity and system resilience matters are appropriately considered with the
procurement exercise for the pension system development

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives

M

Financial

L

Services

M

Action
by

Completed

%

Tue-31May-22

0%

Tue-31May-22

0%

Tue-31May-22

0%

Tue-31May-22

0%

Reputation M

Category 5

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Fallback
Plan

44/433 - Recourse to manual calculations and payments, Liaise with software provider to restore system, find alternative supplier

OFFICIAL

Action Manager
CSD SR Head of Pensions
Administration

Page 10 of 11

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Risk Register: November 2021 Review – detailed
Next Review Due: May 2022
Report Date: 20th December 2021 (cpc)
Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Risk Title
Risk Owner CD SR
44/7
44/7 - Investment Manager
Number
Failure of a pension fund investment manager to meet adequate performance levels resulting in
Description
Risk Group Performance
reduced financial returns, re-tendering exercise

CSD SR Head of
Investments

Manager
Risk Type

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability L

Objectives

Qrtly review of investment mgr targets; std terms and conds re termination of contract; ext advisers monitor mgrs perf; qrtly repts to Pension Fund Comm;
benchmarking against other approp comparators; investment strategy review; risk budgeting exercise via Aon; reporting by Custodian; fund mgr attend at
PFC; Member training; best practice procurement process; diversified portfolio of investments;
Financial
Services
Reputation L
Category 5
M
M
L

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
CSD SR Senior Accountant
Pensions
CSD SR Senior Accountant
44/1873 - Continue to monitor and report on investment returns on a regular basis
Pensions
44/1874 - Continue to meet/report to PFC by Fund Managers and assess critical analysis by
CSD SR Senior Accountant
advisers
Pensions
44/1875 - When pool options are unavailable, carry out a tender exercise and use best practice CSD SR Senior Accountant
procurement process to ensure positive outcome re new investment manager(s)
Pensions
44/1913 - Ensure post pooling go live reporting and information is as required; as and when we CSD SR Senior Accountant
move funds the reporting will be checked and monitored
Pensions

44/574 - Closer monitoring of the managers where NYCC only funds are being reduced /
Reduction
removed.
Reduction

Page 175

Reduction
Reduction
Reduction

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives
M

Financial

M

Services

L

Reputation

Action by
Tue-31-May22
Tue-31-May22
Tue-31-May22
Tue-31-May22
Tue-31-May22

L

Completed

%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Category

5

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
Plan

44/429 - Change Fund Manager and redistribute funds, potentially transfer to temporary passive Fund Manager

OFFICIAL

CSD SR Head of Investments

Page 11 of 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PENSION BOARD
13 JANUARY 2022
BUDGETS AND CASH FLOW REPORT
Report of the Treasurer
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To provide Pension Board members with an update on the Pension Fund’s
(a) 2021-22 budget and costs of running the Fund
(b) 4 year cash flow forecast

2.0

PENSION FUND BUDGET AND CASH FLOW

2.1

Each quarter a report is taken to the Pension Fund Committee (PFC) to update
Members on the current and forecast income and expenditure position against
the budget, and the latest cash flow forecast.

2.2

The cash flow forecast has been extended to 2024/25. This gives an indication
of the expected position following the 2022 Valuation, which will affect
contribution rates from April 2023. It is based on assumptions on inflation,
transfers and other issues which are challenging to predict.

2.3

The report taken to the November PFC meeting is attached as Appendix 1
for Board members to consider.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

Pension Board members to note the content of this report.

GARY FIELDING
Treasurer to North Yorkshire Pension Fund
04 January 2022

Page 177
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE
26 November 2021
BUDGET / STATISTICS
Report of the Treasurer

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To report on the following:
(a) the 2021/22 budget and the cost of running the Fund

(see section 2)

(b) the 4 year cashflow projection for the Fund

(see section 3)

2.0

2021/22 BUDGET - THE COST OF RUNNING THE FUND

2.1

The latest forecast outturn position against the 2021/22 budget is presented in
Appendix 1. It shows an estimated total running cost of £34.0m for the Fund against
a budget of £33.9m, as at the end of September 2021 (Q2). There have been no
significant changes since the Q1 forecast of £34.1m that was brought to the Committee
in September 2021.

3.0

4 YEAR CASHFLOW PROJECTION

3.1

The cash position of the Fund is presented in Appendix 2. The table shows the
projected cashflows of the Fund for the current financial year and the following three.
This cashflow includes the contribution income and benefits payable, being the main
inflows and outflows of the Fund, which are the two key determining factors for when
the Fund will turn cashflow negative (deficit).

3.2

The future forecast for pension benefits payments is based on indicative assumptions
(4% annual increase in pensioner numbers and 4%, 3% and 2% annual inflation
uplifts for 2022/23, 2023/24 and 2024/25 respectively). The assumptions will continue
to be reviewed and updated regularly to reflect any new information that becomes
available on future inflation and membership numbers.

3.3

The future forecast for contribution income is based on the assumption that there will
be annual increases of 3% due to pay inflation and membership numbers. It has been
further assumed that from 2023/24, the 2022 Valuation will reduce the average
contribution rate from the current 18.6% to 17.5%. These assumptions are clearly
speculative, however we will be able to improve our model of the impact of the 2022
Valuation as the Valuation progresses.

Page 179
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

3.4

The operating cashflow position for the Fund is projected to be small surpluses in
2021/22 and 2022/23, turning into deficits in 2023/24 and 2024/25.

3.5

Although the Fund is moving into negative cashflow territory this is a completely
normal issue for pension funds as they mature. To give this some context, it is worth
noting that the forecast 2023/24 cash position of negative £8.7 million represents
approximately 0.2% of the current value of the Fund, and is not material when
compared to the expected annual growth in the value of the Fund of 5.6%.

3.6

The operating cashflow projection is then combined with further forecast cashflows
arising from the Fund’s investment activities. In the current year 2021/22 changes
have been made to bring the cash balance back to below 0.5% of the value of the
Fund. This is done to improve investment efficiency whilst maintaining a sufficient
level of cash to address the Fund’s growing allocation to private markets investments.
Further portfolio rebalancing activities have also been profiled in for future years in
order to maintain the cash balance near to 0.5%.

3.6

The current version of cashflow projection takes into account the expected
distributions to be received from our private markets investments, however we will
continue to refine the model to identify the future private markets capital calls
separately from net deposits/withdrawals to fund managers, so that the forecasts are
more informative.

4.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1

Members to note the contents of the report.

GARY FIELDING
Treasurer to North Yorkshire Pension Fund
NYCC
County Hall
Northallerton
17 November 2021

Page 180
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 1

North Yorkshire Pension Fund - 2021/22 Budget - Cost of
Running the Pension Fund
Budget
2021/22
£k
EXPENDITURE
Admin Expenses
Finance and Central Services
Provision of Pensioner Payroll (ESS)
Pensions Administration Team
McCloud
Other Admin Expenses
Oversight and Governance
Actuarial Fees
Custodian Fees
Consultants Fees
Pooling Operational Charge and
Project Costs
Other O & G Expenses
Investment Fees
Base Fees invoiced
Performance Fees invoiced
Fees deducted from Fund

TOTAL

Forecast
2021/22
£k

Variance
£k

440
90
1,120
80
510
2,240

440
90
1,120
35
510
2,195

0
0
0
-45
0
-45

20
50
200

40
70
220

20
20
20

776

903

127

100
1,146

100
1,333

0
187

2,900
2,820
24,800
30,520

2,900
2,820
24,800
30,520

0
0
0
0

33,906

34,048

142

Page 181
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix 2

North Yorkshire Pension Fund Cash Flow
2021/2022
£k

2022/2023
£k

2023/2024
£k

2024/2025
£k

(100,446)
(28,470)
(128,915)

(108,481)
(29,267)
(137,748)

(116,075)
(30,086)
(146,161)

(123,040)
(30,929)
(153,968)

(9,137)
(328)
(9,465)

(13,060)
(380)
(13,440)

(13,060)
(380)
(13,440)

(13,060)
(380)
(13,440)

(2,195)
(1,333)
(3,528)

(2,220)
(1,420)
(3,640)

(2,214)
(1,448)
(3,663)

(2,209)
(1,477)
(3,686)

(141,908)

(151,188)

(159,601)

(167,408)

SCHEME RECEIPTS
Employer and Employee
Contributions
Transfers in

134,985

139,035

137,004

141,114

9,641

13,060

13,060

13,060

TOTAL RECEIPTS

144,626

152,095

150,064

154,174

2,718

907

(9,537)

(13,234)

(5,720)
19,839
(120,000)

(6,519)
19,839
(17,500)

(6,910)
19,839
(1,000)

(7,325)
19,839
0

(105,881)

(4,180)

11,929

12,514

(103,163)

(3,273)

2,392

(720)

111,848
8,685

8,685
5,412

5,412
7,804

7,804
7,084

SCHEME PAYMENTS
Benefits
Pensions
Lump Sums

Transfers out
Refunds to leavers
Operational Expenses
Admin Expenses
Oversight and Governance

TOTAL PAYMENTS

SCHEME SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT
ACTIVITIES
Fees Paid to Fund Managers
Distributions from Fund Managers
Withdrawals and (Deposits)
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) AFTER
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
CASH BALANCE B/F
CASH BALANCE C/F

Page 182
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Agenda Item 14
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
13 January 2022
Training
1.0

Purpose of the Report
To provide an update on Pension Board member training.

2.0

Background
The Training Policy was adopted by the Pension Board at its inaugural meeting in
July 2015. This set out the knowledge and understanding requirements of members
of the Pension Board, routes to obtaining training, and training review arrangements.
It states that the suitability of training events and activities should be based on a selfassessment carried out by each Pension Board member. The regulations place the
responsibility for making this assessment, and subsequent action to ensure Pension
Board members have an appropriate level of knowledge and understanding, on the
individual members. In addition, the Pensions Regulator requires that Pension Board
members invest time in learning and development.

3.0

Training Activity
Further to a discussion undertaken at the April 2021 meeting of the Pension Board
Members were requested to identify issues relevant to the Pension Board that could
be the subject of future training sessions. The following issues have been identified
by Board Members, further to that discussion:








McCloud
Goodwin
Administering Authority discretions
Risk Register and risk management
GMP
Investment classes
Pooling and BCPP
Valuation of assets by Actuary

Following discussions related to the development of training at both the Board and
Pension Fund Committee, the provision of a package of online training sessions has
been obtained from a third party provider, with Hymans Robertson. A number of
issues highlighted above as issues that may require further consideration for training
purposes, are addressed in this on-line package. Members are encouraged to
take part in these sessions which are detailed below:1: Introduction to the LGPS
Stakeholders; local arrangements for committees, boards
officers and advisers; regulatory framework.
2: Governance and oversight
Legislation and guidance; policy documents; roles and
responsibilities of committees and board members; Code of

Page 183
OFFICIAL

Practice 14; pensions administration overview; Government
oversight bodies; business plans.
3: Administration and fund management
Pension benefits and contributions; service delivery;
administration and communication strategies and policy
documents and processes; annual report and accounts;
procurements.
4: Funding and actuarial matters
Role of the actuary; the funding strategy; valuations; employer
issues; actuarial assumptions.
5: Investments
Investment strategy, asset class characteristics and
investment markets; pooling investments; monitoring
performance of investments and advisers; responsible
investment.
6: Current issues
LGPS reform; McCloud; Goodwin; cost sharing.

Details of training events attended and activities undertaken by Pension Board
members are contained in a report that is now published on-line with the documents,
but is no longer circulated with the papers. COVID 19 has prevented a number of
training events and conferences from taking place, however, training activities have
continued to take place via virtual platforms, and Members are encouraged to utilise
these for the time being. Board members are asked to review the training record and
advise officers if updates are required.
Pension Board members may wish to discuss the merits of recently undertaken
training activity and where appropriate the pros and cons, to inform other Board
members of its usefulness.
It is recognised that Members of the Board have constraints on their time and may
have difficulty in undertaking the necessary training in view of this. Members are
requested, therefore, to consider whether Board meetings should either be extended,
or shortened, to allow time for Members to undertake training, either individually or
collectively.
4.0

Recommendations
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

That Members provide an update regarding any Pensions Regulator modules
they wish to complete and note the availability and details of the Hymans
Robertson online training package;
That Members provide details of any training they wish to be included on their
training record:
That Members provide details of any issues relevant to the Pension Board,
that could be the subject of future training sessions and note those
highlighted in the report.
That Meetings of the Board be either lengthened or shortened to provide an
opportunity for Members to undertake appropriate training, either individually
or collectively.

Page 184
OFFICIAL

Barry Khan
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
December 2021
Background Documents:

Pensions Regulator on-line training modules
Hymans Online Learning platform

Page 185
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15
North Yorkshire County Council
Pension Board
13 January 2022
Work Programme
1.0

Purpose of the Report
To detail the areas of planned work by the Pension Board

2.0

Future Activity
A number of scheduled Meetings were lost to the COVID 19 restrictions and the
Work Programme was affected, however, with virtual informal meetings now in place
every effort will be made to catch up with any details that may have been missed.
Previous reports to the Board have set out a number of areas that could be identified
as potential priority areas of work for Board Members to provide scoping reports to
subsequent meetings. At previous meetings it was suggested that consideration be
given as to how to progress project work more effectively before undertaking any
further projects. Further consideration will be given to this matter, going forward.
Resources would be need to be available, via relevant Officers, to assist Board
Members with their approach to the development of projects subsequently identified.

3.0

Meeting Dates
The remaining date for ordinary Meetings of the Pension Board for 2021/22
Municipal is 7th April 2022
The dates for ordinary Meetings of the Pension Board for 2022/23 Municipal
are as follows:2022/23 – all Thursday at 10am:7th July 2022
6th October 2022
12th January 2023
6th April 2023

4.0 Recommendations
That members:
i)

Review and agree any updates to the Work Plan (as set out in Appendix 1);

ii)

Note the dates of ordinary meetings as detailed.

Barry Khan
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
Background Papers - None

Page 187
OFFICIAL

Year

This page is intentionally left blank

PENSION BOARD WORK PLAN
1
2
3
4
5

Agree plan for the year
Review Terms of Reference
Review performance against the plan
Report to the PFC / NYCC – Minutes and Chair’s feedback/Annual
Report
Report to Scheme Advisory Board / MHCLG – via Annual Report

APPENDIX 1
13-Jan22




07-Apr22




07-July22












06-Oct22





12-Jan23




06-Apr23






































Compliance checks
6
7
8
9
10
11

Review such documentation as is required by the Regulations
Review the outcome of internal audit reports
Review the outcome of external audit reports
Review Pension Board Annual Report
Review the compliance of particular issues on request of the PFC – as
required
Review the process and note the outcome of actuarial reporting and
valuations – every three years


















Page 189

Administration procedures, performance and Communication

17
18
19

*Review and assist with admin/governance procedures/processesincluding monitoring performance admin/governance and employers
Annual review of the Internal Dispute Resolution Process, Policy and
cases
Annual review of cases referred to the Pensions Ombudsman
*Review the exercise of employer and administering authority
discretions
Assist with the development of improved customer services
Review the risk register and management of risk processes and
procedure
*Assist in assessing process improvements on request of PFC
Pooling – governance, reporting and transparency

20

*Review scheme member and employer communications

12
13
14
15
16

































































Training
21
22
23

Review Pension Board knowledge and skills self-assessment
Review training log
Review training arrangements for the Board and other groups
*Project Work – to be undertaken by individual Members –
dependent upon available time and resources – based on relevant
issues within the Work Programme

OFFICIAL





Page 190
OFFICIAL

